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Glimpse of Company’s Progress over the years 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2000 

Company 

incorporated. 

2001 

Commencement of trial 

production at Sangaria Industrial 

Area, Jodhpur; commercial 

production starts in February 

2002. 
2003 

Launch of SOMIFLEX special 

utility belts "SEHR-36" and 

"TIGER-M-27." 

2004 

Production capacity increased by 100% 

with the installation of a new 

production line; ISO 9001:2000 

Certification obtained for Quality 

Management System. 

2005 Supply of Rubber Conveyor 

Belts to Andhra Pradesh Power 

Corporation Limited for the 

first time. 

2006 
Supply of Rubber Conveyor Belts 

to Karnataka Power Corporation 

Limited for the first time. 

2007 

Secured orders from South Eastern 

Coal Fields Limited and Western Coal 

Fields Limited, subsidiaries of Coal 

India Limited. 

2008 

Listing on the Bombay 

Stock Exchange; new 

manufacturing unit set up 

at Tanawara with 

expanded capacity. 2009 Installation of Two roto curing 

machines; diversification into 

manufacturing rubber sheets for 

various applications. 

2010 
Second Line expansion at 

Tanawara Unit, becoming the 

largest Conveyor Belting 

Manufacturing Unit in India. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2011 

Third Line expansion at Tanawara Unit 

for 2000mm Fabric Belt Manufacturing; 

production capacity expanded from 

4,50,000 meters to 9,00,000 meters. 

2012 

Secured a single purchase order worth 

16 Crores from Aditya Birla Group; 

accepted multiple purchase orders for 

cement industry projects; overall 

turnover and exports increased 

significantly. 

2013 
Secured an order from Adani 

Group for Special Utility. 

2014 
Highest production and turnover achieved; 

new Steel Cord Line Machinery Setup 

completed for 2000mm Steel Belt at 

Tanawara Unit. 
2016 

Second Steel Cord Line 

Machinery Setup completed for 

2600mm Steel Belt at Tanawara 

Unit, becoming the largest Steel 

Cord Manufacturer in India. 

2019 

Registered at NTPC as 

Prominent Vendor. 

2020 
Received Rajasthan 

Udhyog Ratan Award 

for the first time. 

2022 

Secured major 

orders from NTPC, 

NLC, 

MAHAGENCO. 

2023 
Highest turnover achieved 

since the unit's setup in 

2000. 

2024 

Secured major and biggest 

order of STEEL CORD 

Belt from NLC. 
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Dear Stakeholders, 

In terms of performance of FY 2023-24, I am proud to report you that our company remains 
stronger than ever. Our income has gained significant momentum and coupled with a good 
visibility of new Conveyor Belts orders we expect to significantly accelerate our revenue 
growth in FY25 and beyond. The summary of our FY24 financial performance, is shown 
below (Rs. stated in Lakh):  

 
 

 

It gives me great pleasure to reflect on our 
journey over the past fiscal year and to 
address you with future prospects. With 
innovation as our primary focus, we went 
ahead in our journey towards sustained 
growth. Our strategies over the years have led 
us to be more productive, writing a new 
chapter of success, year after year. 

 

The journey of company has undergone can 
be characterized by resilience, innovation and 
relentless customer centricity. It is both an 
honor and a privilege for us to be associated 
with an organization that continually surpasses 
conventional boundaries, consistently 
delivering something extraordinary to its valued 
customers. 

 

At present, there is a rise in the demand for 
conveyor belts in the mining industry to 

REVENUE 

10210.69 

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST, 

TAX, DEPRECIATION 

848.36 

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 

609.90 

PROFIT AFTER TAX 

ATTRIBUTABLE TO 

SHAREHOLDERS OF 

THE COMPANY 

455.26 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 

ATTRIBUTABLE TO 

OWNERS 

455.05 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

(in Rs.) 

3.86 

Message from Chairman 
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transport various materials, such as excavated and crushed rocks, in an efficient manner. 
This, along with the growing warehouses and distribution centers for online merchants 
across the globe, represents one of the key factors driving the market. In addition to this, the 
escalating demand for conveyor belts in the building and construction industry to connect the 
broken equipment of different levels, sand production facilities, and screening equipment is 
positively influencing the market. SCBL is focusing on developing eco-friendly conveyor belts 
with self-cleaning properties. 

 

Overall, our performance and strategic achievements across manufacturing of conveyor 
belting sector showcase our commitment to innovation and sustainable growth. Several of 
these achievements will significantly reduce national reliance on imports and help secure our 
international value chains. We have always believed that we are not just building business; 
we are contributing to powering India’s future with solutions and advancements. 

 

Our commitment to sustainability and environmental consciousness is reflected in the 
continuous evolution of our product range, ensuring that we offer eco-friendly solutions to 
address the challenges of the modern world. We have always believed that to generate 
superior long-term value, we need to look beyond mere profits and care for all our 
stakeholders – our consumers, customers, suppliers & business partners, people, 
shareholders and above all, the planet and society. We firmly believe that our future growth 
will depend on our multi-stakeholder model and embedding sustainability across the value 
chain is indeed non-negotiable. 

As we look to the future, I am filled with optimism and excitement about the opportunities 
that lie ahead. Our commitment to innovation, excellence, and ethical practices will continue 
to drive our success. I would like to extend my deepest gratitude to our shareholders for their 
unwavering support and confidence in our vision. Together, we are poised for even greater 
achievements in the times to come. 

 

With my warmest regards, 

 

 

O P BHANSALI 

Chairman & Managing Director 
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NOTICE 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the members of the 

Company will be held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 11:30 A.M at its registered office at 4F-15, 

“Oliver House”, New Power House Road, Jodhpur-342003, to transact the following business: 

 
 

Ordinary Business: 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended 31st March, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Director's and the Auditor's 

thereon. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution:  

RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the 

Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Payal Daga, (DIN: 07134985) who retires by rotation and, being 

eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution:  

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Payal Daga, (DIN: 07134985) who retires by rotation at this meeting and 

being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the 

Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

 

 

Special Business: 
 
3. To ratify remuneration of Cost Auditor for the financial year 2024-25. 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution:  

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, 

of the Companies Act, 2013 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the 

time being in force] and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to 

time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of ₹35,000/- (Rupees Thirty Five Thousand only) 

plus applicable taxes, travel and out-of-pocket and other expenses incurred in connection with the 

audit, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, payable to 

M/s. Anchal Jain & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN:103706), who are appointed as Cost Auditors in the 
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Board Meeting held on Tuesday, 25th June, 2024 to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained 

by the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2025. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company be and are 

hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and other things and execute all such forms, 

documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.” 
 

4. Appointment of Mrs. Rekha Bhandari (DIN: 10752471) as Non - Executive Independent Woman 
Director 

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Special Resolution:  

 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as „Act‟) and the rules framed there under, 
read with Schedule IV to the Act as amended from time to time read with Regulation 25 (2A) of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations 2015, Mrs. Rekha Bhandari (DIN: 

10752471 ), who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria for independence as provided 

in Section 149 (6) of the Act and whose appointment has been recommended by the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee be and is hereby appointed as a Director (Category: Non-Executive 

Independent Woman Director) of the Company to hold office for the First term of 5 (five) consecutive 

years with effect from October 1, 2024. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali (DIN: 00351846) Managing Director of the 

Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and other things and execute all such 

forms, documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give effect to the aforesaid 

resolution.” 
 

          BY ORDER OF THE BOARD                                   

                                                                     For SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 

                SD/- 

Place: Jodhpur               (AMIT BAXI) 

Date: 4th September, 2024              Company Secretary 

 

Registered Office 

4F-15, “Oliver House”  
New Power House Road  

Jodhpur-342 003 

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 

Website: www.somiinvestor.com 
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NOTES: 
 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT 

PROXY/PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE 

PROXY/PROXIES NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. INSTRUMENT 

APPOINTING THE PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DULY STAMPED, 

COMPLETED, SIGNED AND DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY 

NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT (48) HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FOR HOLDING THE 

MEETING. 

a) As per Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19, Sub-Rule (2) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a person can act as proxy on behalf of members not 

exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% (Ten percent) of the total share 

capital of the Company carrying voting rights. 

b) Provided that a member holding more than ten percent, of the tota l share capital of the company 

carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy 

for any other person or shareholder. 

c) If the appointer is a corporation, the proxy must be executed under seal or the hand of i ts duly 

authorized officer or attorney. 

d) During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and 

ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged 

with the Company, at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than 

three days of notice in writing is given to the Company.  

e) A Proxy form is annexed to this Report, Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., 

must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as may be applicable. 

2. A shareholder or his proxy will be required to produce at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, the Attendance 

Slip sent herewith duly completed and signed. Neither photocopies nor torn/mutilated Attendance Slips will 

be accepted. The Validity of the Attendance Slip will, however, be subject to the Shareholder continuing to 

hold shares on the date of meeting.  

3. Members are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is 

higher in the order of name will be entitled to vote.  

4. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special 

Business under Item No. 3 and 4 be transacted at the Annual General Meeting („AGM‟) is annexed hereto. 

5. In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Mrs. Payal Daga (DIN: 07134985) Director of the Company, retires by 

rotation at the AGM and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. 

6. Details as required in sub-regulation (3) of Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings 

(SS-2) in respect of the Director seeking appointment/ re-appointment at the AGM, forms integral part of 

the Notice. 

BOOK CLOSURE: 

7. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, 24
th

 

September, 2024 to Monday, 30th September, 2024 (both days inclusive) for annual closing. 
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DIVIDEND: 

8. Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the dividend declared for the financial year 

2017-18 are requested to send a letter along with unclaimed dividend warrant, if any, or letter of 

undertaking for issue of duplicate dividend warrant/demand draft.  

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Act, the dividend which remains unclaimed / unpaid for 

a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the unpaid dividend account of the Company is 

required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) of the Central Government. 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Act, read with the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (“the IEPF Rules” ) and 

amendments thereto, all shares on which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive 

years or more shall be transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.  

10. Accordingly, during the financial year 2023-24, the unclaimed dividend declared by the Company for 

Financial Year 2015-16 was transferred to IEPF and all the shares on which dividend had not been paid or 

claimed for seven consecutive years were transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority.  

Further, the Company has uploaded the details of the above on its website i.e. www.somiinvestor.com for 

the information of Members and they are also available on Ministry of Corporate Affairs website at 

www.mca.gov.in. Members are entitled to claim the shares from the IEPF Authority by making an 

application online along with the requisite documents in Form IEPF-5 available on the MCA V3 Portal. 

Shareholders are requested to contact the Company‟s RTA or the Company in th is regard.   

11. The unclaimed dividend for the Financial Year 2017-18 must be claimed as early as possible falling which it 

would be transferred to IEPF as per the(tentative) dates mentioned herein below:  

Financial Year ended Due Date of Transfer 

31.03.2018 27.11.2025 

 

Therefore, members are requested to claim their unpaid dividend pertaining to the financial year 2017 -18 

as soon as possible, so that shares in respect of which the dividend is pending are not transferred to the 

Demat Account of IEPF authority at appropriate date. 

12. It is in the Members interest to claim any un-encashed dividends and for future, opt for National Electronic 

Clearance System (NECS)/ National Automated Clearing House (NACH), so that dividends paid by the 

Company are credited to the investor‟s account on time. 

13. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company 

of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are also advised to not 

leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the 

concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified from time to time.  

14. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 

dated January 25, 2022, has mandated the listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only 

while processing service requests viz., Issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from unclaimed 

suspense account; renewal/exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of 

securities certificate; consolidation of securities certificates /folios; transmission and transposition. 

Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form 

ISR-4, the format of which is available on the website of the Company‟s RTA‟s at 

http://www.mca.gov.in/
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https://liiplweb.linkintime.co.in/KYC-downloads.html. It may be noted that any service request can be 

processed only after the folio is KYC Compliant. 

15. SEBI vide its notification dated January 24, 2022 has amended Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations and has mandated that all requests for transfer of securities includ ing transmission and 

transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. In view of the same and to eliminate 

all risks associated with physical shares and avail various benefits of dematerialization, Members are 

advised to dematerialize the shares held by them in physical form. Members can contact the Company or 

the Company‟s RTA, for assistance in this regard. 

16. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated furnishing of PAN, Nomination details 

and KYC details (i.e., Contact details, bank account details, Specimen signature etc.) by holders of 

physical securities in prescribed forms. Any service requests or complaints received from the Member, will 

not be processed by RTA till the aforesaid details/ documents are provided to RTA. Accordingly, Members 

are requested to send requests in the prescribed forms to the RTA of the Company for availing of various 

investor services as per the SEBI Master Circular dated May 17, 2023. Relevant details and forms 

prescribed by SEBI in this regard are made available under investors section on the website of the 

Company at www.somiinvestor.com. Further, the complete contact details of the RTA, Link Intime India 

Private Limited is also available on the website of the Company. 

17. In compliance with SEBI Master Circular dated May 17, 2023, the Company has disseminated the 

requirements to be complied with by holders of physical securities on its website www.somiinvestor.com. 

The Company has also directly intimated its security holders about folios which are incomplete with regard 

to details required under para 19.1 of the master circular. The RTA of the Company has also submitted a 

report to SEBI on the steps taken towards sensitizing its security holders regarding mandatory furnishing of 

PAN, KYC and nomination details as detailed in para 19.1 of the master circular.  

18. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are requested 

to send to the Company‟s RTA, the details of such folios together with the share certificates alongwith the 

requisite KYC documents for consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for consolidation of share 

certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form. 

19. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular , the facility for making nomination is 

available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered 

their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires to 

opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same in 

ISR-3 or SH-14 as the case may be. The said forms can be downloaded from website of the Registrar and 

Transfer Agent („RTA‟) at https://liiplweb.linkintime.co.in/cl ient-downloads.html. Members are requested to 

submit the said details to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in dematerialized form and to the 

Company‟s RTA in case the shares are held by them in physical form, quoting their folio number.  

20. SEBI vide Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/131 dated July 31, 2023, and 

SEBI/HO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023, read with Master Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/ OIAE/OIAE_IAD-1/P/ CIR/2023/145 dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on August 11, 2023), has 

established a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal („ODR Portal‟) for resolution of disputes arising in 
the Indian Securities Market. 

Pursuant to above-mentioned circulars, post exhausting the option to resolve their grievances with the RT A 

/Company directly and through existing SCORES platform, the investors can initiate dispute resolution 

through the ODR Portal at https://smartodr.in/login. 
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21. Documents referred to in the Notice are open for Inspection at the Registered Office of the Company  on all 

working days between 11:00 AM to 1:00 Noon up to the date of Annual General Meeting and will also be 

available for inspection at the meeting. 

22. Link Intime India Private Limited is our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. All the investor related 

communication may be  addressed to them at their following address:  

Link Intime India Private Limited  

C 101, 247 Park, LBS Road, Vikhroli West, Mumbai – 400083. 

Tel: +91 22 49186000, Fax: +91 22 49186060 

 

ELECTRONIC DISPATCH OF ANNUAL REPORT AND PROCESS FOR REGISTRATION 

OF EMAIL ID FOR OBTAINING ANNUAL REPORT: 

23. In accordance with, the General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated 5 May 2020, 19/20 dated 12 December 2021 

and 21/2021 dated 14 December 2021, 10/2022 dated 28 December 2022 and 09/2023 dated 25 

September 2023 issued by MCA, owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the 

financial statements (including Report of Board of Directors, Auditor‟s report or other documents required 

to be attached therewith), such statements including the Notice of AGM are being sent in electronic mode 

to Members whose e-mail address is registered with the company or the Depository Participant(s).Physical 

copy of the Notice of the 24
th

 AGM along with Integrated Annual Report for the Financial Year (FY) 2023-

24 shall be sent to those Members who request for the same. 

24. The Notice of AGM along with Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24, will also be available on the 

Company‟s website at https://www.somiinvestor.com, website of CDSL i.e. www.evotingindia.com and on 

websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia. com respectively. 

25. Members holding shares in physical form and who have not updated their e-mail ids with the Company are 

requested to update their e-mail ids by writing to the Company at md@somiconveyor.com along with the 

copy of the signed request letter mentioning the name and address of the Member, self-attested copy of 

the Permanent Account Number (PAN) card, and self-attested copy of any document (eg.: Driving License, 

Voter Identity card, Passport, Aadhaar card) in support of the address of the Member. Members holding 

shares in dematerialised (demat) mode are requested to register/update their e-mail id with the relevant 

DPs. In case of any queries/difficulties in registering the e-mail id, Members may write to 

md@somiconveyor.com. 

 
PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND VOTING DURING THE AGM: 

26. In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, as substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment, 

Rules 2015, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, the Company has provided a facility to the members to exercise their votes electronically. The facility for 

voting through ballot paper will also be made available at the AGM and members attending the AGM, who 

have not already cast their votes by e-voting. They shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM through 

ballot paper. Members who have cast their votes by e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall 

not be entitled to cast their votes again. The instructions for e-voting are annexed to the Notice. 

27. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the member / 

beneficial owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off date i.e. September 23, 2024. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:md@somiconveyor.com
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28. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 

maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e. September 23, 2024 only shall be entitled to 

avail the facility of remote e-voting / through Poll Paper at the Annual General Meeting. 

The instructions for members voting electronically are as under: 

(i) The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, 27
th
 September, 2024 at 9:00 am and ends on 

Sunday, 29
th
 September, 2024 at 5:00 pm. During this period, members of the Company holding shares 

either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. 23
rd 

September, 2024 may 

cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 

thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to 

change it subsequently. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 

44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in 

respect of all shareholders‟ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the 
public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities 

in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and 

passwords by the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been 

decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, through 

their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would 

be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating 

seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 

facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are 

allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to 

access e-Voting facility. 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with 

CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through 

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 

users to login to 

Easi/Easiestarehttps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 

Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting is in progress as 

per the information provided by company. On clicking the e-voting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
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provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-

Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that 

the user can visit the e-Voting service providers‟ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest,option to register is available 

at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.comhome page. The system will authenticate the user by 

sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

1)  If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under „IDeAS‟ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and 

Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-

Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 

service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeASe-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS “Portal or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
„Shareholder/Member‟ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-

Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period. 

Individual Shareholders (holding 

securities in demat mode)login 

through their Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 

through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 

by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 

022-23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in Demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 

by sending arequestatevoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 

1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

 

(v) Login method for e-Voting for shareholders other than individual shareholders holding in demat 

form & physical shareholders 

a. The Shareholders should Log on to the e-voting website http://www.evotingindia.com 

b. Click on “Shareholders” tab. 

c. Now Enter your User ID 

i. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

ii. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

iii. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered 

with the Company. 

d. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on “Login”. 

e. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and 

voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

(vi) IF YOU ARE A FIRST TIME USER FOLLOW THE STEPS GIVEN BELOW FOR LOGIN: 

 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat. 

Permanent 

Account 

Number 

(PAN*) 

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department(Applicable for 

both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 

are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend Bank 
Details OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 

demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 

member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (c). 

 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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(vii) After entering these details appropriately, click on SUBMIT” tab. 

(viii) Members holding shares in physical form will then reach directly to the Company selection screen. 

However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach „Password Creation‟ menu wherein they 
are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this 

password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on 

which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is 

strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. 

(ix) For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice.  

(x) Click on the Electronic Voting Sequence Number (EVSN) of SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED to 

vote. 

(xi)  On the voting page, you will see „RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 
“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to 
the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

(xii) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

(xiii) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” 
and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xiv) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

(xv) You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 
Voting page. 

(xvi) If a Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and the image 

verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

(xvii) Note for Non-Individual Shareholders and Custodians: 

a) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to log on to 

https://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates. 

b) Institutional shareholders should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp 

and sign of the entity to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

c) After receiving the login details they have to create a user who would be able to link the account(s) 

which they wish to vote on. 

d) The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 

e) Institutional shareholders should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of 

Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian. if any, in PDF Format in the 

system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

f) Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ 

Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who 

are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address 
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md@somiconveyor.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-

voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

(xviii) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting you may refer the Frequently Asked 

Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com,under help section or write 

an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

29. The Board of Directors the Company has appointed Mrs. Ira Baxi (FCS: 5456; PCS: 4712), Practising 

Company Secretary to act as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize for remote e-voting process and Voting through Poll 

taking place at the 24
th
 Annual General Meeting of the Company in a fair and transparent manner. She has 

communicated her willingness to be appointed and will be available for same purpose. 

30. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, first count the votes 

cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two 

(2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than three (3) days of conclusion of 

the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer‟s Report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the 
Chairman of the Company who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.  

31. The Results shall be declared after the receipt of the Scrutinizer's Report from conclusion of the AGM of the 

Company. The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website 

www.somiinvestor.com.The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the stock exchanges BSE Limited 

and NSE of India Limited. 

32. PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 

THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

a) For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 

b) For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 

Participant (DP)  

c) For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 

Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you 

can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-23058542/43. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 

Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon 

Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43. 

33. To ensure correct identity of the members for the smooth conduct of the Annual General Meeting, each 

Member and Proxy Holder attending the meeting is requested to bring with him/her an appropriate photo ID 

document like a Driving License, Aadhaar Card, Passport or Voter ID Card. 

34. As per section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings 

issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India, “No gifts, gift coupons or cash in lieu of gifts shall be 
distributed to members in connection with the meeting”. 

 

 

 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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35. Route Map of 24
TH

 AGM: 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD                                   

                                                                        For SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 

 

 

 

SD/- 

Place: Jodhpur      (AMIT BAXI) 

Date: 4thSeptember, 2024     Company Secretary 

 

Registered Office 

4F-15, “Oliver House”  
New Power House Road  

Jodhpur-342 003 

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 

Website: www.somiinvestor.com 

 

 

  

Venue of 24
th

 

Annual 

 General Meeting 
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Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

As required by Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the following Explanatory Statement sets out 

all material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item No.3 and Item No.4 of the accompanying 

notice dated 4th September, 2024: 

Item No. 3 

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on June 25, 2024 approved the appointment of M/s. Anchal 

Jain & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN: 103706), to conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the 

financial year ending March 31, 2025 at a remuneration of Rs. 35,000 plus applicable taxes and out of 

pocket expenses, as recommended by the Audit Committee of the Company. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the 

Members of the Company. Accordingly, ratification by the Members is sought to the remuneration payable 

to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2025, by passing an Ordinary Resolution. 

The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members by 

way of an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, 

concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

 

Item No. 4 

The Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to the recommendations of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee proposed appointment of Mrs. Rekha Bhandari (DIN: 10752471  ) as a Director 

(Category: Non-Executive Independent Woman Director) for the first term of five (5) consecutive years 

commencing from October 1, 2024 to September 30, 2029. 

Mrs. Rekha Bhandari is not disqualified from being appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), and has given her consent to act as a Director. 

The Company has received a declaration from Mrs. Rekha Bhandari stating that she meets the criteria of 

Independence as provided under Section 149 (6) of the Act and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended from time to time. 

Further, she is not debarred from holding the office of Director pursuant to any Order issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any other authority. 

In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Rekha Bhandari fulfils the conditions specified in the Act, the rules 

framed there under and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for 

appointment as an Independent Director and she is independent of the management. Further Mrs. Rekha 

Bhandari possesses appropriate skills and knowledge; inter alia, in the field of Accountancy and Law. Her 

knowledge and skills will be useful for the Company.  

In accordance with Section 150 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013, the aforesaid fact constitutes sufficient 

justification for appointment of Mrs. Rekha Bhandari as an Independent Director. 
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The letter of appointment containing terms and conditions of appointment of Mrs. Rekha Bhandari will be 

open for inspection on all working days at the Registered Office of the Company, except Sundays and 

Public Holidays, during business hours till the date of AGM.  

As per Section 150 read with Section 152 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 25 (2A) of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the appointment of an 

Independent Directors needs to be approved by the shareholders by way of special resolution.  

Accordingly, the Board recommends the resolution as set out at Item No. 4 of this Notice for approval of 

the members of the Company as Special Resolution. 

Except Mrs. Rekha Bhandari none of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are in any 

way, concerned or interested, directly or indirectly in this item of business, in any manner whatsoever.  

Details of Mrs. Rekha Bhandari seeking appointment at the AGM pursuant to Regulation 36 of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) are provided in the Appendix to the Notice of 

AGM.  

 

              BY ORDER OF THE BOARD                                   

 For SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 

 

 

 

 

                 SD/- 

Place: Jodhpur               (AMIT BAXI) 

Date: 4th September, 2024              Company Secretary 

 

Registered Office 

4F-15, “Oliver House”  
New Power House Road  

Jodhpur-342 003 

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 

Website: www.somiinvestor.com  
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APPENDIX TO ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING NOTICE 
 

Particulars and additional information of the directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and in terms of 
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (SS-2): 

Name of Director Mrs. Payal Daga Mrs. Rekha Bhandari 

Director Identification Number 

(DIN) 

07134985 10752471  

Date of Birth and Age 09/10/1980 – 43 Years 07/02/1970-  54 Years 

Nationality Indian Indian 

Date of first appointment on the 

Board 

30/09/2022 01/10/2024 

Qualifications Post Graduation in Commerce Graduation in Commerce 

Brief resume, experience and Nature 

of expertise in specific functional 

areas. 

12 Years of Experience in 

Administration 

9 Years of Experience in the field of 

Accountancy & Law 

Directorships  held in other Listed 

Companies 

NIL NIL 

Membership of Board Committees in 

other Public Limited Companies 

NIL NIL 

Shareholding in the Company NIL NIL 

Relationship with other Directors, 

Manager and other Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company 

No relation No relation 

Other Information  Non-Executive Non-Independent 

Woman Director 

Non-Executive Independent Woman Director 

Remarks Seeks Re-Appointment as Non-

Executive Non-Independent Woman 

Director liable to retire by rotation. 

Seeks Appointment as Non-Executive 

Independent Woman Director for the first 

term of five consecutive years. 

 

              BY ORDER OF THE BOARD                                   
 For SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED                

                   SD/- 
Place: Jodhpur               (AMIT BAXI) 
Date: 4th September, 2024              Company Secretary 
 
Registered Office 
4F-15, “Oliver House”  
New Power House Road  
Jodhpur-342 003 
CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 
Website: www.somiinvestor.com  
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SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 
Registered Office: 4 F-15 “Oliver House”, New Power House Road, Jodhpur - 342003 

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480; Email: md@somiconveyor.com; 

Website: www.somiinvestor.com; Ph. No.: 0291-2765400 to 09 

PROXY FORM  
[FORM MGT-11] 

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies  

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014) 

24TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, 30THSEPTEMBER, 2024 
 

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 
Name of the company: SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 
Registered office: 4F-15, Oliver House, New Power House Road, Jodhpur 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Name of the member (s):  
Registered address:  
E-mail Id:  
Folio No/ Client Id:  
DP ID:  
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------  
I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint  

1. Name: ………………………………….…Address: ………………………………………………………………………… 

E-mail Id: …………………………………… Signature:…………………………………………………………………….. or failing him  
2. Name: ………………………………….…Address: ………………………………………………………………………… 

E-mail Id: …………………………………… Signature:……………………………………………………………………..or failing him  
3. Name: ………………………………….…Address: ………………………………………………………………………… 

E-mail Id: …………………………………… Signature:…………………………………………………………………….. or failing him  

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the TWENTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL 

MEETING of the company, to be held on the Monday, 30
th 

day of September, 2024 at 11:30 A.M. at 4F-15, “Oliver House” New 
Power House Road, Jodhpur-342003 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:  

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
1. Adoption of Audited Financial Statements for the Year ended 31

st
 March, 2024, Auditors‟ and Directors‟ Report thereon. 

2. Re-appointment of Mrs. Payal Daga as Director, liable to retire by rotation. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
3. Ratification of remuneration payable to M/s. Anchal Jain & Co, Cost Accountants (FRN: 103706) for the FY ending March 31, 
2025. 
4. Appointment of Mrs. Rekha Bhandari as Non-Executive Independent Woman Director for the first term of five consecutive 
years. 

 
 

Signed this      …… day of   ……… 20….               
         
          
Signature of shareholder ________________                                         

Signature of Proxy holder(s) ______________ 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 
not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.  

 

 

Affix Rs.1 

Revenue 

Stamp 
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SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 
     Registered Office: 4 F-15 “Oliver House”, New Power House Road, Jodhpur – 342003 

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480; Email: md@somiconveyor.com 
Website: www.somiinvestor.com; Ph. No.: 0291-2765400 to 09 

 
 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

24TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2024 

Joint Shareholders may obtain additional Attendance Slip on request. 

 (Folio No., DP ID No., Client ID & Name of Shareholder / Joint Holders / Proxy, to be furnished below). 

 
Name & Address of Shareholder:  
_____________________________ 
 
_____________________________ 
 
_____________________________ 
 
Reg. Folio No. …………………………..… DP ID No#. …………….…….. Client ID No#. …………………… 
 
# Applicable for Member holding Shares in electronic form 
 
I certify that I am a registered Member/Proxy for registered member of the Company. 

I hereby record my presence at the TWENTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the company on Monday, 

September 30, 2024 at 11:30 AM at 4F-15, “Oliver House”, New Power House Road, Jodhpur- 342003 

 
 
----------------------------------------------------                                                  ------------------------------------- 
Members/Proxy‟s name in BLOCK Letters                                              Members/Proxy‟s Signature 
 

Note: Please fill in this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 
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Annual Report 2023-24 

 

 

Dear Members 

Your Board of Directors (―the Board‖) take pleasure of presenting the 24th
 Annual Report of your Company 

together along with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31
st
 March 2024.  

 
 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

The financial performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 compared with previous 
Financial Year is summarized below: 

                (Rs. in Lakhs) 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 2023-24 2022-23 

Total Sales 10210.69 9369.57 

Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and taxation 848.36 727.21 

Interest 121.64 198.50 

Depreciation 116.82 101.25 

Profit Before Tax 609.90 427.46 

Provision for Tax (150.77) (67.98) 

Prior Period Tax ------ ------ 

Add/(Less) Deferred Tax (3.87) (12.67) 

Profit After Tax 455.26 346.81 

Other Comprehensive Income (0.21) (11.21) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 455.05 335.60 

 

The above mentioned financial performance highlights are an abstract of the Financial Statements of your 

Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. The detailed Financial Statements of your Company forms part of this 

Annual Report and are also uploaded on website of your Company i.e.www.somiinvestor.com. 

 

During the Financial Year under review, Company‘s revenue from operation increased by 8.98% and it stood at 

Rs. 10210.69 Lakhs compared to Rs. 9369.57 Lakhs in the previous financial year. The Net Profit after Tax for 

the financial year amounted to Rs. 455.26 Lakhs as against Rs. 346.81 Lakhs in the previous year, resulting in 

increase in Profits of the Company by 31.26%. The Board is confident of higher growth in the financial year 2024-

25 

 

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company, Associate Company or any other Joint Venture; therefore, 

it is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

DIVIDEND 

In order to conserve the funds for the growth of the Company, the Board of Directors do not recommended any 

dividend for the year ended 31
st
 March, 2024. 

 

 

 

Director’s Report 

http://www.somiinvestor.com/
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STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS (MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS) 
In terms of the provisions of Regulation 34(2) of the Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion and 

Analysis Report of your Company's affairs for the year under review is attached and forms an integral part of this 

Annual Report. 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE 

The Board has decided to retain the entire amount of profit for FY24 in the distributable retained earnings. 

 

CREDIT RATING 

CRISIL Rating Limited, has assigned following credit rating to the Company in respect of long-term Bank facilities 

and short-term Bank facilities availed by the Company: 

Particulars Ratings Assigned 

Long Term Bank Facilities CRISIL BB+/Stable 

Short Term Bank Facilities CRISIL A4+ 

 

ANNUAL RETURN 

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act, the draft annual return for Financial Year 2023-24 prepared in 

accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act is made available on your website of the Company i.e. 

www.somiinvestor.com. 

 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

Your Company‘s Board of Directors met 10 (ten) times during the financial year ended March 31, 2024 in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. The meetings were held on 

02.05.2023, 30.05.2023 12.08.2023, 04.09.2023, 20.10.2023, 08.11.2023, 11.12.2023, 12.02.2024, 01.03.2024 

and 30.03.2024 of which proper notices were given and the proceedings were properly recorded and signed in 

the Minutes Book as required by the Articles of Association of the Company and the Act. Detailed information is 

given in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

The intervening gap between two consecutive meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies 

Act, 2013, Secretarial Standards and SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015. 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

As required under the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has constituted various Committees 
of the Board and they focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in line with the delegated 
authority. 
 

The following Committees constituted by the Board function according to their respective roles and defined scope: 

• Audit Committee 

• Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

• Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

• Stakeholders‘ Relationship Committee 

 

Details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for respective committees are given in 

the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of this Annual Report. During the year under review, all 

recommendations made by the various committees have been accepted by the Board. 

http://www.somiinvestor.com/
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DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 
Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors and other Key Managerial Personnel 

 

During the financial year 2023-24, following changes took place in the management of the Company: 

 Mrs. Payal Daga (DIN – 07134985) was appointed as Non-Executive Non-Independent Woman Director 

on the Board of the Company liable to retire by rotation, in the 23
rd

 Annual General Meeting held on 

September 30, 2023. 

 Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali was appointed as Chairman of the Company in place of Mr. Mahendra 

Rakhecha w.e.f. 8
th
 November, 2023. 

 Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali‘s continuation of employment as Managing Director of the Company on 
attaining the age of 70 years was approved for the remaining period of his term of 5 years i.e. until 31

st
   

August, 2027 in the Extra-ordinary General meeting of the Company held on 8
th
 January, 2024 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mrs. Payal Daga (DIN – 07134985), Non-Executive 

Non-Independent Woman Director of your Company retires by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General 

Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment. Approval of the Members is being sought at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting for her re-appointment and the requisite details in this connection are contained 

in the Notice convening the meeting. 

 

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee has proposed 

appointment of Mrs. Rekha Bhandari as Non-Executive Independent Woman Director of the Company. Approval 

of the Members is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for her appointment and the requisite 

details in this connection are contained in the Notice convening the meeting. 

 

The disclosures required pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Clause 1.2.5 of the 

Secretarial Standard are given in the Notice of AGM, forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

Apart from the aforesaid changes, there was no change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of your 

Company. 

 

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS  

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, during the financial year 2023-24, the Company 

imparted Familiarization Programme to Independent Directors to familiarize them about their roles, rights and 

responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, review of investments of 

the Company, business model of the Company, Prohibition of Insider Trading Regulations, SEBI Listing 

Regulations, etc. The details of the familiarization programme are available on the website of the Company at 

www.somiinvestor.com 

 

Further, in the opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI Listing 

Regulations and are independent of the management.  

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

In accordance with the Act and Regulation 4(2)(f) of the Listing Regulations, your Company has framed a Policy 

for Evaluation of Performance of Independent Directors, Board, Committees and other Individual Directors which 

includes criteria for performance evaluation of Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors .A questionnaire 

is formulated for evaluation of performance of the Board, its committees and individual Directors, after taking into 

consideration several aspects such as board composition, strategic orientation, board functioning and team 

dynamics. 
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An annual performance evaluation for the financial year 2023-24 was carried out by the Board of Directors and 

the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at their respective meetings. The questionnaires were circulated to 

the Board members and the Committee members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee at the time of 

performance evaluation conducted at their respective meetings. The Directors and the Committee members then 

filled-up the questionnaire and rated the Board, its Committees and individual Directors and duly filled 

questionnaires were handed over to the Company Officer. 

Performance evaluation of Independent Directors was conducted by the Board of Directors, excluding the Director 

being evaluated. The criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors laid down by the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee include ethics and values, knowledge and proficiency, diligence, behavioral traits, 

efforts for personal development and independence in decision making. 

Similarly, performance evaluation of the Chairman and Non–Independent Directors was carried out by the 

Independent Directors of your Company at its separate meeting held on March 29, 2024. Your Directors also 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 

TRAINING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

All Independent Directors are familiarized with your Company, their roles, rights and responsibilities in your 

Company, nature of the industry in which your Company operates, business model, strategy, operations and 

functions of your Company through its Executive Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel. The details of 

programs for familiarization of Independent Directors of the Company are available on the website of your 

Company www.somiinvestor.com 

 

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(d) of the Act, your Company confirms having received necessary declarations from all 

the Independent Directors under Section 149(7) of the Act and Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations 

declaring that they meet the criteria of independence laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 

16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. All the Independent Directors of your Company have complied with the 

provisions of sub-rule (1) and (2) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014 by registering themselves under data bank of Independent Director. Your Company has also formulated a 

Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel and has obtained declarations from all the 

Directors to the effect that they are in compliance with the Code. 

 

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Your Company‘s Independent Directors meet at least once in every financial year without the presence of the 

Executive Directors or Management Personnel of your Company and the Meeting is conducted formally. During 

the year under review, one meeting of Independent Directors was held on March 29, 2024. 

 

 
DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(5) of Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 

knowledge and ability hereby confirm: 

a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2024, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed and that no material departures have been made 

from the same; 

b) that they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at 31st March, 2024 and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year ended  on that 

date; 

http://www.somiinvestor.com/
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c) that they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) that they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 

financial controls are adequate and operating properly; and 

f) that they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY AND CRITERIA FOR MATTERS UNDER SECTION 178 

Information regarding Directors‘ Remuneration Policy and criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 
independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section (3)of section 178 are provided in the 

Corporate Governance Report. 

  

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company as per Section 2(51) and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 

 

 

 

 
 

During the financial year 2023-24, the constitution of the Board complies with the requirements of the Act, and the 
SEBI Listing Regulations. There was no change in Key Managerial Personnel of your Company during the 
financial year 2023-24. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Act read with rules made thereunder, as amended, M/s Singhvi & Mehta, 

Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 002464W), were re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of your 

Company, for the second term of five years till the conclusion of 27th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of your 

Company to be held in the year 2027. 

 

OM PRAKASH 

BHANSALI 

MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 

VIMAL BHANSALI 

WHOLE-TIME 

DIRECTOR 

AMIT BAXI 

COMPANY 

SECRETARY  

MANISH BOHRA 

CHIEF FINANCIAL 

OFFICER 

GAURAV BHANSALI 

WHOLE-TIME 

DIRECTOR 
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The Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified to continue as Statutory Auditors and are 

eligible to hold office as Statutory Auditors of your Company. 

 

M/s. Singhvi & Mehta, Chartered Accountants, have submitted their Report on the Financial Statements of the 

Company for the FY 2023-24, which forms part of the Annual Report 2023-24. The Notes to the financial 

statements referred in the Auditors‘ Report are self-explanatory. The Auditors‘ Report is enclosed with the 

financial statements forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

The Auditors‘ Report does not contain any qualification(s), reservation(s) or adverse remark(s). 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR  

In terms of Section 204 of the Act, the Board of Directors of your Company have appointed FCS Ira Baxi (FCS: 

5456; CP: 4712), Practicing Company Secretary, Jodhpur as the Secretarial Auditor of your Company to carry out 

Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2023-24. Your Company has obtained Secretarial Audit Report for the 

Financial Year 2023-24 in the prescribed Form MR-3 from FCS Ira Baxi, Practicing Company Secretary, which 

forms part of the Annual Report and is appended as “Annexure – I” to this Report. 

 

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Secretarial auditor in the 

report save and except disclaimer made by them in discharge of their professional obligation. 

 

In addition to the above Secretarial Audit and pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 24A of the Listing 

Regulations FCS Ira Baxi, Practicing Company Secretary, have also issued to your Company, Annual Secretarial 

Compliance Report for the financial year 2023-24 confirming compliance of all laws, SEBI Regulations and 

circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, applicable to your Company. The Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 

dated May 15, 2024 issued by M/s. FCS Ira Baxi, Practicing Company Secretary has been submitted to the stock 

exchanges within 60 days from the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE 
REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT 

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor of your Company have not reported 

any instances of fraud committed in your Company by Company‘s officers or employees, to the Audit Committee, 
as required under Section 143(12) of the Act. 

 

COST AUDIT RECORDS AND COST AUDITORS 

During the year under review, in accordance with Section 148(1) of the Act, your Company has maintained the 

accounts and cost records, as specified by the Central Government.  

 

In terms of Section 148 of the Act, Board of Directors of the Company has appointed M/s. Anchal Jain & Co., 

(FRN: 103706) Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of your Company to conduct cost audit for the FY 2024-25 for 

auditing the Cost Records relating to the Rubber and allied products.  

 

A resolution seeking approval of the Shareholders for ratifying the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for 

FY25 is provided in the Notice of the ensuing AGM.  

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

During the year under review the issued, subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company was 

11,779,656 equity shares of Rs.10/- each. There was no change in the capital structure of the Company. 
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PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

Information regarding loans, guarantees and investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are detailed in the Financial Statements. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All transactions with related parties are placed before the Audit Committee for its approval. An omnibus approval 

from Audit Committee is obtained for the related party transactions which are repetitive in nature. 

 

All transactions with related parties entered into during the year under review were at arm‘s length basis and in 

the ordinary course of business and in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the rules made thereunder, 

the SEBI Listing Regulations and your Company‘s Policy on Related Party Transactions. 

 

Pursuant to Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars 

of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act, in the prescribed Form 

AOC-2 is appended as “Annexure – II” to this Report. 

 

During the year under Review, your Company had entered into contract(s)/arrangement(s)/transaction(s) with 

related parties which were in ordinary course of business and on arm‘s length basis and none of which could be 

considered as material in accordance with the policy of your Company on materiality of related party transactions. 

Further, none of the contract(s)/ arrangement(s)/transaction(s) with related parties required approval of members 

as the same were within the limits prescribed under Section 188(1) of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder 

read with the provisions of Regulation 23(4) of the Listing Regulations. 

 

Suitable disclosures as required by the Indian Accounting Standards have been made in the notes to the financial 

statements. The policy on related party transactions as approved by the Board is uploaded on the Company‘s 

website www.somiinvestor.com. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, your Company has filed half yearly 

reports to the stock exchanges, for the related party transactions. 

 

Pursuant to Schedule V (A)(2A) of SEBI (LODR)Regulations, 2015, details of transactions that took place 

during the year with Related Parties are listed below: 

 

Details of transactions with Related Parties for the period 01.04.2023 to 31.03.2024 

    (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars Nature of Relationship Name of Related Party 31.03.2024 

Sale of Goods WHERE RKMP HAS INFLUENCE Oliver Rubber Ind. LLP. 153.52  

Purchase WHERE RKMP HAS INFLUENCE Oliver Rubber Ind. LLP.             4.83 

Managerial Remuneration KMP Om Prakash Bhansali           33.90  

   Vimal Bhansali            27.30  

   Gaurav Bhansali 27.30  

   Manish Bohra 19.61  

   Amit Baxi 5.00  

Salary  RKMP Anita Bohra             6.18 

  Dhananjay Bhansali 2.97 

http://www.somiinvestor.com/
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Interest Paid KMP Vimal Bhansali 2.14  

Loan Paid KMP Vimal Bhansali 124.36  

   Manish Bohra 18.30 

Rent Paid KMP Om Prakash Bhansali 1.10 

Out Standing Balances:  

Sale of Goods WHERE RKMP HAS INFLUENCE Oliver Rubber Ind. LLP. 99.42  

Loans Taken KMP Vimal Bhansali  2.19  

Loans Given KMP Manish Bohra 12.50 

Rent Paid KMP Om Prakash Bhansali 2.20 

Managerial Remuneration KMP Om Prakash Bhansali 2.07 

   Vimal Bhansali 1.70 

   Gaurav Bhansali 1.68 

  

DEPOSIT FROM PUBLIC 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of principal or 

interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet. 

 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 

There were no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would impact the 

going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 

There is no change in the nature of business of your Company during the year under review. 

 

CYBER SECURITY 

In view of increased cyber attack scenarios, the cyber security maturity is reviewed periodically and the 

processes, technology controls are being enhanced in-line with the threat scenarios. Your Company‘s technology 

environment is enabled with real time security monitoring with requisite controls at various layers starting from 

end user machines to network, application and the data. 

 

During the year under review, your Company did not face any incidents or breaches or loss of data breach in 

cyber security. 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company recognizes that risk is an integral and inevitable part of business and it is fully committed to 

managing the risks proactively and efficiently. Our success as an organization depends on our ability to identify 

and leverage the opportunities while managing the risks. The Company has a disciplined process for continuously 

assessing risks, in the internal and external environment along with minimizing the impact of risks. The Company 

incorporates the risk mitigation steps in its strategy and operating plans. The objective of the Risk Management 

process is to enable value creation in an uncertain environment, promote good governance, address stakeholder 

expectations proactively, and improve organizational resilience and sustainable growth. 
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The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy which regularly identifies uncertainties and after assessing 

them, devises short term and long-term actions to mitigate any risk which could materially impact the Company‘s 
long-term plans. Mitigation plans for significant risks are well integrated with business plans and are reviewed on 

a regular basis by the senior leadership. Audit Committee has been entrusted by the Board with the responsibility 

of reviewing the risk management process in the Company and to ensure that all short-term and long-term 

implications of key strategic and business risks are identified and addressed by the management. 

 

The Company periodically reviews and improves the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management systems 

considering the rapidly changing business environment and evolving complexities and through the risk 

management process, aims to contain the risk within the risk appetite. 

  

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM 

The Company is committed to highest standards of ethical, moral, compliance and legal conduct of its business. 

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair and transparent 

manner by adoption of highest standard of responsibility, professionalism, honesty and integrity, the Company 

has established a whistle blower policy as per Section 177 (9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 22 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, for the directors and employees of the Company, to report their 

genuine concerns. The Board has adopted the policy to deal with instances of fraud or mismanagement, if any. 

 

The policy also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of directors, or employees or any other 

person who has availed the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit 

Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business 

activities and in line with the best international governance practices. The Company is committed to the high 

standards of Corporate Governance and stakeholder responsibility. 

 

The Company has formulated a vigil mechanism through Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of unethical 

behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of Company‘s code of conduct or ethics policy. The details of the 

policy are explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company. 

 

DISCLOSURE ON CONFIRMATION WITH THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

Your Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial 

Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government 

under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

 

APPLICATION / PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 
2016 (“IBC”) 
During the year under review, no application was made under IBC by or against your Company and no 

proceeding is pending under IBC. 

 

DISCLOSURE ON ONE TIME SETTLEMENT 

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any onetime settlement with the Banks or 

Financial Institutions who have extended loan or credit facilities to the Company. 

 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 

securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The "Code of Fair Disclosure, Internal 

Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders" has been adopted and 

has been disclosed on the website of the Company at www.somiinvestor.com. 
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All the Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

The Company‘s Board of Directors holds responsibility for ensuring and establishing internal financial controls. 

Within the Company, internal control mechanisms for business processes, operational efficiency and compliance 

with all applicable rules and regulations are firmly in place. The Board also evaluates the adequacy and 

effectiveness of such controls. Policies, procedures, control structures and management systems align with the 

concept of Internal Financial Controls under the Companies Act, 2013, established at both entity and process 

levels to ensure compliance, regulatory adherence and accurate financial and operational data recording. 

 

Regular internal inspections and audits are conducted to ensure the efficient execution of obligations. A 

comprehensive assessment of the Company‘s internal controls, accounting procedures and policies is 

undertaken. Senior Management evaluates and certifies the effectiveness of internal control mechanisms over 

financial reporting, adherence to the code of conduct and Company policies and compliance with established 

procedures in financial or commercial transactions, especially in cases of personal interest or potential conflicts of 

interest. 

 

The Company has a clearly defined Governance, Risk & Compliance Framework aligned with Policies, Standard 

Operating Procedures (SOP),Financial & Operational Delegation of Authority (DOA).Our ERP system facilitate 

mapping with role based authority to business & functional team to ensure smooth conduct of their operations 

across the organisation. The internal control system ensures compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. 

The Company has well established Internal audit function. Risk based audit are performed for all businesses, 

functions & locations (Plants, warehouse, Head office).  

The internal financial control process, supports orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence 

to Company‘s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information. 

 

TRANSFERS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

Transfer of Equity Shares: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(6) of the Act and the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 

(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, all the equity shares of any Company in respect of which 

dividend amounts have not been paid or claimed by the shareholders for seven consecutive years or more are 

required to be transferred to demat account of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (IEPF 

Account). 

During the year under review, 15671 equity shares have been transferred to IEPF Authority under Section 125 (6) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 and the IEPF (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. 

Transfer of Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend: 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Act, the dividend which remained unclaimed/ unpaid 

for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend account is required to be transferred to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government.  

During the year under review, unclaimed dividend amount of Rs.  115,509.00 of the Company for the Financial 

Year 2015-16 (Final) has been transferred to IEPF established by the Central Government pursuant to Section 

125 of the Companies Act, 2013 on 4
th
 December, 2023. 

Further, the unpaid final dividend amount pertaining to the financial year 2017-18 will be transferred to IEPF 

during the Financial Year 2025-26. 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Your Company believes in being socially accountable to all its stakeholders and enhancing its positive impact on 
Society and has always laid emphasis on progress with social commitment. We believe strongly in our core 
values of empowerment and betterment of not only the employees but also our communities. The goal of the 
company's CSR programmes is to raise community standards of living while generating long-term benefit for all 
stakeholders. The corporate social responsibility policy of the company lays out instructions for how those 
activities should be carried out. The Company implements its corporate social responsibility programmes either 
independently or in partnership with qualified implementing agencies registered with the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs that work closely with public systems and partners. The Company addresses societal challenges through 
societal development programmes and maintains a focus on improving quality of life. 
 
The company is committed to acting in the best interests of its stakeholders and with a sense of purpose by 
engaging in socio-economic development, which has always been integral to the company's strategic objectives. 
Through its Corporate Social Responsibility, the company envisions an enlightened, equitable society in which 
every individual realises her/his potential with dignity through creating transformative, efficient and lasting 
solutions to their development challenges. Activities in the areas of education, healthcare, communities, ecology, 
and the environment are all included in the company's CSR and sustainability programmes and practises.  

In pursuance of the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy and in line with the requirement of the Companies Act, 
2013, every company has to spend 2% of the average net profits of the Company for the preceding three years 
towards the Corporate Social Responsibility activities as stated in the Companies Act, 2013. In view of the net 
profit before tax for the last 3 years remains less than 5 crore based on the computation as per Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, there is no obligation or requirement for the Company to make a CSR contribution during 
the financial year 2023-2024.   

As required under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to demonstrate the responsibilities towards Social 
upliftment in structured way, the Company has formed a Policy to conduct the task under CSR, during the year. 
The Board has approved a policy for Corporate Social Responsibility and same has been available on the website 
i.e www.somiinvestor.com. The Annual Report on the CSR activities in the format prescribed under Rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, is set out in Annexure-III to this Report. 

 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The governance structure of the company is centered on principles of openness, honesty, professionalism, and 
accountability, all of which contribute to the efficient and transparent execution of the company's strategy and the 
creation of long-term value for its stakeholders, including its shareholders, partners in business, and employees. 
 

The Board is responsible for and committed to sound principles of Corporate Governance in the Company. It 
continues to set high standards of governance which not only meet the applicable legislation but go beyond in 
many areas of our functioning. The Board has ultimate responsibility for the development of strategy, material 
acquisitions and divestments, material capital expenditure, the Company‘s capital structure and other financing 
matters, oversight of policies, procedures and internal controls, setting and monitoring the Company‘s culture and 
promoting ethical behavior. 
 
Additionally, the Company makes sure that it continuously improves and strictly abides by governance best 
practises, not only to increase long-term shareholder value but also to protect the rights of the minority. The 
Company believes that it is its fundamental duty to provide accurate and timely information on the Company's 
performance, management, and governance.  
 

The shareholders, board, and executive management make up the three tiers of the company's governance 
structure. It not only promotes enhanced corporate autonomy, performance management, and the growth of 
business leaders, but also provides higher management accountability and credibility. 
 

A separate report on Corporate Governance Compliance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to 
(i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and paragraph C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is included and forms part of the Annual Report 
along with the requisite Certificate regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance as 
stipulated by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The matters pertaining to industry structure and developments, opportunities and threats, segment -wise/team-

wise performance, outlook, risks and concerns, internal control systems and adequacy, discussion on financial 

and operational performance are detailed in the Report. The Management Discussion and Analysis report for 

the year under review and as stipulated under Schedule V and Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligation 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate section, forming part of the Annual 

Report.  

 

SHARE REGISTRY ACTIVITIES 

All work related to share registry is handled by Link Intime India Private Limited, a Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent registered with SEBI.    

 

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE 

Equity shares of your company continue to remain listed with National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE 

Limited. There are no arrears in payment of listing fees and the stipulated listing fee for financial year 2023-24 has 

been paid. 

 

DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

The shares of your company are traded in dematerialized form either with the National Securities Depository 

Limited (NSDL) or the Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 

 

INSURANCE 

Assets of your Company remain adequately insured against various perils.  
 

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT 

Ensuring the safety and well-being of our employees is of paramount importance. We dedicate significant efforts 

to uphold high standards of Health, Safety, and Environment (HSE) in the workplace, recognizing that any lapses 

in these areas could have serious consequences.  

 
As a firm commitment to Health, Safety and Environment (HSE), we maintain strict adherence to health and 

safety protocols across all our plants and office locations. We regularly conduct health and safety training for 

employees and workers, supplemented by periodic audits and surprise checks to ensure full compliance with all 

protocols.  

 

The goal of Hazard identification is to find and record all possible hazards that may be present at workplace and 

ensuring mitigation or bringing the risk to as low as reasonably possible or acceptable for all routine processes. 

For non-routine processes, we have Permit to Work system which ensures that adequate measures are taken 

before initiating any non-routine activity tasks. 

 

While an accident may cause damage to reputation and incite potential legal actions by local authority, practicing / 

delivering best in class HSE performance has created positive differences to all direct and indirect stakeholders of 

the company. It has enhanced the brand value significantly as well.   

 

In pursuance to HSE Policy your Company‘s management has devoted all their efforts to protect and maintain 
safety environment in the Company. The Company has taken all possible measures to segregate hazardous and 

non-hazardous substances. Health, Safety and Environment involves proactive approach to create safe working 

environment, continuous safety education and training, periodic review of programs and evaluation of incidents. 
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT, IF ANY, AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY FROM FINANCIAL YEAR END AND TILL THE DATE OF THIS REPORT 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company have occurred between 

the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and on the date of this 

report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION 

The information required under Section 197 of the Act and the Rules made there-under, in respect of employees 
of the Company, is as follows:- 

(a) the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
company for the financial year; 

 

Non-Executive Directors Ratio to Median Remuneration 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha NIL 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari NIL 

Ms. Surbhi Rathi NIL 

Ms. Payal Daga  NIL 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Joshi NIL 

Ms. Saraswati Choudhary NIL 

Executive Directors  

Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali 9.39:1 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali 7.56:1 

Mr. Gaurav Bhansali 7.56:1 
 

(b) the percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year; 

 

Name of Person % Increase in remuneration 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha NIL 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari NIL 

Ms. Payal Daga NIL 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Joshi NIL 

Ms. Saraswati Choudhary NIL 

Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali, MD & CEO 9.25% 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali 11.63% 

Mr. Gaurav Bhansali 11.63% 

Mr. Manish Bohra, Chief Financial Officer 14.80% 

Mr. Amit Baxi, Company Secretary 7.80% 

(c) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 11.76% 
 

(d) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of company:102 
 

(e) the explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company 
performance: 
There is no direct relation between the average remuneration of the employees vis-à-vis Company 
Performance 
 
 
 



   

 
 

 

33 

 

OM BHANSALI GROUP 

Somi Conveyor Beltings Ltd. 

(f) comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
company: 

 

Particulars Rs.(in lakhs) 

Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during financial year 

2023-24 (aggregated) 

113.11 

Revenue from operations 10210.69 

Remuneration (as % of revenue) 1.11% 

Profit before tax (PBT) 609.90 

Remuneration (as % of PBT) 18.55% 

(g) variations in the market capitalization of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date 
of the current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase over decrease in 
the market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the 
Company came out with the last public offer in case of listed companies, and in case of unlisted 
companies, the variations in the net worth of the Company as at the close of the current financial 
year and previous financial year: 

 

Particulars Unit As at  

31
st

 Mar 24 

As at  

31
st

 Mar 23 

Variation 

Closing rate of share at BSE Rs. 132.75 36.10 96.65 

Closing rate of share at NSE Rs. 133.10 36.00 97.10 

EPS (Consolidated) Rs. 3.86 2.94 0.92 

Market Capitalization (BSE) Rs.(in lakhs) 15637.49 4252.46 11385.03 

Market Capitalization (NSE) Rs.(in lakhs) 15678.72 4240.68 11438.04 

Price Earning Ratio (BSE) Ratio 34.39 12.28 22.11 

Price Earning Ratio (NSE) Ratio 34.48 12.24 22.24 

 

 
(h) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the 
managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 
Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel is 11.81% 
which is slightly lower than the percentile increase in the remuneration of managerial personnel. 

 
(i) Comparison of each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of 

the Company 
 

Particulars Om Prakash 
Bhansali 
Managing 
Director 

Vimal 
Bhansali 

Whole-Time 
Director 

Gaurav 
Bhansali 

Whole-Time 
Director 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

Company 
Secretary 

 Rs.(in lakhs) Rs.(in lakhs) Rs.(in lakhs) Rs.(in lakhs) Rs.(in lakhs) 

Remuneration 33.90 27.30 27.30 19.61 5.00 

Revenue 10210.69 10210.69 10210.69 10210.69 10210.69 

Remuneration  
(as % of revenue) 

0.33% 0.27% 0.27% 0.19% 0.05% 

Profits before tax 
(PBT) 

609.90 609.90 609.90 609.90 609.90 

Remuneration (as % 
of PBT) 

5.56% 4.48% 4.48% 3.22% 0.82% 

(j) the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors: 
No variable remuneration is provided to the executive directors. 
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(k) the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not 
directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year: NIL 

 

(l) affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company 
The Company‘s remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual 
employees of the Company. Through its compensation package, the Company endeavors to attract, 
retain, develop and motivate a high performance staff. The Company follows a compensation mix of fixed 
pay, benefits and performance based variable pay. Individual performance pay is determined by business 
performance and the performance of the individuals is measured through the annual appraisal process. 
The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

 

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 

The Company expects all its employees to act in accordance with the highest professional and ethical standards 
upholding the principles of integrity and compliance at all times. In this regard, expectations around compliance 
are communicated to the employees through multiple channels. The Company as an equal opportunity employer 
seeks to ensure that the workplace is free of any kind of harassment or inappropriate behaviour. Comprehensive 
policies and procedures have been laid down, to create an environment where there is respect and dignity in 
every engagement. The Company has adopted zero tolerance for sexual harassment at the workplace. This is 
imbibed in the Company‘s culture.  
As an endeavour to educate and empower employees and others within the organisation regarding POSH, virtual 
and classroom awareness sessions were conducted throughout the year. Additionally, an e-learning module is 
also in place for easy learning.  

The Company has formulated a policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at the 

workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013, and the rules thereunder. The required awareness is created by communicating the 

essence of the policy to all employees at regular intervals through assimilation and awareness programs.  

The Company has constituted an Internal Committee (IC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Internal Committee is headed by an Independent person.  

The following are the summary of the complaints received and disposed off during FY 2023-24: 

Particulars Details 

No of Complaints of sexual harassment received in the year NIL 

No of Complaints disposed off during the year Not Applicable 

No of cases pending for more than ninety days Not Applicable 

 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

Research and development are continual operations that play a vital role in supplying inputs for creating new 
products, coming up with energy-saving solutions, improving production processes, and improving product 
quality.  

 

The Company is actively engaged in tapping these fast-emerging opportunities supported by investments in 

manufacturing infrastructure, registrations, research and development to expand the addressable market with 

wider active ingredient portfolio and enhanced customer base. 

The Company is into regular advancement of their machineries, and currently planning for increasing its 

production capacity for which order for few machineries have also been placed. 
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Research and Development team constantly focus on producing innovative products that cater to evolving 

industry needs.  

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

Particulars required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange 

earnings and outgo, are as follows: 

 

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
 

a. Energy Conservation Measures taken 

Continuous and substantial efforts were made to ensure optimum consumption of fuel and electricity at all 

the plants of the company. These efforts resulted in general improvement in the energy consumption of 

the business. 
 

b. Capital Investment on energy conservation equipments 

NIL 

   
FORM A 

I. Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy 

Power & Fuel Consumption Unit of 
Measurement 

Current Year 
(2023-24) 

Previous Year 
(2022-23) 

1. Electricity KWH/MWH   

a) Purchased    

    Unit  24,66,992.00 20,33,960.00 

    Total Amount  2,38,05,203.00 1,96,98,002.00 

    Rate/ Unit  9.65 9.68 

b) Own Generation   NIL NIL NIL 

2. Coal NIL NIL NIL 

3. Furnace oil NIL NIL NIL 

4. Others / internal generation NIL NIL NIL 

 
 

II. Consumption per unit of Production – unit (KMH/MT) 
 

S. No. Product Standard Budget 

Norms (2023-24) 

(Rs) 

Current Year 

(2023-24) 

(Rs) 

Previous Year 

(2022-23) 

(Rs) 

1 Conveyor Belt 125.00 125.10 121.33 

 

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 
FORM B 

Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Technology Absorption 

 

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION 
Your company continues to upgrade its technology to ensure that it remains a frontrunner in its field of operations. 
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(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE 2023-24 2022-23 

Foreign Exchange Earnings - - 

Foreign Exchange Outgo 310.70 366.29 

 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
Your Directors are highly grateful for all the guidance, support and assistance received from the Government 
of India, Governments of various states in India, concerned Government Departments, Financial Institutions 
and Banks. Your Directors thank all the esteemed shareholders, customers, suppliers and business 
associates for their faith, trust and confidence reposed in your Company.  
 
Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation for the dedicated efforts and consistent 
contribution made by the employees at all levels, to ensure that your Company continues to grow and excel. 
 
It will be our endeavor to build and nurture strong links with the trade based on mutual benefits, respect for 
and co-operation with each other, consistent with consumer interests. The Board look forward to continuance 
of the supportive relations and assistance in the future. 

 
 
 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
  SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 

     
 
 
 
 
                                                    O P BHANSALI                              GAURAV BHANSALI 
Place: Jodhpur       (Managing Director)               (Whole time Director) 
DATE: 4THSeptember, 2024       DIN: 00351846                DIN: 00351860 

 
 
 

  

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Annexure – I 
 

Form MR - 3 

Secretarial Audit Report  

for the Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2024 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To,  
The Members 
Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited 
CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 
4F-15, “Oliver House”,  
New Power House Road,  
Jodhpur (Raj.)-342001 
  

 

I have  conducted  the  secretarial  audit  of  the  compliance  of applicable  statutory   provisions  and  the  
adherence  to  good corporate practices by SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED having CIN  
L25192RJ2000PLC016480 (hereinafter called the  company).  Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my 
opinion thereon.  
  

Based on my verification of the SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED books, papers, minute books, forms and 

returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its 

officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 

opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 

 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and  

 proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place; 

 to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by SOMI 

CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED (―the Company‖) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to 

the provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‗SCRA‘) and the rules made thereunder;  

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to the extent of 

Regulation 55A;  

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of 

Foreign Direct  Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;  

(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the  Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‗SEBI Act‘) viz:-  

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011;  

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,2015;  
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c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year 

under review; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year 

under review; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year 

under review; 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; Not 

applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year under review; 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not 

applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year under review; and 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015.  

(vi) Other Laws as applicable to the company [Provided in Appendix B]. 

 

I further report that, based on the information provided by the Company, its officers, authorized representatives 

during the conduct of the audit, in my opinion, adequate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in 

the Company to monitor compliance with applicable general laws like Labor laws, Environment laws and other 

legislations.  

I further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws like Direct and Indirect tax 

laws, Service tax and others detailed under Tax Legislations, I have relied on the representations made by the 

Company, its Officers and Reports issued by the Statutory Auditors. 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India,  

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and 

National Stock Exchange Limited (NSE). 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 

Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. As per the 

minutes of the Board duly recorded and signed by Chairman, the decisions of the Board were unanimous and 

there were no dissenting views to be recorded. 
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I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 

and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

circulars, notifications, directions and guidelines. 

 

I further report that during the period under review the Company in its Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 

8
th
 January, 2024 has approved continuation of appointment of Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali after attaining the age 

of 70 Years. 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Place: Jodhpur     
Date: 26/08/2024 

IRA BAXI                                                                               

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS No.:-5456; CP No.: 4712 
UDIN: F005456F001045792                
PR No.: 2991/2023 

 

 

 

 
 
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Appendix A and forms 
an integral part of this report. 
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APPENDIX -A 
 

To,  
The Members 
Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited 
CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 
4F-15, “Oliver House”,  
New Power House Road,  
Jodhpur (Raj.)-342001 
 

Based on audit, our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and 

maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards 

CSAS 1 to CSAS 4 (―CSAS‖) prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (―ICSI‖). These 
standards require that the auditor complies with statutory and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the 

audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

 

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating controls, there is an 

unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the 

audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the CSAS. Our report of even date is to be read along 

with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.  

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the 

processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.  

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the company and for which I relied on the report of statutory auditor.  

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regulations and happening of events etc.  

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on random test basis.  

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of 

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 

 
 
 
 
Place: Jodhpur     
Date: 26/08/2024 

IRA BAXI                                                                               

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS No.:-5456; CP No.: 4712 
UDIN: F005456F001045792                
PR No.: 2991/2023 
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APPENDIX-B 
 

LIST OF OTHER LAWS APPLICABLE TO SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of Acts/Rules/Regulations 

1. The Competition Act, 2002  

2. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 

3. The Water (Prevention & Control of 
Pollution) Act, 1974 

4. The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) 
Act, 1981 

5. The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 

6. The Hazardous Wastes (Management, 
Handling and Transboundary Movement) 
Rules, 2008 

7. The Factories Act, 1948 

8. The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 

9. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

10. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

11. The Employees‘ State Insurance Act, 1948 

12. The Employees‘ Provident Fund and 
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

13. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

14. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

15. The Contract Labour (Regulation and 
Abolition) Act, 1970 

16. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 

17. The Child Labour (Prohibition and 
Regulation) Act, 1986 

18. The Industrial Employment (Standing 
Orders) Act, 1946 

19. The Employees‘ Compensation Act, 1923 

20. The Apprentices Act, 1961 

21. The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 

22. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 

23. Indian Trade Union Act, 1926 

24. The Person with Disability Act, 1995 

25. The Income Tax Act, 1961 

26. The Central Excise Act, 1944 

27. The Customs Act, 1962 

28. The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 
1999 

29. The Employees Pension Scheme, 1995 

30. Accounting Standards 

31. The Indian Penal Code, 1860 

32. The Indian Evidence Act, 1872 

33. The Code of Criminal Procedure, 1973 

34. The Code of Civil Procedure, 1908 

35. The Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (Prohibition, Prevention & 
Redressal) Act, 2013 

36. The Central Goods And Services Tax Act, 
2017 

37. The Integrated Goods And Services Tax 
Act, 2017 

38. The Union Territory Goods And Services 
Tax Act, 2017 

39. All Rules/Regulations in relation to above 
specified Acts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Place: Jodhpur     
Date: 26/08/2024 

IRA BAXI                                                                            

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS No.:-5456; CP No.: 4712 
UDIN: F005456F001045792                
PR No.: 2991/2023 
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Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 

referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length 

transactions under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis –  

NONE; DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD, ALL TRANSACTIONS WERE AT ARM‘S LENGTH BASIS. 
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: N.A. 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A. 

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A. 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: N.A. 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: N.A. 

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: N.A. 

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso 

to section188: N.A. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis 

NONE; DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD, THERE WAS NO MATERIAL* CONTRACT OR 

ARRANGEMENT. 

(*As defined under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 

adopted by the Board of Directors in the Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company, ―Material 
Related Party Transaction‖ means a transaction with a related party if the transaction / transactions to be 
entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year, exceeds 10% 

of the annual consolidated turnover of the company as per the last audited financial statements of the 

company.) 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: N.A. 

(b) Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions: N.A. 

(c) Duration of the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions: N.A. 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: N.A. 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: N.A. 

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

  SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 
     
 
 
 
 
                                                                  O P BHANSALI                               GAURAV BHANSALI 
Place: Jodhpur    (Managing Director)                        (Whole time Director) 
DATE:  4

th
 September, 2024   DIN: 00351846                      DIN: 00351860 

 

 
 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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Annexure – III 
 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities 
 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy 

Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited (hereafter referred to as the Company) is committed to fulfilling its 

responsibilities towards society in a qualitative manner beyond statutory obligations in line with the 

vision of inculcating good corporate citizenship. Sustained economic performance, environmental and 

social stewardship are the key factor for holistic business growth. Considering the present scenario, 

the focus of Company is to contribute to the sustainable development of the society and environment, 

and to make our planet a better place for future generations.  

As your company deeply committed to our social responsibilities, we are dedicated to positively 

empowering the communities in which we operate. Woven in the ethos of philanthropy and a steadfast 

commitment to giving back, Your company is focused on enhancing the well-being of these 

stakeholders. 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee 

Sr. 

No. 

Name of Director Designation/Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of 

meeting of CSR 

Committee held 

during the year 

Number of 

meeting of CSR 

Committee 

attended during 

the year 

1. Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali Chairman/Executive Director 1 1 

2. Mr. Vimal Bhansali Member/ Executive Director 1 1 

3. Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha Member/Non-Executive 

Independent Director 

1 1 

 

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the 

board are disclosed on the website of the Company: 

https://www.somiinvestor.com/board-committees 

https://www.somiinvestor.com/images/pdf/Policies/SOMI_-_Corporate_Social_Responsibility_Policy.pdf 

 

 

4. Executive Summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out 

in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 

Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable 

 

5. (a) Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5):Not Applicable as the average net 

profit of the Company for the last three financial years does not exceed the limit of 5 Crore. 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5):Nil 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial 

year: Not Applicable 

(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable 

(e)Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]:Nil 

 
 

6. (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project). 

Since the Company does not have liability towards CSR pursuant to section 135, no expenditure has 

been made on CSR Projects.  

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. NIL 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable. Not Applicable 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)].Nil 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:  
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Total Amount Spent for the 
Financial Year (in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

 Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per Sec 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135 (5) 

 Amount Date of Transfer Name of Fund Amount Date of Transfer 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

 

(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 

 
S. No. Particulars Amount (in Rs) 

(1) (2) (3) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) Nil 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year  Nil 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years, if any 

Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil 
 
 

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 

S. 

No. 

Preceding 

Financial 

Year 

Amount 

transferred 

to 

Unspent CSR 

Account 

under 

Section 

135(6) (in 

Rs.) 

Balance 

Amount in 

Unspent 

CSR 

Account 

under 

subsection 

(6) of 

section 135 

(in Rs.) 

Amount 

spent in the 

reporting 

Financial 

Year (in Rs.) 

Amount transferred to a fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per second 

proviso to sub section 5 of Section 135, if 

any 

Amount 

remaining 

to be 

spent in 

succeeding 

Financial 

Years 

(in Rs) 

Deficiency, if 

any 

Amount (In 

Rs) 

Date of Transfer  

1         

2     N.A.    

3         

 TOTAL        

 

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the Financial Year: 

                       Yes            No 

 

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired 

 

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the Financial Year: 
Sl. 

No. 

Short particulars of the 

property or asset(s) 

[including complete 

address and location of 

the property] 

Pincode of 

The 

property 

or asset(s) 

Date of 

Creation 

Amount 

of CSR 

amount 

spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ 

beneficiary of the registered owner 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 

     CSR 

Registration 

Number, if 

Applicable 

Name Registered 

address 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profits 

as per Section 135(5): N.A. 

 

                         O P BHANSALI 
Place: Jodhpur        (Managing Director and Chairman) 
Date: 4

th
September, 2024        DIN: 00351846 

Not Applicable 
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In terms of Regulation 34(3) read with Section C of Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, a Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st 

March, 2024 is presented below: 

I. A Brief Statement on Listed Entity’s Philosophy on Code of Governance 

The Corporate Governance framework and philosophy is a reflection of the Company‘s corporate culture, 
policies, values and relationship with stakeholders which is driven relentlessly across the organisation. The 

governance philosophy embraces the tenets of transparency, independence, accountability, fair and timely 

disclosures and ethical corporate citizenship as means for implementing framework in letter and spirit 

which is further integrated into the Company‘s growth strategy and shall continue to remain a guiding force 

for the years to come.   

 

Integrity and transparency are key to our corporate governance practices and performance, and ensure 

that we gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders at all times. At SCBL, it is imperative that our 

Company affairs are managed in a fair and transparent manner. Corporate governance brings direction 

and control to the affairs of the Company in a fashion that ensures optimum return for stakeholders.  

 

Corporate governance is the broad framework which defines the way the Company functions and interacts 

with its environment. It is in compliance with laws and regulations in each of the markets the Company 

operates, leading to effective management of the organisation. Moreover, SCBL in its journey towards 

sustainability is integrating sustainability practices in its corporate governance system which goes beyond 

compliance. 

 

Your Company is open, accessible and consistent with its communication. SCBL shares a long term 

perspective and firmly believes that good corporate governance practices underscore its drive towards 

competitive strength and sustained performance. Thus, overall corporate governance norms have been 

institutionalized as an enabling and facilitating business process at the Board, Management and at all 

operational levels. 

      Our governance framework is the bedrock of our ethical and resilient organisation, enabling our continued 
leadership in the belting industry. Through good –governance, we arrive at effective decision-making that 
is aligned with our values. 
 

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, 

direction and performance of the Company and has been vested with requisite powers, authorities and 

duties. The primary role of the Board is that of trusteeship – to protect and enhance shareholder value.  

 

The Board is, inter alia, responsible for: 
(a) formulation of long-term business plan & strategy and monitoring its implementation; 
(b) enhancing shareholder value and overseeing the interests of all stakeholders through effective 

management; 
(c) monitoring the effectiveness of the Company‘s Corporate Governance practices; and 
(d) exercising effective control of the functioning of the Company to ensure the fulfilment of 

stakeholder expectations and long-term value creation. 
 

      The Directors take an active part in the deliberations at the Board and Committee meetings and provide 
guidance and advice to the management on various aspects of business, strategy, long-term value 
creation, governance, risk and compliance. 
 

Report on Corporate Governance 
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There is an optimal combination of Executive Directors and Independent Directors on the Board of the 

Company, representing a judicious mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience. The Directors bring 

in expertise in the fields of strategy, management, human resource development, legal, finance and 

economics, among others. The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent 

view to the Company‘s management while discharging its fiduciary responsibilities, thereby ensuring that 

the management adheres to high standards of ethics, transparency and disclosure. 

a) Composition of Board 

The Board of the Company, being the highest governance authority within the Management structure of 
the Company, is at the core of our Corporate Governance practices. Driven by the values of ethical 
standards and robust governance framework of the Company, the Board strives to work in the best interest 
of the Company and its stakeholders.  
 

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board in its success. We believe that 
a truly diverse Board will leverage differences in thought, perspective, regional and industry experience, 
cultural and geographical background, age, ethnicity, race, gender, knowledge, skills and other domains, 
which will ensure that SCBL retains its competitive advantage. 

 
The size and composition of the Board meets the requirements of Regulation17(1) of Listing Regulations. 

The Company‘s Board of Directors consists of Eight Executive and Non-Executive Directors, including 

leading professionals in their respective fields. Percentage of Executive and Non-Executive Directors of 

the Company is 37.5% and 62.5% respectively as on March 31, 2024. 

 

The Non-Executive Directors are eminent and experienced persons in their respective fields of industry, 

finance, accountancy and law. 

As per the declarations received by the Company from each of the Directors, none of them are disqualified 

under Section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Independent Directors of the Company are in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 16(1)(b) of 

the Listing Regulations. Further, disclosures have been made by the Directors regarding their 

Chairmanships/ Memberships of the mandatory Committees of the Board and that the same are within the 

maximum permissible limit as stipulated under Regulation 26(1) of the Listing Regulations. 

The details of each member of the Board along with the number of Directorship(s)/ Committee 

Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) and date of joining the Board are provided here in below: 

 

 

 

3 

5 

Category of Director 

Executive

Non-Executive (Including

Independent Directors)
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Composition and Directorship(s) / Committee Membership(s)/Chairmanship(s) as on 31
st

 March, 2024 

Name of the Director Category* Number 
of shares 

held in 
the 

Company 

Date of 
Original 

Appointment 

No. of outside 
Directorship 

in Public 
Limited  

Companies 

No. of Committee 
Position Held in 

other Companies 

Chairman Member 

Mr. Om Prakash 

Bhansali 

PE &MD 4417011 16/06/2000 1 NIL NIL 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali PE&WTD 598840 16/06/2000 NIL NIL NIL 

Mr. Gaurav Bhansali PE &WTD 577305 16/06/2000 NIL NIL NIL 

Mr. Mahendra 

Rakhecha 

INE - 30/09/2006 1 NIL NIL 

Mr. Yogesh 

Maheshwari 

INE - 10/01/2007 NIL NIL NIL 

Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Joshi 

INE - 22/02/2021 NIL NIL NIL 

Ms. Payal Daga NEW - 30/09/2022 NIL NIL NIL 

Ms. Saraswati 

Choudhary 

INEW - 27/12/2022 NIL NIL NIL 

*PE = Promoter Executive, MD = Managing Director, INE = Independent Non- Executive, WTD = Whole Time 

Director,   NEW=Non-Executive Woman, INEW = Independent Non-Executive Woman 

 

b) Appointment and Tenure 

The Directors of the Company are appointed by Members at the General Meetings. In accordance with the 

Articles of Association of the Company, all Directors, except the Managing Director, Whole-Time Director 

and Independent Directors of the Company, step down at the Annual General Meeting each year and, if 

eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The Managing Director and Whole-Time Director(s) of the 

Company are appointed for a term of five years as per the requirement of the statute. 
 

As regards the appointment and tenure of Independent Directors, following is the policy adopted by the 

Board: 

 The Company has adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of Independent 

Directors which are consistent with the Act and Listing Regulations. 

 The Independent Directors can serve a maximum of two terms of five years each, after the introduction 

of the Act. 

 The Company would not have any upper age limit of retirement of Independent Directors from the 

Board and their appointment and tenure will be governed by provisions of the Act and the Listing 

Regulations. 

 The Company shall ensure that the appointment of any Non-Executive Director who has attained the 

age of 75 years is approved by the Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution. 

c) Board Procedure 

The Company Secretary is responsible for collation, review and distribution of all papers submitted to the 

Board and Committees thereof for consideration. The Company Secretary is also responsible for 

preparation of the Agenda and convening of the Board and Committee Meetings. The Company Secretary 

attends all the Meetings of the Board and its Committees. The Company Secretary advises / assures the 

Board and its Committees on Compliance and Governance principles and ensures appropriate recording 

of minutes of the Meetings.  
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d) Number of Board Meetings and Attendance Record of Directors 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy 

apart from other Board businesses. The Board / Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled and a tentative 

annual calendar of the Board and Committee Meetings is circulated to the Directors well in advance to 

facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in 

case of a special and urgent business need, the Board‘s approval is taken by passing resolutions by 

circulation, as permitted by law, which are noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board Meeting. 

 

The Board business generally includes consideration of important corporate actions and events including:- 

 quarterly and annual results announcements; 

 oversight of the performance of the business; 

 declaration of dividends; 

 development and approval of overall business strategy; 

 board succession planning; 

 review of the functioning of the Committees; and  

 other strategic, transactional and governance matters as required under the Act, Listing Regulations 

and other applicable legislations. 

 

The particulars of Board Meetings held during 2023-24 as well as attendance of Directors at the Board 

Meetings and the last AGM are provided below: 

Details of Board Meetings 

S.No Date of Board Meeting 

1. 02/05/2023 

2. 30/05/2023 

3. 12/08/2023 

4. 04/09/2023 

5. 20/10/2023 

6. 08/11/2023 

7. 11/12/2023 

8. 12/02/2024 

9. 01/03/2024 

10. 30/03/2024 

Attendance Record of Board of Directors 

Name of Director Number of Board Meetings Whether attended last 

AGM held on 

30.09.2023 
Held Attended 

Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali 10 10 Yes 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali 10 10 Yes 

Mr. Gaurav Bhansali 10 10 Yes 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha 10 10 Yes 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari 10 10 Yes 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Joshi 10 10 Yes 

Ms. Payal Daga 10 10 Yes 

Ms. Saraswati Choudhary 10 10 Yes 
 

 

The maximum interval between any two Meetings was well within the maximum allowed gap of 120 days. 
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e) Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali and Mr. Gaurav Bhansali, Promoter Executive and Whole-time Directors on the Board 

of Directors are the sons of Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali, Promoter Executive and Managing Director. 

 

f) Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors 

None of the Non-Executive Directors hold any share in the Company. 

 

g) Familiarization Programme for Directors 

The company conducts the Familiarization program when new Director(s) is/are appointed during the year. 

The Program aims to provide insights into the Company to enable the Independent Directors to understand 

its business in depth, to familiarize them with the process, business, and functionaries of the Company and 

to assist them in performing their role as Independent Directors of the Company. 

 

These include orientation programmes upon induction of new Directors as well as other initiatives to 

update the Directors on a continuous basis. The new Directors of the Company are provided with an 

induction kit which includes the Annual Report, overview of the Company, charters of the Committees, 

annual calendar of Board and Committee Meetings, Code of Conduct for Non-Executive Directors 

including Independent Directors, Company‘s Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code 
of Corporate Disclosure Practices, etc.  

The provision of an appropriate Familiarization programme for the Independent Directors to provide them 

an opportunity to familiarize with the Company, its Management and its operations so as to gain a clear 

understanding of their roles, rights and responsibilities and contribute significantly towards the growth of 

the Company. They have full opportunity to interact with Senior Management Personnel and are provided 

all the documents required and sought by them for enabling them to have a good understanding of the 

Company, its business model and various operations and the industry of which it is a part.The Independent 

Directors, from time to time, requests management to provide detailed understanding of any specific 

project, activity or process of the Company. The management provides such information and training either 

at the meeting of Board of Directors or otherwise. 

The Familiarization programme is designed as such to: 

a. build an understanding of the Company, its businesses and the markets and regulatory environment in 

which it operates; 

b. provide an appreciation of the role and responsibilities of the Director; 

c. fully equip Directors to perform their role on the Board effectively; and 

d. develop understanding of Company‘s people and its key stakeholder relationships. 
 

Upon appointment, Directors receive a Letter of Appointment setting out in detail, the terms of 
appointment, duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. The details of Familiarization 
programme for Directors is available on Company‘s Website at 
https://somiinvestor.com/images/pdf/Policies/SOMI_-_Familiarization_Programme_for_IDs.pdf 

 
h) Skills/ Expertise/ Competence of the Board of Directors including the areas as 

identified by the   Board in the Context of the Company’s Business 

 

The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of a diverse Board and is endowed with 

appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives, thereby ensuring effective Board 

governance. The Company is committed towards ensuring that the Directors being appointed on the Board 

have certain key skills, expertise and competencies, which shall help in effective functioning of the 

Company. The Board, in addition to having the basic skills and competencies, such as Leadership qualities 

and adequate financial knowledge, possesses the following key skills/ expertise/competencies: 
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1. Leadership, hands on experience on conveyor belts industry and operational experiences in sourcing, 

manufacturing, marketing and business development, R&D innovation. 

2. Strong technical knowledge of the industry in which Company operates including implementation of 

latest technology equipment tools and dies, etc. 

3. Strategy planning. 

4. Behavioral skills- attributes, competencies, experience in Computer and Information Technology to 

use their knowledge and skills to contribute effectively to the growth of the Company. 

5. Leadership, Accounting, financial management, cost expertise and banking.  

6. Safety, Risk managements, Legal and Industrial Relation & Human Relationship expertise and 

Corporate Governance. 

 

Name of the 
Directors 

Strategy 
Planning 
& 
Implemen
tation 

Business 
Leadershi
p 

Corporate 
Governanc
e, Ethics 

Informatio
n 
Technolog
y  

Human 
Relationshi
p expertise 

Risk 
management
s, Legal and 
Industrial 
Relation 

financial 
manageme
nt, cost 
expertise 
and 
banking 

Mr. Om 
Prakash 
Bhansali 

YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

Mr. Mahendra 
Rakhecha 

YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

Mr. Vimal 
Bhansali 

YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

Mr. Gaurav 
Bhansali 

YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

Mr.Yogesh 
Maheshwari 

YES YES YES YES YES YES YES 

Mr.Santosh 
Kumar Joshi _ _ YES YES YES YES _ 

Ms. Payal 
Daga 

_ _ YES YES YES _ YES 

Ms. Saraswati 
Choudary _ YES YES _ YES _ _ 

 
i) Confirmation that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the 

conditions specified in these Regulations and are Independent of the Management 

Based on the declaration submitted by the Independent Directors of the Company provided at the 

beginning of the Financial Year 2023-24, the Board hereby certifies that all the Independent Directors 

appointed by the Company fulfill the conditions specified in these Regulations and are independent of the 

management. 

 

j) Separate Meeting of Independent Directors  

For the Board to exercise free and fair judgment in all matters related to the functioning of the Company as 

well as the Board, it is important for the independent directors to have meetings without the presence of 

the executive management. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under mandate 

that the independent directors of the Company shall hold at least one meeting in a financial year, without 

the attendance of non-independent directors and members of the Management. Even before the 

Companies Act, 2013 came into effect, our Board‘s process mandated periodic meetings attended 

exclusively by the independent directors. 

 
The Independent Directors met on March 29, 2024, inter alia, to discuss: 

i. Evaluation of performance of Non-independent Directors. Audit Committee members and the Board 

of Directors as a whole; 
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ii. Evaluation of performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the 

Executive and Non-Executive Directors; 

iii. Evaluation of the quality, content and timeliness of flow of information between the Management and 

the board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 
 

Attendance Record of Meetings of Independent Directors  

Name of Director Number of Board Meetings  

Held Attended 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha 1 1 
Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari 1 1 
Mr. Santosh Kumar Joshi 1 1 
Ms. Saraswati Choudhary 1 1 

 
During the year, the independent directors met One time. At such meeting, the independent directors 

discussed, among other matters, the performance of the Company and risks faced by it, the flow of 

information to the Board, competition, strategy, leadership strengths and weaknesses, governance, 

compliance, Board movements, succession planning, human resources matters and the performance of 

the executive members of the Board, and the Chairman. In addition to these formal meetings, interactions 

outside the Board Meetings also take place between the Chairman and Independent Directors. 

 

k) Code of Conduct 

The Company has its Code of conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Management of the 

company. All Board Members and senior Management personnel have affirmed compliance of the Code of 

Conduct. A Declaration signed by the Managing Director to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report. 

l) Board Evaluation 

During the year, in terms of the requirements of the Act and Listing Regulations, Board Evaluation was 

completed by the Company internally which included the Evaluation of the Board as a whole, Board 

Committees and Directors. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for 

evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors including Independent Directors and Committees 

of the Board.  

 

The criteria are in the form of questionnaire for annual evaluation on functioning and effectiveness of the 

Board, Committees and Individual Directors. The Executive Directors, SMPs and Employees are evaluated 

based on the overall performance of the Company, their respective goals, Business Unit / Functional goals 

and achievement of strategic goals under Project Leap together with sustainability targets under the 

Environment Social and Governance (ESG) framework. 

 

The Evaluation process is based on the criteria specified by Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

focused on various aspects of the functioning of the Board and Committees such as composition of the 

Board and Committees, experience and competencies, performance of specific duties and obligations, 

governance issues etc. Board Evaluation was carried out on parameters such as 

• Performance of Directors 

• Governance & Compliance 

• Participation at the Board/Committee meetings 

• Commitment 

• Effective deployment of knowledge and expertise 

• Relationship with Stakeholders 

• Integrity & Confidentiality 

• Independence of Behaviour and Judgement 

• Peer evaluation 
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The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the Board of its own 

performance and that of its committees and individual directors. Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 

states the performance evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, 

excluding the director being evaluated. 

The results of the Evaluation were shared with the Board, Chairman of respective Committees and 

individual Directors. Based on the outcome of the Evaluation, the Board and Committees have agreed on 

an action to further improve the effectiveness and functioning of the Board and Committees. The Chairman 

of respective Board Committees also shared the results of evaluation with the respective Committee 

Members. The Board approved the evaluation results as collated by the nomination and remuneration 

committee. 

 

Feedback Mechanism: The results of evaluation showed high level of commitment and engagement of 

Board, its various committees and senior leadership. The Board was satisfied with overall performance & 

effectiveness of the Board, Committee and Individual Directors and appreciated Company‘s ethical 

standards, transparency and progress on sustainability during the year. The Board Members also provided 

their inputs on the Board processes, areas of improvement and the matters for enhancing the overall 

effectiveness of the Board. It was noted that the Board as a whole is functioning as an effective and 

cohesive body. 

 

m) Whistle Blower Policy 

In line with the Act and Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a Whistle-Blower Policy to raise 

concerns about any violations of legal or regulatory requirements, incorrect or misrepresentation of any 

financial statements and reports, suspected misconduct, unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 

incidents of fraud or violation of Code of Conduct that could adversely impact the Company‘s operations, 
business performance and / or reputation, in a secure and confidential manner. 

The policy provides a channel to the employees to report to the management concerns about unethical 

behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the code of conduct policy. The mechanism provides for 

adequate safeguards against victimization of employees to avail of the mechanism and also provides for 

direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the personnel of the 

Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle blower Policy has been uploaded 

on the website of the Company at http://www.somiinvestor.com/images/pdf/Policies/SOMI_ 

_Whistle_Blower_Policy.pdf 

III. Governance by the Committees of the Board  

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been 

constituted to deal with specific areas / activities as mandated by applicable regulation; which concern the 

Company and need a closer review. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the 

Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by Members of the Board, 

as a part of good governance practice. 

 

The Committees of the Board (‗Committee‘) play an important role in the governance by focusing on 

specific areas and making informed decisions within the delegated authority. Majority of the members 

constituting the Committees are Independent Directors and each Committee is guided by its Charter or 

Terms of Reference or Policy, which provides for the composition, scope, powers & duties and 

responsibilities. The recommendations, observations and decisions of the Committees are placed before 

the Board for information/consideration. The Chairman of the respective Committee informs the Board 

about the summary of the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The minutes of the meeting of all 

Committees are placed before the Board for review.  
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The Board had the following Committees during the year 2023-24:  

1. Audit Committee;  

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee;  

3. Stakeholders‘ Relationship Committee; 

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

a) Audit Committee 

Details of the Composition of the Audit Committee, meetings and attendance of the members 

are as follows: 

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of Regulation18 of the SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as under: 

Name of Member Category 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Joshi (Chairman)  Non- Executive and Independent Director 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari(Member) Non- Executive and Independent Director 

Mr. Gaurav Bhansali (Member) Whole-Time Director 

All the members of the Committee have relevant experience in financial matters. The CFO, the Internal Auditor 

and the Statutory Auditors are invitees to the meetings of the Audit Committee. 

 

The Committee reviews various aspects of internal controls and the internal auditors‘ report. The requirements 
under Regulation18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time-to-time are also reviewed 

by the committee. 

 

The Audit Committee has met Four times during the financial year 2023-24 on: 

May 30, 2023; August 12, 2023; November 08, 2023 and February 12, 2024 

 

Details of meetings attended by the members of the Audit Committee during the financial 

year 2023-24 are as follows: 

 

Name of Committee 

Member 

Category Position Number of Committee 

Meetings  

Held Attended 

Mr. Santosh Kumar 

Joshi  

Non- Executive and 

Independent Director 

Chairman 4 4 

Mr. Yogesh 

Maheshwari 

Non-Executive and 
Independent Director 

Member 4 4 

Mr. Gaurav Bhansali Whole-Time Director Member 4 4 

Terms of reference: 

Powers of Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee shall have the following powers: 

1. to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, 

2. to seek information from any employee, 

3. to obtain outside legal or other professional advice, and 

4. to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary. 
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ROLE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

1. Oversight of the company‘s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to 
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor‘s report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to: 

a) Matters required to be included in the Director‘s Responsibility Statement in terms of Clause (c) of 

sub-section 3 of Section 134 of Companies Act,2013. 

b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same. 

c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings. 

e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements. 

f) Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

g) Qualifications in the draft audit report. 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for 

approval; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue 

(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than 

those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency 

monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations 

to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Review and monitor the auditor‘s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process; 
8. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, the internal control 

system ; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 

department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 

frequency of internal audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on; 

15. Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the 

matter to the board; 

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as 

well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

17. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

18. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism; 

19.  Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the 

finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and back 

ground, etc. of the candidate; 

20. Review of Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations;  

21. Review statement of significant related party transactions submitted by Management;  

22. Review of management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

23. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. 

The Chairman of the Audit Committee has confirmed to the Board that the Audit Committee during the year 

under review has complied with all the roles assigned to it pursuant to the Act and Listing Regulations. 
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Role of Internal Auditor 

The Company has a well-established and independent Internal Audit function, which provides assurance to the 

management, on design and operating effectiveness of internal controls and systems, as well as suggest 

improvements to systems and processes. Internal Audit assesses and promotes strong ethics and values 

within the organisation and facilitates maintaining and monitoring the internal control environment. Internal 

Audit responsibilities encompass all locations, operating entities and geographies of the Company, in which all 

aspect of business, viz. operational, financial, information systems and regulatory compliances are reviewed 

periodically. 

The Internal Audit has a well laid down internal audit methodology, which emphasis on risk based internal 

audits using data analytics. The Internal Audit prepares a rolling annual internal audit plan, comprising of 

operational, financial, compliance and information systems audits, covering all the locations, operations and 

geographies of the Company. The audit plan for the year is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee at 

the beginning of each financial year. 

 

The Internal Auditor reports to both, the Chairman and the Audit Committee of the Company. On quarterly 

basis, the Internal Auditor reports to the Audit Committee, the key internal audit findings, and action plan 

agreed with the management, the status of audits vis-à-vis the approved annual audit plan and status of open 

audit issues. Direct reporting to the Chairman and the Audit Committee establishes Internal Audit as a function 

independent from the business. 

b) Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

Details of the Composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance 

of the members are as follows: 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of 

Regulation19 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

The composition of this Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as under: 

Name of Member Category 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari (Chairman & member) Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha (Member) Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Joshi (Member) Non-Executive Independent Director 

 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has met Three times during the financial year 2023-24 on: 

September 04, 2023, November 08, 2023 and December 11, 2023. 
 

The attendance of members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee at the committee meeting during the 

year ended March 31, 2024 is as under: 

 

Name of Committee Member Category Position Number of Committee Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari Non-Executive and 
Independent Director 

Chairman 3 3 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha Non-Executive and 
Independent Director 

Member 3 3 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Joshi  Non-Executive and 
Independent Director 

Member 3 3 

Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 

Director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and Other Employees. 
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2. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of 

Directors.  

3. Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors. 

4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment 

and removal. 

5. To see that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 

motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully. 

6. To see that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks.  

7. To see that remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a 

balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives 

appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 

8. To decide whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the 

basis of the report of performance evaluation of Independent Directors. 

9. Recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior Management. 

 

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors: 

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with Schedule II of SEBI (LODR), 

Regulations, 2015,The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board has laid out the evaluation 

criteria for performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees and all the individual directors. 

Details of Remuneration to all the directors: 
 

a) Executive Directors 

The Company has one Managing Director Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali and Two Whole-Time Directors Mr. Vimal 

Bhansali and Mr. Gaurav Bhansali. The remuneration payable to them has been fixed by the Board of 

Directors as per Section 197, 198 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 after receiving sanction 

from the Shareholders in the duly convened General Meeting. The remuneration policy is directed towards 

rewarding performance. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company shall, inter-alia, evaluate 

the performance of the Executive Directors.  

 

Details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors of the Company during the year 
ended March 31, 2024 is given below: 
 

Annual Amount in Rs. 

Name of Directors Remuneration Commission Value of 
Perquisites/ 
Reimbursement 
of Expenses 

Sitting 
Fees 

Total 
Remuneration 

(Per Annum) 

Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali,  

Managing Director 

Rs. 33,90,000/- 

 

NIL NIL NIL Rs. 33,90,000/- 

 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali,  

Whole time Director 

Rs. 27,30,000/- 

 

NIL NIL NIL Rs. 27,30,000/- 

 

Mr. Gaurav Bhansali, 
Whole time Director 

Rs. 25,80,000/- 

 

NIL NIL NIL Rs. 25,80,000/- 

 

TOTAL Rs.88,50,000/- NIL NIL NIL Rs.88,50,000/- 

 

b) Non-Executive and Independent Directors 

The Company has no pecuniary relationship or transaction with its Non-executive and Independent Directors 

other than payment of sitting fees to them for attending Board and Committee meetings. Non- Executive and 

Independent Directors have been paid remuneration by way of sitting fee. 
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Details of sitting fees and commission paid to Independent Directors during the financial year 
2023-24 is given below: 

Name of Non-Executive &  Independent 

Directors 

Sitting Fee for Board/Audit Committee/ Other 

Committee Meeting attended 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari 19000/- 

Mr. Santosh Kumar Joshi 18000/- 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha 16000/- 

Mrs. Saraswati Choudhary  11000/- 

Mrs. Payal Daga 10000/- 

The company does not have any Employee‘s Stock Option Scheme and there is no separate provision for 

payment of Severance fee. 

 

c) Stakeholder Relationship Committee 

Details of the Composition of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee and attendance of the 

members are as follows: 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of 

Regulation 20 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The composition of this Committee as on March 31, 2024 is as under: 

Name of Member Category 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari (Chairman) Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha (Member) Non-Executive Independent Director 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali (Member) Whole-Time Director 

Terms of reference 

This Committee has been formed with a view to undertake the following: - 

1. Approval of transmission of shares/debentures issued by the Company, issue of duplicate certificates 

and certificates after split/consolidation/replacement. 

2. Looking into the redressal of shareholders‘ and investors‘ complaints and other areas of investor 

services. 

3. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to 

transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue 

of new/ duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

4. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 

5. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

6. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of 

unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices 

by the shareholders of the Company. 

 

Pursuant to Regulation 6 of Listing Regulations, Mr. Amit Baxi, Company Secretary, acts as the Compliance 

Officer of the Company and Secretary to the Committee. 
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The shareholders/investors can send shares/debentures related complaints, if any, through e-mail Id: - 

md@somiconveyor.com designated exclusively for this purpose. 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee has met only once during the financial year 2023-24 on March 29, 

2024. 
 

The attendance of members of Stakeholders Relationship Committee at the committee meeting during the 

year ended March 31, 2024 is as under: 

Name of Committee 
Member 

Category Position Number of Committee 
Meetings  

Held Attended 

Mr. Yogesh Maheshwari Non-Executive and Independent 
Director 

Chairman 1 1 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha Non-Executive and Independent 
Director 

Member 1 1 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali Whole-Time Director Member 1 1 

 

Status of Shareholders’/Investors’ Complaints for the period 01st April, 2023 to 31st March, 
2024 
 

Opening Balance Complaints Received during 

the year 2023-24 

Complaints Resolved during 

the year 2023-24 

Closing 

Balance 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 

Mr. Amit Baxi, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer for resolution of Shareholder‘s/Investor‘s 
complaints. During the Financial Year ended 31

st 
March, 2024, no Complaint was received from the 

Shareholders. 

 

 

d) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 

Details of the Composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and attendance 

of the members are as follows: 

 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company is constituted in line with the provisions of 

Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 

2014.The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company comprises of three directors namely Mr. 

Om Prakash Bhansali (Chairman) and has Mr. Vimal Bhansali and Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha as its Members. 

During the year, the Committee met once on March 29, 2024.  

 
The Committee consists of three Directors and the attendance of each committee member is as under: 

Name of Committee Member Category Position Number of Committee 

Meetings  

Held Attended 

Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali  
 

Managing Director Chairman 1 1 

Mr. Vimal Bhansali 
 

Whole-Time Director Member 1 1 

Mr. Mahendra Rakhecha 
 

Non- Executive and 

Independent Director 

Member 1 1 
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Terms of Reference 
1. Formulation and Recommendation to the Board, a CSR Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by 

the company as specified in Schedule VII; 

2. Recommendation of amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred in Schedule VII; 

3. Monitoring the CSR Policy of the company from time to time. 

4. Ensuring that the programs, projects and activities supported through Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited are 

aligned with the approved CSR policy of the Company and Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Act; 

5. Reviewing and approving annual budgets with respect to CSR programs; 

6. In case the Company is not able to spend the stipulated two percent of the average net profits of the 

preceding three financial years or any part thereof, the CSR Committee shall provide the reasons for not 

spending the amount to the Board; the reasons shall also be included in the Board‘s report; 
7. Receiving and reviewing reports from Implementing Partners to assess the performance and effectiveness 

of projects supported by the Company; 

8. Reviewing the findings and recommendations regarding the CSR initiatives from any investigation or audit 

conducted by regulatory agencies or external auditors or consultants; 

9. Responding to any query, observation or clarification sought by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any 

other regulatory authority with regard to the Company‘s CSR supported initiatives; 
10. Ensuring that the Company‘s website displays the approved CSR policy of the Company; 

11. Developing and institutionalizing a CSR reporting mechanism in terms of Section 135 of the Act and Rule 8 

of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. 

 

e) Senior management: 
Particulars of senior management including the changes therein since the close of the previous financial 
year. 

 

S.NO. NAME DESIGNATION 

1 KUNAL SHARMA GM-PRODUCTION 

2 VB SINGH DGM-PRODUCTION 

3 DHANANJAI BHANSALI AVP MARKETING 

4 DHARMENDRA SOLANKI SR. EXECUTIVE ACCOUNTS 

5 TARUN KALIRANA SR. EXECUTIVE PSU MARKETING 

6 TAIHSEEN SAKREKAR SR. EXECUTIVE MARKETING 

7 LOKESH JAIN SR. EXECUTIVE-PROJECT 

 

IV. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary Company. 
 

V. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

Last three Annual General Meetings of your Company were held at the venue and time as 
detailed herein below: 

Financial 
Year 

Date of AGM Time of 
Meeting 

Venue of AGM 

2022-23—23
rd

  
AGM 

30.09.2023 11.30 a.m 4F-15, ―Oliver House‖, New Power House Road, Jodhpur-
342 003 

2021-22--22
nd

 
AGM 

30.09.2022 11.30 a.m 4F-15, ―Oliver House‖, New Power House Road, Jodhpur-
342 003 

2020-21 – 21
st
 

AGM 
30.09.2021 11.30 a.m 4F-15, ―Oliver House‖, New Power House Road, Jodhpur-

342 003 

http://s.no/
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WHETHER ANY SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN THE PREVIOUS THREE AGMs: 

1. In the 23
rd

 Annual General Meeting held on 30
th
 September, 2023, Three Special Resolutions were 

proposed and passed pertaining to: 

a) Approval for increase in remuneration package of Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali, Managing Director of 

the Company with effect from 01/10/2023, to the extent of Rs. 2,95,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh 

Ninety Five Thousand ) per month including HRA, Special Perquisite and Bonus etc pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 197, read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014. 

b) Approval for increase in remuneration package of Mr. Vimal Bhansali, Whole-Time Director of the 

Company with effect from 01/10/2023, to the extent of Rs. 2,40,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh Forty 

Thousand) per month including HRA, Special Perquisite and Bonus etc pursuant to the provisions 

of Section 197, read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

c) Approval for increase in remuneration package of Mr. Gaurav Bhansali, Whole-Time Director of 

the Company with effect from 01/10/2023, to the extent of Rs. 2,40,000/- (Rupees Two Lakh Forty 

Thousand) per month including HRA, Special Perquisite and Bonus etc pursuant to the provisions 

of Section 197, read with Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

2. In the 22
nd

 Annual General Meeting held on 30
th
 September, 2022, no Special Resolutions were 

proposed and passed. 

3. In the 21
st

 Annual General Meeting held on 30
th
 September, 2021, no Special Resolutions were 

proposed and passed. 

EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW 
 

Financial 
Year 

Date of EGM Time of 
Meeting 

Venue of EGM 

2023-24 
EOGM 

08.01.2024 11.30 a.m 4F-15, ―Oliver House‖, New Power House Road, Jodhpur-
342 003 

 
WHETHER ANY SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED IN THE EOGM: 
 

In the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 8
th
 January, 2024, One Special Resolutions were proposed and 

passed pertaining to Approval for Continuation of Employment of Mr. Om Prakash Bhansali (DIN: 00351846) 

as a Managing Director after attaining the age of 70 Years. 

 
NO SPECIAL RESOLUTION WERE PUT THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT EXERCISE 

 

DETAILS OF VOTING PATTERN: 

 Not Applicable 

 

PERSON WHO CONDUCTED THE POSTAL BALLOT EXERCISE: 

  Not Applicable 

 

WHETHER ANY RESOLUTIONS ARE PROPOSED TO BE CONDUCTED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT: 

 None of the resolutions are required to be put through postal ballot. 

 



    

 
 

 

 

62 OM BHANSALI GROUP 

Annual Report 2023-24 

 

PROCEDURE FOR POSTAL BALLOT: 

 Not Applicable 

 

VI. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
The company publishes Quarterly/Half yearly/Annual results as required under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 

2015. 

Communication of Unaudited/Audited 

Financial Results (Quarterly and Annual)       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The Company has regularly furnished, through email and 

electronic filing systems and such other mode, as may be 

required by the exchanges - within 30 (thirty) minutes (as 

applicable under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as the case may be) of closure 

of the Board meeting, the quarterly audited as well as annual 

audited results to both the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE & NSE.  

Quarterly and Annual financial results are also published in 

English and Hindi daily newspaper, i.e., Business 

Standard/Financial Express, Business Remedies/ Nafa Nuksan 

Website 

 

 

 

 

Pursuant to the Regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company‘s 
website is www.somiinvestor.com. All the information which 

may be required by the Shareholders is available including 

financial results, shareholding pattern, stock exchange filings, 

Annual Reports, Corporate Governance Compliance Report, 

additional disclosures, etc. 

NSE Electronic Application Processing 

System (NEAPS) and BSE Online Listing 

Centre 

 

 

 

The Company uploads its disclosures and announcements under 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 at the link, 

https://neaps.nseindia.com/NEWLISTINGCORP/ to NSE 

Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS)/Digital 

Exchange and to BSE Online Listing Centre at the link, 

https://listing.bseindia.com/ 

SCORES (SEBI complaints redressal 

system) 

SEBI processes investor complaints in a centralized web based 

complaints redressal system i.e. SCORES. Through this system a 

shareholder can lodge complaint against a Company for his 

grievance. The Company uploads the action taken on the 

complaint which can be viewed by the shareholder. The 

Company and shareholder can seek and provide clarifications 

online through SEBI. 

Quarterly results and presentations made by the Company are available on Company‘s website on the 
following link: https://www.somiinvestor.com/quarterly-results. 

No presentations have been made to institutional investors/analysts during the financial year. 

 

 

VII. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

a) Date, time and venue of the 24
th

 Annual General Meeting: 

Annual General Meeting is proposed to be held on Monday, 30
th
 September, 2024 at 11:30 A.M at its 

Registered Office at 4F-15, ―Oliver House‖, New Power House Road, Jodhpur – 342003  
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b) Financial Calendar for FY 2024-25: 

Financial year is 1
st
 April to 31

st
 March and financial results will be declared as per the following      

schedule. 

Particulars Tentative Schedule 

Quarterly Results  

Quarter ending on 30th June, 2024 Within Forty Five Days of the End of the Quarter 

Quarter ending on 30th September, 2024 Within Forty Five Days of the End of the Quarter 

Quarter ending on 31st December, 2024 Within Forty Five Days of the End of the Quarter 

Annual Results of 2024-25  Within Sixty Days of the End of the Quarter 

AGM for the year ending March 31,2024 In September, 2025 

 

c) Book closure date: 

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 

24
th 

September, 2024 to Monday, 30
th

 September, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 24
th

 
 

Annual General Meeting. 

d) Trading window closure 

The trading restriction period shall be made applicable from the end of every quarter till 48 hours 

after the declaration of financial results. 

e) Unclaimed Dividends 

In terms of Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013(―Act‖) if a member does not claim the 

dividend amount for a consecutive period of seven years or more, the unclaimed amount shall be 

transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central 

Government. Due date of transfer of unclaimed dividend to IEPF for the Financial Year 2017-18 are 

mentioned herein below: 

Financial Year ended Due Date of Transfer 

31.03.2018 27.11.2025 

 

During the year under review, the Company has transferred unclaimed / unencashed dividends of 

Rs. 115,509.00 for FY 2015-16 on 04.12.2023 and 15671 Equity Shares were transferred pursuant 

to section 125(6) of the Act. 

f) Name and Address of Stock Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed and 
confirmation of payment of Annual Listing Fees : 

S.NO. NAME OF STOCK EXCHANGE ADDRESS OF STOCK EXCHANGE 

1. 

BSE Limited (BSE) 

[ w.e.f. 24th July, 2008] 

Floor 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal 

Street, Mumbai - 400 001. 

2. National Stock Exchange of India Limited 

(NSE) [ w.e.f. 18th July, 2016] 

Exchange Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra 

(East), Mumbai - 400 051 
 

Annual Listing Fees have been paid for the Financial Year 2023-2024. 

g) Stock Code 
 

Particulars Stock Code 

BSE Limited (BSE) 533001 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)  SOMICONVEY 

ISIN INE323J01019 
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h) A)   Market Price Data (in Rs.) (BSE Index):    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B)        Market Price Data (in Rs.) (NSE Index): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: The information is compiled from the data available on the BSE& NSE website. 

i) Registrars and Share Transfer Agents: 

Link Intime India Pvt Ltd. 

CIN: U67190MH1999PTC118368 

C 101, 247 Park, LBS Road, Vikhroli West, Mumbai-400083 

Tel : +91 22 49186000; Fax : +91 22 49186000 

Email id: mumbai@linkintime.co.in;   Web: www.linkintime.co.in 

Month & 

Year 

High 

(Price) 

Low 

(Price) 

Volume 

 (No. of Shares) 

 BSE SENSEX 

 Month &Year High Low 

Apr – 23 59.88 35.3              98,881   Apr – 23 61209.46 58793.08 

May – 23 54.99 43           1,19,414   May – 23 63036.12 61002.17 

Jun – 23 64.2 49.6           2,58,847   Jun – 23 64768.58 62359.14 

Jul – 23 68.06 54           1,37,688   Jul – 23 67619.17 64836.16 

Aug – 23 68.5 50.42           2,63,330   Aug – 23 66658.12 64723.63 

Sep – 23 71 56.45              40,522   Sep – 23 67927.23 64818.37 

Oct – 23 116.59 56.3           6,84,851   Oct – 23 66592.16 63092.98 

Nov – 23 106.95 86.05           1,75,088   Nov – 23 67069.89 63550.46 

Dec – 23 94.93 85              68,915   Dec – 23 72484.34 67149.07 

Jan – 24 113.12 91              97,749   Jan – 24 73427.59 70001.6 

Feb – 24 115 96              43,491   Feb – 24 73413.93 70809.84 

Mar - 24 151.95 103.8           1,44,929   Mar - 24 74245.17 71674.42 

Month & 

Year 

High 

(Price) 

Low 

(Price) 

Volume  

(No. of Shares) 

 NSE NIFTY 

 Month & 

Year 

High Low 

Apr – 23 59.5 36.5 2,29,083  Apr – 23 18089.15 17312.75 

May – 23 54.9 44.55 3,74,263  May – 23 18662.45 18042.4 

Jun – 23 64.2 49.55 4,27,521  Jun – 23 19201.7 18464.55 

Jul – 23 67.5 53.55 1,70,257  Jul – 23 19991.85 19234.4 

Aug – 23 68.5 52.1 4,24,361  Aug – 23 19795.6 19223.65 

Sep – 23 70.4 56.35 1,31,766  Sep – 23 20222.45 19255.7 

Oct – 23 116.45 56.25 1,75,904  Oct – 23 19849.75 18837.85 

Nov – 23 106.3 86 5,30,709  Nov – 23 20158.7 18973.7 

Dec – 23 93.95 83.15 2,19,933  Dec – 23 21801.45 20183.7 

Jan – 24 113 89.6 3,30,197  Jan – 24 22124.15 21137.2 

Feb – 24 114.5 96.15 1,30,131  Feb – 24 22297.5 21530.2 

Mar - 24 153.2 103.45 4,03,969  Mar - 24 22526.6 21710.2 

http://www.linkintime.co.in/
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j) Share Transfer System 

 

Pursuant to the requirement of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth 

Amendment)Regulations, 2018, w.e.f. April 1, 2019, all the transfers of securities shall be mandatorily 

effected through dematerialized mode only.  

 

Further, shares in respect of whom dividend will remain unclaimed progressively for seven consecutive 

years, will be reviewed for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund as required by law. 

The Company will transfer the said shares, after sending an intimation of such proposed transfer in 

advance to the concerned shareholders, as well as, publish a public notice in this regard. Names of 

such transferees will be available on the Company‘s website www.somiinvestor.com. 

As per the requirement of Regulation 40(9) of the Listing Regulations, the Company has obtained the 

yearly certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice for due compliance of share transfer 

formalities. 

The Company conducts a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit on a quarterly basis in accordance 

with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) requirements. The audit reports for the 

financial year under report have been filed with the stock exchanges within one month of the end of 

each quarter. 

During the year, the Company transferred 15,671 shares on January 29, 2024, due to the dividends 

being unclaimed for seven consecutive years. During the year, the Company also transferred 

₹115,509.00 on December 04, 2023 on account of final unclaimed dividend for the FY 2015-16 to 

IEPF Fund established by the Central Government pursuant to Section 125 of the Companies Act, 

2013 . 

k) Distribution of Shareholding As At 31
st

 March 2024 

Sr. 
No. 

Slab of Shareholding Shareholders Number of 
Shares 

Shares Values 

No. of Equity Shares held Number In % Face Value In % 

 From To (Rs.) 

1 1 500 5353 87.6105 538246 5382460 4.5693 

2 501 1000 368 6.0229 296751 2967510 2.5192 

3 1001 2000 200 3.2733 304166 3041660 2.5821 

4 2001 3000 65 1.0638 163695 1636950 1.3896 

5 3001 4000 24 0.3928 84001 840010 0.7131 

6 4001 5000 21 0.3437 98309 983090 0.8346 

7 5001 10000 35 0.5728 271404 2714040 2.3040 

8 10001 &  Above 44 0.7201 10023084 100230840 85.0881 

Total 6110 100.00 11779656 117796560 100.00 
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Ownership Pattern as on 31
st

 March, 2024 

Category Number of Shares  In % 

Promoter and Promoter Group   

Individual/HUF 6960757 59.09 

Public – Non Institution   

Individual 2519379 21.38 

Hindu Undivided Family 116803 0.99 

Non Resident Indians (Non Repat) 13156 0.11 

Non Resident Indians (Repat) 12725 0.10 

Body Corp-Ltd Liability Partnership 29458 0.25 

Clearing Member 1874 0.01 

Bodies Corporate 2109688 17.90 

FPI (Corporate) - I 145 0.0012 

Investor Education and Protection Fund 15671 0.13 

Total 11779656 100.00 

 
 

 

l) Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: 

The Company‘s shares are compulsorily traded in dematerialized form. The Company‘s shares are 
regularly traded on the ‗BSE Limited‘ and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. The shares in 
physical form are processed by the Registrar and transfer Agent and approved by the Stakeholder 

Relationship Committee. All valid transfers are processed within statutory period of the lodgment. 

93.02% of the Share Capital of the Company is in dematerialized form. 

 

m) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instrument, conversion and likely impact 

on equity:  

During the year 2023-24, your Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible 

instruments. 

 

n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities 

The Company deals in commodity and foreign exchange in ordinary course of business and has 

adequate risk management mechanism. These are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company.  

 

o) Plant location: 

*K.No-58, 58/5, 58/6, Village Tanawara, Tehsil Luni, District Jodhpur. 

*H-2, 463-466, Sangaria Industrial Area, Jodhpur. 

 

p) Address of Correspondence:   

Mr. Amit Baxi 

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER 

4 F-15, ―Oliver House‖, New Power House Road, Jodhpur-342003 

Tel.: +91-0291-2610472, 2637565, 2637564 Fax: +91-0291-2432307 

E-mail:md@somiconveyor.com, csamitbaxi@gmail.com 

Website: www.somiinvestor.com, www.somiconveyor.com 

 

q) Credit Rating 

CRISIL Rating Limited has assigned the credit rating of ―CRISIL BB+/Stable‖ for long-term Bank 

facilities availed by the Company and credit rating of ―CRISIL A4+‖ for the short-term Bank facilities 

availed by the Company. 
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VIII. DISCLOSURES 

a) Related Party Transactions / Materially significant related party transactions: 

During the year under review, there were no materially significant related party transactions that may 

have potential conflict of interest with the interests of your Company at large. Your Company has 

formulated the Policy on dealing with related party transactions and the same is available on the website 

of your Company and a web link thereto is as 

below:https://www.somiinvestor.com/images/pdf/Policies/SOMI__Related_Party_Transaction_Policy.pdf 

All Related Party Transactions are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the transaction. The Audit 

Committee has, after obtaining approval of the Board of Directors, laid down the criteria for granting 

omnibus approval which also forms part of the Policy. Related Party Transactions of repetitive nature are 

approved by the Audit Committee on omnibus basis for one financial year at a time. The Audit 

Committee satisfies itself regarding the need for omnibus approval and that such approval is in the 

interest of the Company and ensures compliance with the requirements of Listing Regulations and the 

Companies Act, 2013. All omnibus approvals are reviewed by the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 

Transactions with related parties, as per requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 24, are disclosed 

in Notes to Accounts annexed to the Financial Statements and also mentioned in Director‘s Report 
pursuant to SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. 

 

b) Disclosure of accounting treatment in preparation of financial statements 

Your Company has followed accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as specified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 (―the Act‖) and 
other relevant provision of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the Accounting Polices during 

the period presented. 

 

c) Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures: 

Your Company has complied with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges / SEBI and Statutory 

Authorities on all matters related to the capital markets during the last three years except non-

compliance of one day pursuant to Regulation 17(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Details of the 

same are mentioned below: 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Compliance 

Requirement(

Regulations/ci

rculars/guidel

ines including 

specific 

clause) 

Regulatio

n/ 

Circular 

No. 

Deviations Action

Taken

by 

Type of 

Action 

Detailsof 

Violation 

FineAm

ount 

Obser-

vations/Re

marks of 

the Prac-

ticing 

Company 

Secretary 

Management

Response 

Re-

marks 

1 Composition 

of the Board 

including 

failure to 

appoint 

woman 

director 

Regulation 

17 (1)  

One Day NSE & 

BSE 

Fine Non-

compliance 

with the 

requirements 

pertaining to 

the 

composition 

of the Board 

including 

failure to 

appoint 

woman 

director 

Rs. 5900/- 

by NSE and 

Rs. 5900/- 

by BSE 

respectively 

(including 

GST of 

900) 

The 

Company 

has paid 

fine of 

Rs.5900/- 

to BSE and 

Rs.5900/- 

to NSE 

respectively 

in the 

month of 

November, 

2022. 

The 

Company has 

paid fine of 

Rs.5900/- to 

BSE and 

Rs.5900/- to 

NSE 

respectively 

in the month 

of November, 

2022. 

- 
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d) Whistleblower Policy / Vigil Mechanism 

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulation 22 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015, the Company has a Whistle-Blower Policy for establishing a vigil mechanism for 

Directors and employees to report genuine concerns regarding unethical behaviour, actual or suspected 

fraud or violation of the Company‗s Code of Conduct and Ethics policy. The said mechanism also 

provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such mechanism and makes 

provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional 

cases. We affirm that no employee of the Company was denied access to the Audit Committee. 

 

e) Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory 

requirements: 

Your Company confirms that it has complied with all the mandatory requirements prescribed in the 

Listing Regulations. Your Company has partially adopted the non-mandatory requirements. Disclosures 

of the extent to which the discretionary requirements have been adopted are given elsewhere in this 

report. 

 

f) Details of utilization of funds raise through Preferential Allotment or Qualified 

Institutional Placements as specified under regulation 32(7A) 

Not Applicable, as the Company did not raise any funds through preferential allotment or qualified 

institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A) of Listing Regulations during the year under 

review.  

 

g) Certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board 

of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 

as Directors of Companies by SEBI/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 

authority 

As required under Clause 10 (i) of Part C under Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the 

compliance certificate from Practising Company Secretary has been obtained that none of the directors 

on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 

directors of companies by SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

h) Recommendation of Committees of the Board during the FY 2023-24 

During the year under review, there has been no instance where the Board has not accepted any 

recommendation(s) of any of the Committee of the Board which was mandatorily required to be 

accepted. 

i) Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated 

basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which 

the statutory auditor is a part 

During the financial year 2023-24, total fees for all services paid by the listed entity to the Statutory 
Auditor are as follows: 

Particulars Details of Fees 

Internal Audit 1,40,000/- 

Statutory Audit 2,75,000/- 

Tax Audit 1,25,000/- 

Other Services 1,10,000/- 
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j) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 

Act, 2013 and the Rules risk made there under, the Company has in place a Policy on Prevention of 

Sexual Harassment of women at workplace. The Company has always believed in providing a safe and 

harassment-free workplace for every individual working in the Company. 

 
All women who are associated with the Company either as permanent employees or temporary 

employees or contractual persons including service providers at the Company sites are covered under 

the above policy.The company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee to ensure a harassment 

free working environment, to redress the complaints and to prevent sexual harassments, if any. No  

complaints relating to sexual harassment were received during the year. 

 
Status of complaints as on 31st March 2024: 

S.No. Particulars Number of Complaints 

1 Number of Complaints filed during the financial year NIL 

2 Number of Complaints disposed of during the financial year N.A. 

3 Number of Complaints pending as on end of the financial year N.A. 

 

k) Disclosure in relation to Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies 

in which directors are interested  

Please refer details under disclosure of related party transactions in notes forming part of the financial 

statements. 

l) Risk Management Framework: 

The company has laid down Risk Management Policy to inform Board members about the risk 

assessment and minimization procedures. 

 

m) Disclosure on Commodity price risks or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 

The management of the Company takes effective steps timely to minimize the commodity price risks and 

also hedges its exposure. 

n) Disclosure on compliance with Corporate Governance Requirements specified in SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015: 

The Company has complied with the requirements of Part C (Corporate Governance Report) of sub-

paras (2) to (10) of Schedule V of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

The Company has complied with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 

and Clause (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and 

necessary disclosures thereof have been made in this Corporate Governance Report. 

 

o) MD/ CFO Certification:  

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board in accordance with 

Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II to the SEBI Listing Regulations pertaining to MD/CFO 

certification for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The Certificate forms part of this Report. 
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p) Certificate on corporate governance: 

As required by the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the compliance certificate from Practising Company 

Secretary regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance is annexed to the directors‘ 
report. 

 

q) Twenty Four (24
th
) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company will be held on Monday, 30

th
 

September 2024 at 11:30 am, at Registered Office ,4F-I5, ―Oliver House‖, New Power House Road, 
Jodhpur-342003  to  transact the business mentioned in the Notice of AGM dated 4

th
September, 2024. 

 
As required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2, 
particulars of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM are given in 
the Notice of the AGM to be held on 30th September 2024. 

 
 

r) Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account:  

Under Clause 1 of Part C under Schedule V SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.The Company was not 
required to credit any shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account, hence 
disclosure is not applicable. 
 

s) Agreements binding listed entities 

Pursuant to Regulation 30A of the Listing Regulations, no agreement has been entered or executed by 
the shareholders, promoters, promoter group entities, related parties, directors, key managerial personnel 
and employees of the Company during the financial year. 
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This Management Discussion and Analysis report presents the key performance highlights of the year 2023-24 

pertaining to the Company's business. This discussions related to the Company‘s financial condition and result 
of operation should be read in conjunction with the Report presented in the earlier sections of this Annual 

Report, the Company‘s financial statements, the notes thereto and the other information included elsewhere in 

this Annual Report.  The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian 

Accounting Standards (IndAS), complying with the requirements of the Company's Act 2013 and SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, 

and applicable accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The 

management accepts the integrity and objectivity of these financial statements as well as the various estimates 

and judgments used therein. The estimates and judgments relating to the financial statements have been 

made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in order that the financial statements are reflected in a true and fair 

manner and also reasonably present the Company‘s state of affairs and profit for the year. 

During the year your Company has made a steady progress and achieved positive results, by adapting new 
market practice, commitment to innovation and strategic planning. 
 
The following table gives an overview of the financial results of the Company and its comparison with previous 

year results: 

(Rs.in Lakhs) 

 Year ended 

31
st

 March 

2024 

% of 

Revenue 

% Growth /  
(% Decline) 

Year ended 

31
st

 March 

2023 

% of 

Revenue 

Revenue 10210.69 100.00% 8.98% 9369.57 100.00% 

Earnings before interest, 

tax, depreciation 

848.36 8.31% 16.65% 727.21 7.76% 

Profit Before Tax 609.90 5.97% 42.68% 427.46 4.56% 

Profit After Tax attributable 
to shareholders of the 
Company 

455.26 4.46% 31.27% 346.81 3.70% 

Total Comprehensive 
Income for the period 
attributable to Owners 

455.05 4.46% 35.59% 335.60 3.58% 

Earnings per Share (in Rs.) 3.86 - 31.29% 2.94 - 

During the year 2023-24, the Company has continued implementation of its business strategy to give a better 

performance as compared to previous year. Your Company achieved revenue from operations for the year 

aggregated to Rs. 10210.69 Lakh registering an increase of 8.98% over the previous year‘s revenue of Rs. 
9369.57 Lakh. Your Company was able to earn Net Profit of Rs. 346.81 Lakh an increase of 31.27% as 

compared to previous year. 

 

Segment-Wise and Product-Wise Performance 

The Company has only one Segment which is manufacturing and sale of Industrial Conveyor Belts. 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
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Key Financial Ratios 

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements 2018) (Amendment) 

Regulations,2018, the Company is required to give details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more 

as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios. The Company has identified the 

following ratios as key financial ratios: -  

 Units Year 

ended 31
st

 

March 

2024 

Year 

ended 31
st

 

March 

2023 

% Change Reason for Change (In case 

if change is more than 25%) 

Debtors Turnover Days 151 125 21% - 

Inventory Turnover Days 94 124 24% - 

Interest Coverage 

Ratio 

Times 2.15 1.77 21% - 

Current Ratio Times 2.12 2.19 (3%) - 

Debt Equity Ratio Times 0.21 0.26 (19%) - 

Operating Profit 

Margin 

% 7.18% 5.64% 27% Better management controls, 

more efficient use of resources 

Net Profit Margin % 4.46% 3.70% 21% - 

 

Change in Return on Net Worth 
 

S. No. Particulars FY 24 FY 23 % Change Reason for Change 

1. Return on Net worth  6.62%  5.31%  25% Due to higher revenue and PAT in 

quantum RONW increased 

 
 
INDIAN ECONOMY 
 

Indian economy came out as a top performer in FY 2023-24 despite the domestic challenges of high inflation 

and subsequent monetary tightening, and setbacks in the export market due to the global slowdown. As per 

the second advance estimates released by the National Statistical Office (NSO), real GDP is expected to grow 

by 7.6% in FY 2023-24 as against 7.0% in FY 2022-23, driven by robust domestic demand, moderate inflation, 

a stable interest rate environment, and strong investment activities. Furthermore, India also concluded a 

successful presidency of G20, showcasing India‘s capability to cater to global needs and providing a platform 

to address global concerns. 

 

Globally, high inflation and interest rates, coupled with supply surplus, have exerted significant pressure on 

demand. However, India‘s robust government spending on infrastructure development and positive consumer 

sentiments have not only provided a cushion but also boosted economic growth. Despite the persistent 

monetary tightening by the RBI, the domestic demand has remained resilient and supportive. 

 
 
INDUSTRIAL SCENARIO 

The global "conveyor belt market" was valued at USD 68 billion in 2023, and by 2031, it is expected to have 

grown to USD 131.43 billion, with a compound yearly growth rate (CAGR) of 9.87% between 2024 and 2031. 

The increasing use of conveyor belts in industries like consumer goods, automotive, healthcare, and 

electronics is responsible for this growth. The launch of novel items and the growing demand for efficiency are 



   

 
 

 

73 

 

OM BHANSALI GROUP 

Somi Conveyor Beltings Ltd. 

driving market expansion even further.This growth trajectory is supported by a number of important variables, 

such as the quickening pace of technical development, the rise in industrial applications, and the expanding 

global market. The main forces behind this include innovations, increased sector-wide adoption, and a growing 

focus on efficiency and sustainability. It is anticipated that businesses in the conveyor belt industry would take 

advantage of these chances by concentrating on methods for expanding their markets, enhancing their 

competitive advantages, and developing new products. In addition, market dynamics and investment choices 

will be shaped by regulatory frameworks and geopolitical factors. All things considered, the anticipated CAGR 

highlights the critical role that the conveyor belt market plays in stimulating economic growth and encouraging 

innovation across a range of industries worldwide.  

The demand is boosted owing to increasing government initiatives and the number of coal mines in countries 

such as India. For instance, during the second pandemic wave, the Technology Roadmap document released 

by Coal India outlines that conveyors that may handle coal up to 4,500 tph/hr have been planned in Coal India. 

Conventional conveyors are limited to inclined angles around 16 to 18 degrees. The focus on upgrading the 

mines with advanced conveyor belts is aiding the market's growth. 

 

The Industry of Conveyor Belts has been witnessing a gradual shift in terms of consumer preferences from 

traditional conveyor belts to better quality premium products. It is also attracting healthy competitive 

environment, where players are applying different strategies to tap growing demand in the market space. The 

global Conveyor Belts market is fragmented and characterized by the presence of large international and 

regional vendors. Vendors compete in terms of price, brand image, turnaround time, quality, proximity to 

service centers, technical expertise and previous installation history. The industry is made up of several large 

players who provide a large variety of standard type commodities and many smaller niche players who offer 

more custom products and solutions. 

 

ABOUT THE COMPANY 

Established in the year 2000, Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited (SCBL, The Company) is one of the leading 

manufacturers specializing in rubber and steel-based industrial conveyor belts. With two state-of-the-art 

manufacturing facilities located in Jodhpur, India, SCBL boasts a production capacity of 1.2 million meters 

annually.  

Leveraging cutting-edge technology, including fully automated and computerized machinery driven by PLC 

technology, the company ensures precision and efficiency in its manufacturing processes. SCBL's product 

range includes world-class conveyor belts under the brand name ―Somiflex‖. Committed to quality, SCBL 
maintains the highest standards of performance, durability, and reliability, continuously innovating to meet 

evolving customer demands while upholding rigorous quality control measures at every stage. 

SCBL is among India's top ten domestic conveyor belting players. The company offers a comprehensive range 

of conveyor belts, including the next-generation Somiflex series, designed to meet the diverse needs of 

industries. 

The Company cater to various industries, including cement, sponge iron, power, and mining sectors. Our 

products are well accepted by large industrial groups across the globe, owing to their superior quality and 

durability. 
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STRENGTHS 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OPPORTUNITIES 

Rising Demand for Conveyor Belt Industry 

Rising demand for conveyor belts in the manufacturing industry to streamline operations represents one of the 
key factors contributing to the growth of the market.  

Automation in Conveyor Belt Industry 

Company's plant are equipped with fully automatic and computerized machinery, operating on 100% PLC 
technology that will work as a competitive advantage for the Company. 

Customer Centricity 

Customer centricity provides an opportunity to develop new products that are designed with a focus on 
increased efficiency, safety and quality. It also helps in receiving customer feedback & understanding their 
needs and concerns to create products that are not only safe, but also meet the needs of customers. 

Product Stewardship 

Implementing responsible product management practices throughout its lifecycle, spanning from design to 
disposal, aims to minimise environmental impact, thereby enhancing cost efficiency through streamlined 
production processes and waste reduction. The Company‘s operations encourage the adoption of renewable 

Strong market 
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energy sources and energy-efficient technologies among clients, fostering sustainability and aiding in customer 
retention while maintaining leadership in current markets. 

RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 

With the current evolving business landscape becoming more dynamic, risk has become an integral part of the 

business. Your Company has already in place a robust Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Framework, 

benchmarking with leading international risk management standards. 

The Company‘s robust risk management framework identifies and evaluates business risks and opportunities. 
The Company recognizes that these risks need to be managed and mitigated to protect its shareholders and 

other stakeholder‘s interest, to achieve its business objectives and enable sustainable growth.  

The risks are reviewed for the change in the nature and extent of the major risks identified since the last 
assessment. It also provides control measures for risks and future action plans. 
 
The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area of financial risks, controls and Internal Audit reviews. 

The Company believes that the overall risk exposure of present and future risks remains within risk capacity. 

 

The Business of the Company is exposed to several internal and external risks. It has to also deal with certain 

micro and macro risks that affect the Company‘s strategy implementation. The Company have in place robust 
framework, internal processes, systems and controls to monitor, manage, govern, mitigate risks and turning 

them into opportunities for strengthening the position of the Company. 

 

Our risk management objectives are: 

 To minimize undesirable outcomes arising out of potential risks. 

 To implement a process to identify potential/emerging risks 

 To implement appropriate risk management initiatives, controls, incident monitoring, reviews and 

continuous improvement initiatives 

 To safeguard the Company's and its subsidiaries' property & interest of all stakeholders. 

 To protect and enhance the corporate governance. 

 To manage risks within a framework & consistently achieve desired outcomes. 

 

Some of the key existing and emerging risks affecting the Company are as follows :- 

Risk Type Key Risk Impact Mitigation 

Strategic 

Risk 

Long term 

growth 

dependent on 

of capacity 

expansion 

Capacities utilization across all the 

plants are inching up gradually and 

with business environment turning 

favorable growth in long term will be 

dependent on Capacity addition. 

Debottlenecking exercise across all 

the facilities are being carried every 

quarter. Optimum scheduling of 

production across different products 

thereby improving yield. Possibility of 

setting up new lines wherein 

Company has project Management 

expertise. 

Operational 

Risk 

Employee 

Productivity 

and retention 

Employee involvement and 

productivity is one of the key factors 

to be competitive in industry. Being a 

labour intensive sector employee 

welfare assumes significance 

Company has strong commitment 

towards creating and providing safe 

working environment for its 

employee and stakeholders. 

Focused approach to retain key 

talent through multiple initiatives 

including providing cross functional 

access and experience. Focus on 
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employee engagement. Increased 

focus on offering learning 

opportunities with allocation of funds 

for training requirements. 

 Competition The Company faces competition in 

the business field it operates in. As a 

result, the Company is exposed to 

dual risk of either being displaced by 

existing or new competitors or its 

products being replaced by product 

innovations and new technological 

features. Customer dissatisfaction on 

price, quality, delivery performance, 

and design could lead to loss of 

market share. 

The Company ensures close 

cooperation with its key customers 

on product development. It has 

implemented strict product quality 

controls in order to reduce the 

likelihood of substitution. The 

company remains ahead on 

technology front on light weighting 

the products to offer best in class 

products to its customer. 

Financial 

Risk 

Credit Rating Failure to maintain credit ratings 

could adversely affect cost of funds. 

Regular exchange of information and 

updates with agency. Focused 

approach to work on areas of 

improvement and to build upon areas 

of strength. Close monitoring of 

triggers highlighted in rating rationale 

 Credit Risk  Credit Risk Customer default can 

pose a significant challenge and 

impact the bottom line of the 

Company.  

Systems are in place to assess the 

credit worthiness of new as well as 

existing customers. 

Legal Risk Regulatory 

environment 

& compliance  

The Company is subject to 

numerous laws regulations and 

contractual commitments. Any failure 

to comply with same may impact the 

Company adversely.  

The Company has policies systems 

and procedures in place with a 

strong commitment from the Board 

and the Executive Committee 

towards compliance. 

Environment, 
Health and 
Safety (EHS) 

Risks 

Plants and 

Properties 

Every process-related activity across 

industries and domains has its 

inherent associated risks which can 

affect plants or properties in terms of 

Accidents/Incidents at the workplace 

and the ill health of its employees. 

The Company created a sustainable 

business by complying with 

established regulations to ensure all 

its activities are socially and 

environmentally responsible and has 

made significant investments 

towards undertaking eco-friendly 

measures. 

. 

Quality Risks Products and 

manufacturing 

processes 

All our products and manufacturing 
processes are subject to stringent 
quality standards and specifications. 
Any failure on our part to maintain 
the applicable standards and 
manufacture products according to 
prescribed specifications, may lead 
to loss of reputation and goodwill of 
our Company. 

The Company has its own distillation 
facility, enabling the usage of raw 
materials for in-house production. 
Forward integration further enables 
the Company to develop and 
produce a rich quality base of value-
added products. These products also 
help retain the key customers 
ensuring customer loyalty and low 
marketing cost. 
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OUTLOOK 

The global growth estimate for 2023, at 3.2%, is anticipated to remain same across 2024 and 2025. Despite 

the resilient performance of the global economy, the projected growth remains below historical averages. 

However, the US economy is expected to perform better than expected, although downside risks to growth 

persist. Contributing factors to this trend include the implementation of stringent monetary policies, the 

withdrawal of fiscal support and subdued productivity growth. Advanced economies are expected to witness a 

modest decline in economic growth before rebounding in 2025, whereas emerging markets and developing 

economies (EMDEs) are anticipated to maintain stable growth. Additionally, global headline inflation is forecast 

to decrease from 6.8% in 2023 to 5.9% in 2024 and further decline to 4.5% by 2025, indicating positive supply-

side trends. The outlook remains positively upside. 

 

India is poised for continued growth in the upcoming fiscal year, buoyed by robust financial and 

macroeconomic conditions. GDP is forecasted to remain strong at 7.0%, while inflation is expected to fall 

Estimates indicate that India will experience sustained growth, driven by contributions from labour and human 

capital. However, global headwinds may pose challenges, potentially leading to a slowdown in global 

economic activity, which could impact India's financial and trade channels. There is a continuous thrust from 

the management to develop a strong R&D and technical service team to develop new products, explore new 

applications and understand better the changing customer needs. 

 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

The Company believes that internal controls is one of the key pillars of governance, which provides freedom to 

the management to operate within a framework of appropriate checks and balances. The Company maintains 

a robust framework of internal controls that are in accordance with the nature and size of the business. The 

framework addresses the evolving risk complexities and underpins the Company's strong corporate culture 

and good governance. The purpose of an internal audit is to examine and evaluate the internal controls and 

risks associated with the Company's operations. It covers factories, warehouses, and centrally controlled 

businesses and functions. 

 

The Internal Audit team is entrusted with the responsibility of overseeing internal financial processes, policies 

and providing recommendations for effective internal controls. Implementing these robust internal controls 

upholds compliance with the Company‘s adopted policies and procedures, thereby fostering seamless and 
efficient operations. These internal controls play a pivotal role in safeguarding assets, detecting and preventing 

instances of fraud or errors, and ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting and financial records. 

Furthermore, they contribute to the timely preparation of transparent, comprehensive, and accurate financial 

information and statements, aligning with the prescribed accounting standards and principles.  

 

Internal checks and controls covering operations of the Company are in place and are constantly being 

improved upon. Adequate systems exist to safeguard Company‘s assets through insurance on reinstatement 
basis and maintenance of proper records. The company has well-defined procedures to execute financial 

transactions. 

 

The Internal Audit framework comprises of a well defined organisation structure, roles and responsibilities, 

documented policies and procedures, financial delegation of authority, ERP controls, among others. IT policies 

and processes ensure mitigation of business risks through controls. These policies are complimented by a 

management information and monitoring system, which ensures compliance with internal processes, as well 

as with applicable laws and regulations. 

 
The Company‘s internal control environment ensures efficient conduct of operations, security of assets, 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the 

timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
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Most importantly, the senior management adopts policy of ‗zero tolerance to non-compliance‘ and promotes a 
culture of continuous innovation and improvement. The management also supports independent and objective 

internal auditing and implements recommendations of the internal audit. 

 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The company‘s approach towards Human Capital is built on a commitment to not only attract and retain the 

best talent but also to foster an environment where innovation, diversity, transparency and productivity thrive. 

Over the past year, the Company continued to enhance it‘s Human Capital Management practices to support 

our workforce and drive organizational success. The company‘s Talent acquisition strategies helps it to attract 

diverse professionals at various levels who align with it‘s corporate values and business objectives. 

 

Your  Company believes that recognizing employees‘ contributions and achievements at the right time is vital 

for fostering a positive work environment, motivating them, improving job satisfaction, enhancing performance, 

and commitment & loyalty towards the organization. 

 

Your Company strongly believes that to achieve continual success, a dedicated and devoted workforce is very 

much required to get high performance and improved productivity. This has been endlessly encouraged by 

evolving human resource management systems and processes of your Company. Your Company believes that 

its employees are its core strength and accordingly development of people and providing a best-inclasswork 

environment is a key priority for the organization to drive business objectives and goals. Robust HR processes 

and policies along with Digital HR tools are in place, which enables building a stronger performance culture 

and at the same time developing current and future leaders. 

 
Further, your Company is strongly focused towards utilisation of its manpower to the optimum level. The 

positive approach and cordial relationship between the Management and Unions has resulted in smooth 

industrial relations during the year under review. The relationship has developed over the years and has 

played a significant role in smooth running of your Company. 

 
The Company are proud of the strides it has made in human resource practices and is committed to continuing 
it‘s investment in the employees. The Company‘s people are the cornerstone of it‘s success, and it believes 
that by supporting them, it are building a stronger, more sustainable business. An effective human capital 
practice demonstrates how organization values its people and contributes to overall business success.   
 

As on 31st March, 2024, the Company had 102 on roll employees. These employees provide an excellent 

combination of experienced and young workforce and talented technical managers. 

 

 

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE 

The role of the Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer is to ensure the Company‘s compliance with 

SEBI requirements and listing regulations. In addition to the Company Secretary, the Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO) and Managing Director (MD) also function as compliance officers to prevent insider trading.  

Compliance certifications are obtained from various management personnel, affirming adherence to key 

statutes. Managing Director gives a declaration of compliance to the Board with respect to the applicable 

provisions of Companies Act, 2013, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges.  

 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Any forward-looking statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company‘s 
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations regarding expected future events and the financial and 
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operating results of the Company are based on certain assumptions, the fulfillment of which the Company 

does not guarantee. These statements are subject to risks and uncertainties and the actual results may 

materially differ from those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the Company‘s 
operations include industry downtrends, whether global or domestic, significant changes in the political and 

economic environment in India or key markets abroad, tax laws, litigation, labour relations, exchange rate 

fluctuations, technological changes, investment and business income, cash flow projections, interest and other 

costs. The Company does not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking statements to reflect events 

or circumstances after the date thereof.  
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CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 

[Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10)(i) of Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]  

 

To 

The Members  

Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited 

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 

4F-15,Oliver House, New Power House Road,  

Jodhpur, Rajasthan – 342001 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited having CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 and having registered office at 4F-

15,Oliver House, New Power House Road, Jodhpur, Rajasthan – 342003 (hereinafter referred to as ‗the 
Company‘), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with 

the Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of our knowledge and based on the following: 

i. Documents available on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs; 

ii. Verification of Directors Identification Number (DIN) status on the website of the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs; 

iii. Disclosures provided by the Directors to the Company; and 

iv. Debarment list of BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority as on March 31, 

2024. 

S. 

No.  

Name of Director Director Identification 

Number(DIN) 

Date of appointment in the 

Company 

1 Om Prakash Bhansali 00351846 16/06/2000 

2 Vimal Bhansali 00351851 16/06/2000 

3 Gaurav Bhansali 00351860 16/06/2000 

4 Mahendra Rakhecha 00648532 30/09/2006 

5 Yogesh Maheshwari 01202089 10/01/2007 

6 Santosh Kumar Joshi 08950339 22/02/2021 

7 Saraswati Choudhary 09835573 27/12/2022 

8 Payal Daga 07134985 30/09/2022 

 

\Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification.  

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 
 
 
Place: Jodhpur     
Date: 26/08/2024 

IRA BAXI                                                                            

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS No.:-5456; CP No.: 4712 
UDIN: F005456F001045869                
PR No.: 2991/2023 
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

To, 

The Members of  

Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited 

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 

4F-15,Oliver House, New Power House Road,  

Jodhpur, Rajasthan – 342001 

  

This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of my engagement with Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited 

(‗the Company‘). I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for 

the year ended on 31
st
 March 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 

46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations) . I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of my knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of certification. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My 

examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 

compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 

the Financial Statements of the Company. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations and information furnished to 

me, I certify that the Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and para C, D and E of Schedule V 

of the Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2024. 

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

         
 

 

 
 
 
Place: Jodhpur     
Date: 26/08/2024 

IRA BAXI                                                                            

Practicing Company Secretary 

FCS No.:- 5456; CP No.: 4712 
UDIN: F005456F001046001                
PR No.: 2991/2023 

 

 
DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
I, O P Bhansali, Managing Director of Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited do hereby confirm and declare that as 
stipulated under Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V (D) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, to the best of my knowledge and belief, Members of the Board of Directors 
and Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance, as on March 31, 2024, with the 
provisions of Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company. 
 
This declaration has been issued on the basis of acknowledgement and confirmation, with respect to the 
compliance with the provisions of Code of Conduct of the Company, received from respective Members of 
Board of Directors and Senior Management. 

       For Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited 

           

 

         O P Bhansali 

Place: Jodhpur                                                                              Managing Director 

Date: 4
th 

September, 2024  
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CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION 

(Pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) and Part B of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015) 

 
To  

The Board of Directors  

Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited  

CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480 

4F-15, Oliver House, New Power House Road,  

Jodhpur, Rajasthan – 342003 

 

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of 

Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited (―the Company‖), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:  

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the Financial Year ended 31st 

March, 2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:  

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

any statements that might be misleading.  

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company‘s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the 

year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity‘s code of conduct.  

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we 

have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting 

and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of 

internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 

deficiencies.  

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:  

(i) There has not been any significant changes in the internal control over financial reporting during the 

year;  

(ii) There has not been any significant changes in the accounting policies during the requiring 

disclosure in the notes to the financial statements; and  

(iii)There has not been any instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having significant role in the 

company‘s internal control system over financial reporting. 
 
 
For Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited 

 

 
O.P. Bhansali       Manish Bohra     

Managing Director      Chief Financial Officer 

 

Place: Jodhpur 

Date: 4
th 

September, 2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
TO 
THE MEMBERS 
SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LTD. 

JODHPUR (RAJASTHAN) 

 
 
Report on the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of SOMI 

CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED (CIN: L25192RJ2000PLC016480) (“the Company”), which 
comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 

Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 

Flows for the year then ended on that date, and notes to Financial Statements, including a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (here in after 

referred to as “Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement”) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with 

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 31, 2024 and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows 

for the year ended on that date. 

 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those SAs are further described in the Auditor‟s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements and the ICAI‟s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements. 
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Key Audit Matters  

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 

our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 

context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described 

below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Sr. 

No. 

Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response 

1. Evaluation of uncertain tax 
positions  
 
The Company has material uncertain 
tax positions including matters under 
dispute which involves significant 
judgment to determine the possible 
outcome of these disputes.  
 
Contingent liabilities are for ongoing 
litigations and claims with various 
authorities and third parties. These 
relate to direct tax, indirect tax, claims 
and legal proceedings by other 
parties. 
 
Contingent liabilities are considered as 
key audit matters as the amount 
involved is significant and it also 
involves significant management 
judgment to determine possible 
outcome and future cash outflows 
from these disputes. Refer Note no-33 

 

 

Principal Audit Procedures:  
 
 
Obtained details of disputed claims and 
completed tax assessments and demands for 
the year ended March 31, 2024 from 
management. We involved our internal experts 
to challenge the management‟s underlying 
assumptions in estimating the tax provision and 
the possible outcome of the disputes. Our 
internal experts also considered legal 
precedence and other rulings in evaluating 
management‟s position on these uncertain tax 
positions. Additionally, we considered the effect 
of new information in respect of uncertain tax 
positions as at April 1, 2023 to evaluate whether 
any change was required to management‟s 
position on these uncertainties. 
 

Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting 

policies, related disclosures made and overall 

presentation in the Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements in terms of IND AS 37. 

 

 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon  

The Company‟s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 

Board‟s Report including Annexures to Board‟s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate 
Governance and Shareholder‟s Information, but does not include the Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements and our auditor‟s report thereon.  

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information 

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
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inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during 

the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  

 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company‟s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and cash flows 

of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

including IND AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement that give a true and 

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for 

assessing the Company‟s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 

Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so.  

The Company‟s Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company‟s financial 
reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone IND AS Financial 
Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 

error, and to issue an auditor‟s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 

and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
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 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 

than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 

Company has adequate internal financial controls in place with reference to Standalone Ind 

AS Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.  

 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management‟s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company‟s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor‟s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS 
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor‟s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 

concern.  

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial 

Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation.  

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 

materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 

results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial 

Statements.  

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 

where applicable, related safeguards.  
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor‟s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 

report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh 

the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor‟s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013, we give in the “Annexure - A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 

the Order, to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. 

 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of 

aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements have been kept by the Company so far 

as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, Statement of changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account and the records maintained for the 

purpose of preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. 

 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 

taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 

31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls in place with reference to 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 

unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the company‟s internal 
financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financials Statements. 

 

(g) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 

with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. 
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor‟s Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and 

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement – Refer to Note 33 to the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statement; 

 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses; 

 

iii. Company has transferred Rs. 1.16 lacs to Investor Education and Protection Fund during 

the year.  

 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or 

loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 

kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 

or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of 
the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries.  

(b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the 

Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 

whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.  

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material 

misstatement. 

v. No dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company in compliance with section    

123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting 

software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 

which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during 

the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 

tampered with.  
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As provision to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 

1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 

preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 

applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

 

  FOR SINGHVI &MEHTA 

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

  FRN 002464W 

 

SD/- 

  (GARIMA TATER) 

 

PLACE : JODHPUR 

 PARTNER 

M.No. 407752 

DATED: 30TH MAY, 2024  UDIN: 24407752BKEFXO7201 
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report  
 
The annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading „Report on Other Legal & Regulatory 
Requirements‟ of our report of even date to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of SOMI 

CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that: 

1. In respect of the Company‟s Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-Use assets and 

Intangible Assets: 

 

(a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of Property Plant and Equipment & Capital Work-In-Progress. 

(ii) Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical 

verification of its Property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment 

are verified on yearly basis. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is 

reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.  

No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.  

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and 

based on the examination of the records of the Company provided to us, we report that, the 

title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, 

are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable 

properties of land and buildings that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed asset in 

the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the 

Company is the lessee in the agreement. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and 

Equipment & Capital Work-In-Progress or intangible assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company as at March 31, 2024, there are no proceedings initiated or 

pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

2. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the inventory (except for Goods in Transit) has 

been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of 

such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management 

were appropriate. 

 

No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book 

records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess 

of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of 

current assets. As per the information and explanation given to us, the statements filed by the 

company with bank are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. 

3. The Company has not made investments in Firms and Limited Liability Partnerships during the 

year. Further the Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any 

advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or any other parties other than mentioned below: 

 

(a) The Company has provided loans during the year to various employees against their 

respective salary in accordance with company policy, total amount advanced to employees 

during the year of Rs. 28.68 Lacs out of which Rs. 17.81 Lacs was outstanding as on 

31.03.2024. 

 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no investments made, 

guarantees provided, security given where terms and conditions of the grant of all the loans 

and advances in nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company‟s 
interest. 

 

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the repayments of principal amounts are 

recovered against the salary of employees which are generally been regular as per 

stipulation. 

 

(d) In respect of loans granted by the company, there is no overdue amount remaining 

outstanding as at Balance Sheet date. 

 

(e) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed 

or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same 

parties. 

 

(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either 

repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. 

Hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(f) not applicable. 

 

4. According to information & explanation given to us, Company has neither made any 

investment nor given any loan or provided any guarantee or security as specified under 

section 185 & 186 of Companies Act 2013.Hence, clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of “the Order” is 
not applicable to the Company in context of section 185 & 186 of Companies Act 2013. 

 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits, therefore directive issued by the Reserve Bank 

of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, clause (v) of paragraph 3 of “the 
Order” is not applicable to the Company. 

6. We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the 

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central 
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Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the 

opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the 

company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view 

to determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

 

7. In respect of Statutory Dues: 

(a) On the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in 

the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-

tax, Goods and Services Tax, duties of customs and other material statutory dues generally 

have been deposited regularly during the year by the Company with the appropriate 

authorities. 

    There were no disputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, 

Employees‟ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of 

Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 

2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there are no disputed amounts 

payable in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 

added tax, Goods and Services Tax, Cess except as stated below: 

Name 

of the 

Statute 

Nature 

of dues 

Amount 

(In Rs.) 

Period to 

which the 

amount 

relates 

Forum 

where 

dispute is 

pending 

Remarks  

Income 

Tax 

Act, 

1961 

Income 

Tax 

Demand    

Rs.7792460.00 A.Y. 2015-

16 

Income Tax 

Department 

Rs. 1950000.00 

(approximately 20% 

of demand raised of 

Rs.9742460.00) has 

been paid. Matter is 

pending with 

concerned authority. 

 

8. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any 

transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

 

9. (a) As per the information and according to the explanations given to us the Company has not 

defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings therefore clause 3(ix) (a) of the Order 

is not applicable.  

(b) As per the information and according to the explanations given to us the company is not a 

declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

 

(c) As per the information and according to the explanations given to us the company has 

availed term loan and was applied for the purpose for which loans were obtained. 
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(d) As per the information and according to the explanations given to us the company and on 

the basis of overall examination of the financial statements of the company, funds raised on 

short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by 

the Company. 

 

(e) The company doesn't have subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence, reporing 

under clause 3 (ix) (e) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

(f) The company doesn't have subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies and hence, 

reporting under clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

10. (a) During the year, the Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments) and hence, reporting under clause 3(x) (a) of the 

Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

fully or partly convertible debentures during the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(x) 

(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

11. (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the 

information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in 

the Standards on Auditing, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on the 

Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit. 

(b) As per the information and according to the explanations given to us, no material fraud by 

the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year therefore there 

is no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed 

by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; 

 

(c) As represented to us by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints 

received by the company during the year. 

 

12. The company is not a Nidhi Company as defined under section 406 of companies Act 

2013.Therefore; reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the 

company. 

 

13. As per the information and explanation given to us, all transactions with related parties are in 

compliance with the provision of section 177 and section 188 of Companies Act, 2013. The 

relevant disclosure as required by Ind AS-24 has been made in the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements. 

 

14. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us: 

(a) The company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and 

nature of its business; 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the company issued during the year till 

date in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures. 
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15. According to the information and explanation given to us, Company has not entered in to any 

non cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence 

provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

 

16. In our opinion, considering the nature of operations of the Company at present, the Company 

is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 as 

NBFC and is not a core investment company (as defined in the Core Investment Companies 

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly, clause 3(xvi) (a) (b) (c) (d) of the Order is 

not applicable.  

 
17. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 

not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 

3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 

19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 

and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements 

and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our 

examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 

which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 

report indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 

balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 

date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company. We further state that our reporting is based on facts up to the date of the audit 

report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within 

a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 

when they fall due.  

 

20. (a) Provisions of this section are not applicable to company. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the  

Order is not applicable.  

 

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no 

unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to 

any project. Accordingly, clause 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable.  

 

  FOR SINGHVI &MEHTA 

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

  FRN 002464W 

 

SD/- 

  (GARIMA TATER) 

 

PLACE : JODHPUR 

 PARTNER 

M.No. 407752 

DATED: 30TH MAY, 2024  UDIN: 24407752BKEFXO7201 
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone 
Ind AS Financial Statements of SOMI CONVEYOR BELTINGS LIMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of SOMI CONVEYOR 

BELTINGS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  

The Company‟s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial 
controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements based on the internal control 

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 

adherence to Company‟s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls with 

reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 

in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 

of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 

Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.  

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 

on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor‟s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, 

whether due to fraud or error.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company‟s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

A Company's Internal Financial control with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 

reporting and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes in 

accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A Company's internal financial control 

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that  

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and  

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 

the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 

conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to 

Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

  FOR SINGHVI &MEHTA 

  CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

  FRN 002464W 

SD/- 

  (GARIMA TATER) 

 

PLACE : JODHPUR 

 PARTNER 

M.No. 407752 

DATED: 30TH MAY, 2024  UDIN: 24407752BKEFXO7201 
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 

      ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Notes 
As at  As at  

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

I. ASSETS       

  1. Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 2,574.82 2,597.89 

(b) Capital work-in-progress 2 44.65 22.45 

(c) Other intangible assets 2 1.06  0.88 

(d) Intangible assets under development 2 138.38 166.06 

(e) Financial assets    

(i) Investment  3 0.23 0.23 

(ii) Trade receivables 9 129.79 279.65 

(iii) Other financial assets 5 93.63 28.52 

(f) Deferred Tax  assets (Net) 6 10.06 13.86 

(g) Other non financial assets 7 17.26 18.43 

Total Non-Current Assets   3,009.88                    3,127.97 

 

2. Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 8 2,615.44 3,176.10 

(b) Financial assets    

(i) Trade Receivables 9 4,088.60 2,926.83 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 388.69 247.65 

(iii) Other bank balances 10 455.45 330.02 

(iv) Loans 4 18.35 6.65 

(v) Other financial assets 5 93.85 108.19 

(c) Other Non financial assets 7 373.94 351.81 

Total Current Assets   8,034.32                    7,147.25 

 

Total Assets   11,044.20 10,275.22 

 

 

    II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES       

Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 11 1,177.97 1,177.97 

(b) Other Equity 12 5,927.04 5,471.98 

Total Equity   7,105.01 6,649.95 
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Liabilities 

  1. Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 13 105.90 333.60 

(b) Provisions 15 41.75 33.88 

Total Non-Current Liabilities   147.65 367.48 

  2. Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 13 1,414.50 1,426.72 

(ii) Trade payables 

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises               17 309.40 50.05 

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 17 1,303.80 1,139.12 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 14 187.02 182.47 

(b) Other non financial liabilities 16 417.52 382.19 

(c) Net Employee Benefit Liabilities 15 8.53 9.27 

(d) Current Tax Liabilities 6 150.77 67.98 

Total Current Liabilities   3,791.54 3,257.80 

Total Liabilities   3,939.19                    3,625.28  

Total Equity and Liabilities   11,044.20                  10,275.23 

Significant Accounting Policies 1     

The accompanying notes are integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

 

As per our report of even date attached 

 

FOR SINGHVI & MEHTA FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FRN 002464W 

O.P.BHANSALI MANISH BOHRA 

(GARIMA TATER) (MANAGING DIRECTOR) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFICER) 

PARTNER DIN 00351846 

M. NO. 407752 

UDIN :24407752BKEFXO7201 

 

GAURAV BHANSALI AMIT BAXI 

PLACE : JODHPUR (WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR) (COMPANY SECRETARY) 

DATED: 30THMAY, 2024 DIN 00351860 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

      ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Notes 
For the Year ended March 31, 

2024 2023 

INCOME   
 

  

Income from operations 18 10,210.95 9,373.29 

Other Income  19 31.40 19.53 

Total Income (A) 

 
10,242.35 9,392.82 

    EXPENSES 

   Production Expenditure 20 776.61 674.89 
Cost of Material Consumed 21 7,163.60 6,567.68 
Purchase of Stock in Trade  

  Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in-process and 
stock-in-trade 

22 
596.86 637.46 

Employee benefits expenses 23 342.23 307.09 
Finance costs 24 179.38 271.38 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expenses 2 116.82 101.25 
Other expenses 25 456.95 405.61 

Total Expenses (B)   9,632.45 8,965.36 

    Profit before exceptional items and tax (A-B) 
 

609.90 427.46 

Exceptional items   - 

Profit before tax   609.90 427.46 

Tax Expense 
   Current Tax 6 150.77 67.98 

Deferred tax 6 3.87 12.67 

Profit after tax for the period (C)    455.26 346.81 

Other comprehensive income 
   (A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
   Changes in fair value of equity instruments 
  

-    

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations 27 (0.28) (14.98)    

Income tax relating to these items 27 0.07 3.77    

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 

  

 -    

Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (D) 

 
(0.21)               (11.21)    

Total Comprehensive Income for the Period (C+D) 
 

455.05          335.60 

    Earnings per equity share (EPS) (Face Value of Rs. 1/- each) 26 
         Basic (In Rs.) 

 
3.86 2.94 

       Diluted (In Rs.)   3.86 2.94 

Significant Accounting Policies 1   

 The accompanying notes are integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

     

As per our report of even date attached 
    
   

FOR SINGHVI & MEHTA FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

   FRN 002464W 
   

  
O.P.BHANSALI MANISH BOHRA 

(GARIMA TATER) 
 

(MANAGING DIRECTOR) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER) 
PARTNER 

 
DIN 00351846 

 M. NO. 407752 
   UDIN : 24407752BKEFXO7201 
   

  
GAURAV BHANSALI AMIT BAXI 

PLACE : JODHPUR 
 

(WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR) (COMPANY SECRETARY) 
DATED: 30TH MAY, 2024 

 
DIN 00351860 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (SOCIE) FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED ON 31STMARCH 2024 

A. Equity Share Capital  ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Number of Shares Amount  

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up     

Balance as at 1st April,2022 11779656 1177.97 

Changes due to prior period error - - 

Restated balance as at 1st April, 2022 11779656 1177.97 

Movements during the year - - 

Balance as at 31st March,2023 11779656 1177.97 

Changes due to prior period error - - 

Restated balance as at 1st April, 2023 11779656 1177.97 

Movements during the year - - 

Balance as at 31st March,2024 11779656 1177.97 

 

B. Other Equity  ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars 

Reserve & Surplus 
Other 

Comprehens

ive Income  
FVOCI - 

Equity 

Investments 

Total 
Other 

Equity 

Securities 

Premium 

Retained 

Earnings 

Balance at April 1, 2022 1,818.17  3,407.06         18.84  5,244.07  

Changes in accounting policy / prior period 
errors 

- - - - 

Restated balance at April 1, 2022 1,818.17  3,407.06            18.84  5,244.07 

Profit for the year  -    346.81                -    346.81 

Other comprehensive income for the year -    -    (11.21)    (11.21)    

Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 
obligation, net of tax 

-    -             -    -    

Appropriation of Profit to Risk Purchase 
Recovery 

- 107.69 - 107.69 

Total comprehensive income for the year                    -    239.12 (11.21)    227.91 

Balance at March 31, 2023  1,818.17  3,646.18 7.63  5,471.98 

Changes in accounting policy / prior period 
errors 

- - - - 

Restated balance at April 1, 2023       1,818.17  3,646.18          7.63 5,471.98 

Profit for the year  -    455.26                -    455.26 

Other comprehensive income for the year -    -              (0.21)         (0.21) 
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 
obligation, net of tax 

-    -             -    -    

Total comprehensive income for the year -    455.26             (0.21) 455.05  

Balance at March 31, 2024        1,818.17  4,101.44           7.42  5,927.03  

 

Purpose of Reserves & Surplus:       

(i) Securities Premium: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve 
is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
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(ii) Retained Earnings: The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity 

shareholders out of accumulated reserves is determined considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 
2013. Thus, the closing balance amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.  
 

As per our report of even date attached 

 

FOR SINGHVI & MEHTA FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FRN 002464W 

O.P.BHANSALI MANISH BOHRA 

(GARIMA TATER) (MANAGING DIRECTOR) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFICER) 

PARTNER DIN 00351846 

M. NO. 407752 

UDIN :24407752BKEFXO7201 

GAURAV BHANSALI AMIT BAXI 

PLACE : JODHPUR (WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR) (COMPANY SECRETARY) 

DATED: 30TH MAY, 2024 DIN 00351860 
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
MARCH 31, 2024 

     ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars 
 For the Year ended March 31, 

2024 2023 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit /(loss) before tax 609.90 427.46 

Adjustments for:   

Depreciation, Amortisation & Depletion 116.82 101.25 

Interest & Finance Charges 121.64 198.50 

848.36 727.21 

Interest and Dividend Income (29.39) (17.78) 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 818.96 709.43 

Adjustments for working capital changes 

Change in Current/non-current Assets 

(Increase)/decrease in Other Financial Assets (187.90) 44.35 

(Increase)/decrease in Other  Assets (20.96) (49.46) 

(Increase)/decrease in Inventories 560.65 1,220.41 

(Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivables (1,011.90) (599.24) 

Change in Current/Non-current Liabilities   

Increase/(decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 4.55 24.13 

Increase/(decrease) in Provisions 7.14 20.49 

Increase/(decrease) in Other Liabilities (45.87) 45.47 

Increase/(decrease) in Trade payables 424.03 129.99 

Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operations 548.71 1,545.57 

Taxes (paid)/ refund  12.93 14.08 

Net Cash Generated from/(Used in) Operating Activities (A)  561.64  1,559.65 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  

Cash Paid for Purchase of Assets / CWIP including Joint Arrangements (88.43) (68.89) 

Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries /(Investment in Subsidiaries) - - 

Interest and Dividend Income received 29.39 17.78 

Net Cash Generated from/(Used in)  Investing Activities (B) (59.04) (51.11) 

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Proceeds /(Repayment) to Non-Current Borrowings (including current 
maturities) (net) (227.70) (168.95) 

Proceeds /(Repayment) to Current Borrowings (net) (12.22) (905.22) 

Interest & Financing Charges paid (121.64) (198.50) 

Net Cash Generated from/(Used in)  Financing Activities (C) (361.56) (1,272.67) 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (D) (A+B+C) 141.04 235.87 

 



    

 

 

102 

Annual Report 2023-24 

OM BHANSALI GROUP 

Cash and Cash equivalents at the Beginning of the Year   

Cash in hand 8.52 3.40 

Fixed deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months - - 

Bank Balances 239.13 8.38 

 247.65 11.78  

Cash and Cash equivalents at the End of the Year   

Cash in hand 12.92 8.52 

Fixed deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months - - 

Bank Balances 375.77 239.13 

Total 388.69 247.65  

Notes: 

(i) The above Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared using the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Ind AS-7 
Statements of Cash Flows. 

(ii) Previous year figures have been regrouped & reclassified wherever considered necessary to confirm to the current 
year's figures. 

(iii) Balance with banks includes Unclaimed dividend of RS. 0.34 Lacs in FY 2023-24 and Rs. 1.51 Lacs in FY 2022-23. 

The accompanying notes are integral part of the standalone financial statements. 

 

As per our report of even date attached 

 

FOR SINGHVI & MEHTA FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

FRN 002464W 

O.P.BHANSALI MANISH BOHRA 

(GARIMA TATER) (MANAGING DIRECTOR) (CHIEF FINANCIAL OFICER) 

PARTNER DIN 00351846 

M. NO. 407752 

UDIN : 24407752BKEFXO7201 

GAURAV BHANSALI AMIT BAXI 

PLACE : JODHPUR (WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR) (COMPANY SECRETARY) 

DATED: 30TH MAY, 2024 DIN 00351860 
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

 

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION 

Somi Conveyor Beltings Ltd. (referred to as “the company ") is one of the leading Conveyor belts 
manufacturing companies in India with operations spanning across Rajasthan, Maharashtra, 

Gujarat and Tamil Nadu with manufacturing facilities located at Jodhpur, Rajasthan.  

 

The Company is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered 

office of the Company is located at 4F-15, “Oliver House”, New Power House Road, Jodhpur. 
Equity Shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange ("BSE") as well as 

National Stock Exchange ("NSE"). 

 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

(A) General Information and Statement of Compliance with Ind AS  
These standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company have been prepared in 

accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian 

Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Company has uniformly applied the 

accounting policies during the periods presented. The financial statements are presented in 

Indian Rupees (“₹”) which is also the functional currency of the Company. The financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the 

Board of Directors on 30thMay, 2024.  

 

The revision to financial statements is permitted by the Board of Directors after obtaining 

necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act. 

 

(B) Basis for preparation of Financial Statements 

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS and disclosures thereon comply 

with requirements of Ind AS, stipulations contained in Schedule- III (revised) as applicable under 

Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 

2014, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended from time to time, 

MSMED Act, 2006, other pronouncements of ICAI, provisions of the Companies Act and Rules 

and guidelines issued by SEBI as applicable.  

 

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and under historical cost basis, 

except certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value. 

 

Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s 
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in revised Schedule – III to the Companies Act, 

2013 and Para 60 and 64 of Ind AS1"Presentation of Financial Statements". 
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(C) Use of estimates and judgements 

Ind AS enjoins management to make estimates and assumptions related to financial statements 

that affect reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and contingent liabilities 

pertaining to the year. Actual result may differ from such estimates. Any revision in accounting 

estimates is recognized prospectively in the period of change and material revision, including its 

impact on financial statements, is reported in the notes to accounts in the year of incorporation 

of revision. 

 

(D) Recognition of Income and Expenses 

i.Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been 

satisfied: 

a. the entity has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 

goods;  

b. the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated 

with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;  

c. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;  

d. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; 

and 

e. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

 

ii. Sales are measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Based on the 

educational material on Ind AS 115 issued by ICAI, the company has assumed that the recovery 

of excise duty flows to the company on its own account. This is for the reason that it is a liability 

of the manufacturer which forms a part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the 

goods are sold or not. However, Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the company 

on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on valued added to the commodity by the seller on 

behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue. 

 

iii. When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, 

revenue associated with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of 

the transaction at the end of the reporting period. The outcome of a transaction can be 

estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

a. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;  

b. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; 

c. the stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be 

measured reliably; and 

d. the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be 

measured reliably. 

 

iv. Dividend is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. 
 

v. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 39. 

 

vi. Other incomes have been recognized on accrual basis in financial statements except for cash 

flow information. 
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(E) Cost recognition 

Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred and are classified according to their nature. 

Expenditure capitalized represents employee costs, stores and other manufacturing supplies, 

and other expenses incurred for construction including product development undertaken by the 

Company. 

 

(F)  Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets 

Disputed liabilities and claims against the company including claims raised by fiscal authorities (e.g. 

Sales Tax, Income Tax, Excise etc.) pending in appeal / court for which no reliable estimate can be 

made and or involves uncertainty of the outcome of the amount of the obligation or which are 

remotely poised for crystallization are not provided for in accounts but disclosed in notes to 

accounts. 

However, present obligation as a result of past event with possibility of outflow of resources, when 

reliable estimation can be made of the amount of obligation, is recognized in accounts in terms of 

discounted value, if the time value of money is material using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the 

risk specific to the liability. 

No contingent asset is recognized but disclosed by way of notes to accounts. 

(G) Foreign currency 

The company’s financial statements are presented in INR(“₹”), which is also the company’s 
functional currency. 

i. Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at rate of overseas currency ruling on the 

date of transactions. Gain / Loss arising on account of rise or fall in overseas currencies vis-à-

vis functional currency between the date of transaction and that of payment is charged to 

Statement of Profit & Loss. 

 

ii. Monetary Assets/Liabilties in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the 

exchange rate ruling at the Reporting Date and the resultant gain or loss, is accounted for in 

the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

 

iii. Non-Monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are 

reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. 

 

 

(H) Taxation 

i. Income Tax 

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the 

extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in such case it is recognized in other 

comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the 

amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax 

laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. 

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or 

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period i.e. as per the provisions of the Income 
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Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time. Management periodically evaluates positions 

taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to 

interpretation. It establishes provisions, where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to 

be paid to the tax authorities.  

 

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after 

off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction for 

relevant tax paying units and where the Company is able to and intends to settle the asset and 

liability on a net basis. 

 

ii. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is provided using balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the 

reporting date as difference between the tax base and the carrying amount of assets and 

liabilities. Deferred tax is recognized subject to the probability that taxable profit will be 

available against which the temporary differences can be reversed.  

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 

the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized either in other 

comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if 

a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 

the deferred tax relates to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority and the 

company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

(I) Earnings per share 

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributed to 

equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is 

adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

(J) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials, 

components and consumables are ascertained on a moving weighted average/monthly moving 

weighted average basis. Cost including fixed and variable production overheads, are allocated to 

work-in-progress and finished goods determined on a full absorption cost basis. Net realizable value 

is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion 

and selling expenses. Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than 

those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all costs incurred in bringing the inventory 

to their present location and condition. 

 (K) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated 

depreciation less accumulated impairment, if any. Freehold land is measured at cost and is not 

depreciated. The cost comprises of the purchase price and any attributable cost for bringing the 
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asset to its working condition for its intended use; like freight, duties, taxes and other incidental 

expenses, net of CENVAT or Goods and service tax (GST) credit. 

Interest cost incurred for constructed assets is capitalized up to the date the asset is ready for its 

intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for financing the asset or the weighted 

average rate of all other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset. 

Depreciation is provided on the Written down Value (WDV)method over the estimated useful lives of 

the assets considering the nature, estimated usage, operating conditions, past history of 

replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers' warranties and maintenance 

support. The estimated useful life of items of Property, Plant & Equipment is mentioned below: 

 Years 

Factory Buildings 30 

Buildings (Other than Factory Buildings) 60 

Plant & Machinery 25 

Furniture & Fixtures and Laboratory Equipments 10 

Vehicles 8 

Office Equipments 5 

Computers 3 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to carry forward the previous GAAP net carrying 

value of all its property, plant and equipment recognized as at 1st April, 2017 as the deemed cost. 

Till year ended 31st March, 2019, the estimated useful life of certain assets of plant and machinery 

were 15 years with residual value of 5% of original cost. The management, based on internal and 

external technical evaluation, reassessed the estimates. On the basis of technical evaluation made 

by the Management, the Company has revised the useful life of those assets in the range of 25 

years and residual value to 20% of original cost effective from 1st April, 2019.  

(L) Other intangible assets 

Intangible Assets are initially recognized at:- 

i. In case the assets are acquired separately, then at cost, 

ii. In case the assets are internally generated, then at capitalized development cost subject to 

satisfaction of criteria of recognition (identifiability, control and future economic benefit) laid 

down from clause 11 to 17 of IND AS 38. 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization 

and accumulated impairment loss. Research costs are recognized as expense in the period in which 

it is incurred. 

Intangible assets with finite useful life are assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication 

that the intangible assets may be impaired. Intangible assets with infinite useful life including 

goodwill are tested for impairment annually. 

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized over the useful economic life on a straight line 

basis. In case of Trade Marks the useful life is taken to be 5 years and in case of Software, the 

useful life is taken as 3 years. 

Any item of intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 

are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the intangible 
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asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 

the intangible asset) is charged to revenue in the income statement when the intangible asset is 

derecognised. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Company had elected to carry forward the previous GAAP net carrying 

value of all its property, plant and equipment recognized as at 1st April, 2017 as the deemed cost. 

(M) Leases 116 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if 

the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 

exchange for consideration. 

As a lessee 

a) Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date 

the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any 

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease 

liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial 

direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any 

lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 

shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost 

reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life 

of the asset. 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.  

b) Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the 

present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments primarily 

comprise of fixed payments. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at 

the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily 

determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect 

the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. 

c) Short-term leases and leases of low value assets 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office 

spaces and certain equipment (i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from 

the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-

value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low 

value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as 

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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As a lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on 

a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an 

operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease 

term on the same basis as rental income. 

(N) Impairment 

At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that any 

property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite lives may be impaired. If any such 

impairment exists the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of 

impairment, if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual 

asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the 

asset belongs. 

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 

in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 

specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its 

carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its 

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss. 

The company assesses impairment based on Expected Credit Losses (ECL) model at an amount 

equal to:- 

• 12 months Expected Credit Losses, or 

• Lifetime Expected Credit Losses depending upon whether there has been a significant increase in 

credit risk since initial recognition. 

However, for trade receivables, the company does not track the changes in credit risk. Rather, it 

recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its 

initial recognition. 

As at March 31, 2024, none of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
were considered impaired. 

(O) Employee benefits 

i. Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be 

settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the 

related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the 
reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be incurred when the liabilities 

are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the 

balance sheet. 

 

ii. ESI is provided on the basis of actual liability accrued and paid to authorities. 
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iii. Gratuity Liability is on the basis of actuarial valuation as per IND AS-19. Liability recognized 

in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation 

at the end of each reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. 

 

iv. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries. The present value of 

defined benefit is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference 

to market yield at the end of each reporting period on government bonds that have terms 

approximate to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by 

applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair 

value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

 

v. In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company is entitled to receive 

benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees 

and the Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the covered 

employees’ salary (currently 12% of employees’ salary). 
 

vi. Actuarial gain / loss pertaining to re-measurement of net defined benefit liability (asset) are 

accounted for as OCI. All remaining components of costs are accounted for in statement of 

profit & loss. 

 

(P) Dividends 

Any dividend declared or paid by the Company for any financial year is based on the profits 

available for distribution as reported in the statutory financial statements of the Company prepared 

in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India or Ind AS. Indian law permits 

the declaration and payment of dividend out of profits for the year or previous financial year(s) as 

stated in the statutory financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles in India or Ind AS after providing for depreciation in accordance with 

the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act. However, in the absence or inadequacy of the 

said profits, it may declare dividend out of free reserves, subject to certain conditions as prescribed 

under the Companies (Declaration and payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014. 

(Q) Segments 

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108-Operating Segments, the Chief 

Operating Decision Maker(CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates the 

resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments. The 

Board of Directors of the Company allocate resources and assess the performance of the Company, 

thus are the CODM.The Company is engaged mainly in the business of manufacturing of Conveyor 

Belts consisting of all types of Conveyor Belts. These in the context of Ind AS 108 - operating 

segments reporting are considered to constitute one reportable segment. 

(R) Financial instruments 

i) Classification, initial recognition and measurement: 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets other than equity instruments are 

classified into categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and at amortised cost. 
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Financial assets that are equity instruments are classified as fair value through profit or loss or fair 

value through other comprehensive income. Financial liabilities are classified into financial liabilities 

at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. 

Financial instruments are recognised on the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Initially, a financial instrument is recognised at its fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to 

the acquisition or issue of financial instruments are recognised in determining the carrying amount, if 

it is not classified as at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequently, financial instruments are 

measured according to the category in which they are classified. 

 Financial assets at Amortised Cost: 

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding and that are held within a 

business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such contractual cash 

flows are classified in this category. Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost using 

the effective interest method less any impairment losses. 

 

 Financial Liabilities: 

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and, in the case of loans and 

borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through profit and 

loss (FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it 

is a derivative or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial Liabilities at FVTPL are 

measured at fair value and net gain or losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in 

statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized 

cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and 

losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also 

recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

ii) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:  

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 

the asset expires or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the asset to another entity which qualifies for derecognition as per Ind AS 109. If the 

Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and 

continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the asset 

and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all 

the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to 

recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds 

received.  

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the obligation 
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

iii) Impairment of financial assets:  

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on a financial asset that 

is at amortized cost. Loss allowance in respect of financial assets is measured at an amount equal 
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to life time ECL and is calculated as the difference between their carrying amount and the present 

value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

(S) Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of a 

qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for 

its intended use or sale. 

Borrowing cost consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as 

an adjustment to the borrowing costs.  

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for 

its intended use or sale. All other borrowing cost is recognized as expense in the period in which 

they are incurred. 

(T) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes 

cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 

amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(U) Investments 

Long term investments intended to be held for more than a year from the date of acquisition, are 

classified as long term investments and are carried at cost. Provision is made for diminution, other 

than temporary, in value of investments. Current investments are valued at lower of cost and market 

value.  

(V) Events after the reporting Period 

Adjusting Events: 

The Company is adjusting the amounts recognized in the financial statements to reflect adjusting 

events after reporting period. 

Non adjusting Events: 

All material non adjusting events are disclosed by way of notes stating its nature and material 

impact or a statement that its estimate cannot be made 
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CWIP AGING SCHEDULE 2023-24 

  ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

Projects in 
Progress 

44.65    44.65 

Development 
in Progress 

27.68 27.68 27.68 55.34 138.38 

 72.33 27.68 27.68 55.34 183.03 

 

CWIP Completion Schedule 

   

Particulars To be Completed in Total 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 
3 years 

Projects 1 20.70    20.70 

Projects 2 12.65    12.65 

Projects 3 11.30    11.30 

Projects 4 27.68 27.68 27.68 55.34 138.38 

 72.33 27.68 27.68 55.34 183.03 

 

2022-23 

   

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

Projects in 
Progress 

22.45    22.45 

Project 
Temporary 
Suspended 

     

Development 
in Progress 

27.68 27.68 27.68 83.02 166.06 

 50.13 27.68 27.68 83.02 188.51 

 

CWIP Completion Schedule 

   

Particulars To be Completed in Total 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

Project 1 22.45    22.45 

Project 2 27.68 27.68 27.68 83.02 166.06 

 50.13 27.68 27.68 83.02 188.51 
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

NOTE 3.  
   INVESTMENTS 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Non-Current  
   NSC 
 

0.23  0.23  

Total Non Current Investments 0.23  0.23  
 

NOTE 4.   
  LOANS  
 

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Current  

 Loans and Advances to Employees  

 Unsecured, considered good  18.35 6.65 

Total Current Loans 18.35 6.65 

Advance granted to Employees as per Company Policy on short term advance basis. 
 

NOTE 5.   
  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS  
 

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Non-Current  

 Security & other deposits  93.63 28.52 

Total Non-Current Financial Assets 93.63 28.52  

   

    Current   

Security & other deposits 93.85 108.19 

Total Current Financial Assets 93.85 108.19 
 

NOTE 6. 
   A) NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Advance Income Tax 88.00 50.00  
Provision for Tax (150.77)  (67.98) 

Non Current Tax Assets (Net) (62.77)  (17.98) 
 

B) TAX EXPENSE 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Current Income Tax  150.77 67.98  
Deferred Tax Expense 3.88 12.67  

Total Tax Expense for the Year 154.65 80.65  
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Reconciliation of effective income tax rate 

 
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Profit before tax   

  

  

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate @ 25.168%  609.91 427.46 

Tax effect of:   

Non-deductible tax expenses   

Provision for bad debts not allowable for taxes       54.51  42.72 

Depreciation as per Statement of Profit and Loss       116.82  101.25 

Interest on TDS and Previous Year Income Tax            0.01  0.62 

Previous Year Income Tax            3.50  - 

GST Penalty            0.28  - 

Disallowance U/s 43B   

Any sum payable by way of contribution to any provident fund 

or superannuation fund or gratuity fund or any other fund for 

the welfare of employees-Gratuity & Leave Encashment 

 
13.89 

 
26.83 

Deductions   

Depreciation as per Income tax act 194.25 208.89 

Risk Purchase Recovery from Buyer Settled in Current Year  - 107.69 

Deduction allowable - Others   

Deduction u/s. 43B 5.61 10.97 

Total Taxable Income 599.05 271.33 
Tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss at 

the effective tax rate of 25.168 % (PY: 25.168%) 

150.77 67.98 

Deferred Tax Liability 3.88 12.67 

Total Tax Liability recognised in Statement of Profit & 
Loss account 

154.65 80.65 

 

 

C) DEFERRED TAX ASSET/ (LIABILITIES) [NET] ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars 

31st March, 2024 

Net 
balance 
April 1, 
2023 

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss 

Recognised 
in OCI 

Recognised 
directly in 

equity 

Other Net Deferred 
tax 

asset 

Deferred 
tax 

liability 

Deferred tax asset/ 
(liabilities) 

    
 

  
 

  
 

  

On deficit of carrying 
value of PPE over Tax 
base 

(100.74) (19.48) - - - (120.22) - (120.22) 

Provision for Employee 
Benefit 

6.81  0.12 0.07 - - 7.00  7.00 - 

Provision for Expenses 26.51  15.49 - - - 42.00  42.00 - 

Deffered Revenue (4.25) - - - - (4.25) - (4.25) 

Other items 85.53  - - - - 85.53  85.53  - 

Tax assets/ 

(liabilities) 
- (3.87) -     - 134.53 (124.47) 

Net tax assets/ 
(liabilities) 

13.86 - -     - 10.06 - 
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( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars 

31st March, 2023 

Net 
balance 
April 1, 
2022 

Recognised 
in profit or 

loss 

Recognised 
in OCI 

Recognised 
directly in 

equity 

Other Net Deferred 
tax 

asset 

Deferred 
tax 

liability 

Deferred tax asset/ 
(liabilities) 

    
 

  
 

  
 

  

On deficit of carrying 
value of PPE over Tax 
base 

(73.41) (27.33) 
- - - 

(100.74) 
- 

(100.74) 

Provision for Employee 
Benefit 

3.03 0.01  3.77 - - 6.81  6.81 - 

Provision for Expenses 11.86 14.65 - - - 26.51  26.51 - 

Deferred Revenue (4.25) - - - - (4.25) - (4.25) 

Other items 85.53 - - - - 85.53  85.53  - 

Tax assets/ 

(liabilities) 

- (12.67) - - - - 118.85 (104.99) 

Net tax assets/ 
(liabilities) 

22.76 - - - - - 13.86 - 

 

NOTE 7 
 OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Non-Current     

Prepaid expense     17.26  16.66 

Capital Advances                 -    1.77 

Total Non-current non-financial assets          17.26  18.43 

    

 Current   

 Prepaid expense      96.35  33.95 

Advances to vendors        19.20  84.39 

Balance with Government Authorities     236.49  202.09 

Export Incentives Receivable              -    2.19 

Other non financial assets          21.90  29.19 

Total current non-financial assets       373.94                   351.81 
 

NOTE 8 
 INVENTORIES (For valuation, refer significant accounting policy) ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Raw materials & components 1731.14 1694.94 
Work-in-progress 587.61 952.81 
Finished goods 296.69 528.35 
Goods-in-transit - Finished goods - - 

Total Inventories  2615.44 3176.10 

Inventories have been hypothecated with banks against working capital loans.  
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NOTE 9 
 TRADE RECEIVABLES ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Non Current   

Trade Receivable considered good - Unsecured 129.79 279.65 
Trade Receivable considered doubtful - Unsecured 88.06 43.39 

Trade Receivable Credit Impaired - - 
Less : Impairment on account of expected credit loss 
assessment (88.06) (43.39) 

Total Trade Receivables 129.79 279.65 
 

a. Details of Trade Receivable Ageing 
As at 31st March, 2024 

    
 ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment  Total  

Less than 
6 months 

6 months 
- 1 year 

1-2 years  2-3 years  
 More than 3 

years  

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered good 

- - - - - - 
        121.34  

       
121.34  

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered doubtful 

- - - - - - 
          79.61  

         
79.61  

Less: Impairment 
on account of 
expected credit loss 
assessment 

    
- - 

         (79.61) 
       

(79.61) 

Disputed Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered good 

- - - - - - 
            8.45  

           
8.45  

Disputed Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered doubtful 

- - - - - - 
            8.45  

           
8.45  

Less: Impairment 
on account of 
expected credit loss 
assessment 

- - - - - - 
           (8.45) 

         
(8.45) 

Total Trade 
Receivables 

- - - - - - 
129.79 129.79 

. 
     

   
As at 31st March, 2023 

    
 ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment  Total  

Less than 
6 months 

6 months 
- 1 year 

1-2 years  2-3 years  
 More than 3 

years  
Undisputed Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered good 

- - - - - 0.94 263.99 264.93 

Undisputed Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered doubtful 

    
- 0.05 42.57 42.62 

Less: Impairment 
on account of 
expected credit loss 
assessment 

    
- (0.05) (42.57) (42.62) 

Disputed Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered good 

    
- - 14.72 14.72 

Disputed Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered doubtful 

    
- - 0.77 0.77 

Less: Impairment 
on account of 
expected credit loss 
assessment 

    
- - (0.77) (0.77) 

Total Trade 
Receivables 

- - - - - 0.94 278.71 279.65 
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TRADE RECEIVABLES ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Current   

Trade Receivable considered good – Unsecured 4088.60 2926.83 

Trade Receivable considered doubtful - Unsecured 13.57 11.03 
Trade Receivable Credit Impaired - - 
Less : Impairment on account of expected credit loss 
assessment (13.57) (11.03) 

Total Trade Receivables 4088.60 2926.83 
 

 

a. Details of Trade Receivable Ageing 
As at 31st March, 2024 

    

 ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment  Total  

Less than 
6 months 

6 months 
- 1 year 

1-2 years 
 2-3 

years  

 More 
than 3 

years  
Undisputed 
Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered 
good 

               -    
    2,996.03         613.63         231.90         102.62             6.45          137.98  

    
4,088.60  

Undisputed 
Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered 
doubtful 

               -    
               -                   -                   -               2.03             0.31            11.23  

         
13.57  

Less : 
Impairment on 
account of 
expected 
credit loss 
assessment 

 
               (2.03)          (0.31)          (11.23) 

       
(13.57) 

Total Trade 
Receivables 

               -        2,996.03         613.63         231.90        102.62             6.45          137.98  4,088.60  

          

As at 31st March, 2023 
    

 ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment  Total  

Less than 
6 months 

6 months 
- 1 year 

1-2 years  2-3 years  
 More than 

3 years  

Undisputed 
Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered good 

               -    2351.24 333.03 62.84 7.49 2.57 169.66 2926.83 

Undisputed 
Trade 
Receivables  - 
Considered 
doubtful 

               -    - - - - - 11.03 11.03 

Less : 
Impairment on 
account of 
expected credit 
loss assessment 

      (11.03) (11.03) 

Total Trade 
Receivables 

- 2,351.24 333.03 62.84 7.49 2.57 169.66 2,926.83 

 

Trade Receivables include balance with related parties. (refer to Note No. 29) 
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NOTE 10 
   CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS & OTHER BANK BALANCES ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 

Cash and Cash Equivalents* 
   Balance with banks / financial institutions 
   In current accounts* 
 

375.77 239.13 
Cash on hand 

 
12.92 8.52 

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 388.69 247.65 

     

Other Bank Balances 
  Margin money deposits 
  With original maturity of more than 3 months but upto 12 

months 455.45 330.02 

Total Other Bank Balances 455.45 330.02 
* Balance with banks includes unclaimed dividend of 0.34 for F.Y. 2017-18 

     

 

NOTE 11 

   EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL * 

   2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (31st March, 

2023 : 2,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 

 

2500.00 2500.00 

Total 

 

2500.00 2500.00 

. 

   Issued, subscribed and paid up capital*   

  1,17,79,656 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (31st March, 

2023 : 1,17,79,656 equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 

 

 1177.97 1177.97 

Total 

 

1177.97 1177.97 

* There are no movements / changes in authorised, issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity 
share capital. 
. 

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 

reporting period: 

PARTICULARS 
No. of Shares ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 

Shares outstanding at 1st April 2022 11779656 1177.97 

Add : Shares issued during the year - - 

As at 31st March 2023 11779656 1177.97 

   

Shares outstanding at 1st April 2023 11779656 1177.97 

Add : Shares issued during the year - - 

As at 31st March 2024 11779656 1177.97 
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Details of shareholder(s) holding more than 5% Equity Shares in the company: 
 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Number of Equity Shares   

Om Praksah Bhansali 4,417,011  4,417,011  

Om Kumari Bhansali 1,091,221  1,091,221  

Vimal Bhansali 598,840  598,840  

% Holding in Equity Shares   

Om Praksah Bhansali 37.50% 37.50% 

Om Kumari Bhansali 9.26% 9.26% 

Vimal Bhansali 5.08% 5.08% 

Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters 
Promoter Name 

Class of Shares 

As at 31 March  2024 As at 1 April 2023 % 
Change 
during 

the year 

No. of 
Shares 

%of total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

%of total 
shares 

Om Prakash Bhansali Equity 4,417,011  37.50% 4,417,011  37.50% -    

Om Kumari Bhansali Equity 1,091,221  9.26% 1,091,221  9.26% -    

Vimal Bhansali Equity 598,840  5.08% 598,840  5.08% -    

Priya Bhansali Equity 68,691  0.58% 68,691  0.58% -    

Gaurav Bhansali Equity 577,305  4.90% 577,305  4.90% - 

Ruchi Bhansali Equity 72,689  0.62% 72,689  0.62% -    

Om Prakash Bhansali (HUF) Equity 135,000  1.15% 135,000  1.15% -    
              

Promoter Name 

Class of Shares 

As at 31 March  2023 As at 1 April 2022 % 
Change 
during 

the year 

No. of 
Shares 

%of total 
shares 

No. of 
Shares 

%of total 
shares 

Om Prakash Bhansali Equity 4,417,011  37.50% 4,417,011  37.50% -    

Om Kumari Bhansali Equity 1,091,221  9.26% 1,091,221  9.26% -    

Vimal Bhansali Equity 598,840  5.08% 598,840  5.08% -    

Priya Bhansali Equity 68,691  0.58% 68,691  0.58% -    

Gaurav Bhansali Equity 577,305  4.90% 572,335  4.86% - 

Ruchi Bhansali  Equity 72,689  0.62% 72,689  0.62% -    

Om Prakash Bhansali (HUF) Equity 135,000  1.15% 135,000  1.15% -    
 

NOTE 12  

   OTHER EQUITY 

  
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Securities Premium 1,818.17  1,818.17  
Retained Earnings 4,101.45 3,646.18 
Other Comprehensive Income 7.42 7.63 

Total Other Equity 5,927.04 5,471.98 
 

 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
 

As at As at 

 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Securities Premium 
   Opening Balance 
 

1,818.17  1,818.17  
Movements during the year 

 
-    -    

Less: Utilisation during the year 
 

-    -    

Total Securities Premium 
 

1,818.17  1,818.17  
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( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
 

As at As at 

 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Retained Earnings 
   Opening Balance 
 

3,646.18 3407.06 
Add:  

   Profit/(Loss) during the year 
 

455.26 346.81 
Appropriations 

 
- 107.69 

Total Retained Earnings 
 

4,101.45 3646.18 
 

 

 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
 

As at As at 

 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Other Comprehensive Income 
   Opening Balance 
 

7.63 18.84 
Current Year OCI 

 
(0.21) (11.21) 

Total Other Comprehensive Income 
 

7.42 7.63 
The Company has re-measured its long term employee benefits and the corresponding liabilities on the 
basis of report of an actuary and accordingly movement in OCI during the year is reported. Refer Note-27 
for detailed disclosure. 
The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined 
considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above may not be 
distributable in full. 
 

NOTE 13 

   BORROWINGS 

  
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
 

As at As at 

 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Non-Current Borrowings 

   Secured 

   Term Loan from Banks 

 

105.90  231.07 

Unsecured 

 

   

Loan from Directors 

 
-    102.53 

Total Non-Current Borrowings 

 
105.90  333.60 

Current Borrowings 

 

  

 Secured 

 

 

 Buyer's Credit for Raw Material  -  

Cash Credit  1,347.24   1249.99 

  1,347.24  1,249.99 

Current Maturities of Non-Current Borrowings   

Secured     

Term Loan from Banks  65.07  151.73 

Unsecured    

Loan from Directors  2.19  25.00 

Loan from Others  - - 

  67.26  176.73 

Total current borrowings  1,414.50  1,426.72 
Note: 1. There is no default in repayment of principal loan or interest thereon. 
2. Cash Credits are secured by way of Hypothecation of Current Assets present and future including entire 
Stock, Raw Materials, Consumable Stores and Spares, Finished Goods and Book Debts. 
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3. Quarterly returns / statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are in agreement 

with the books of accounts. 
 
a.Loan repayment schedule 

  Sr. 

No 

Particulars Total 
Outstan-

ding* 

Maturity 

period 

Rate of 

Interest 

(p.a.) 

Repayable in 

  12 months 2-4 

years 

5-7 

years 

  1 PNB GECL T/L 1.0 
Extension 

153.35 2026-27 7.65% 61.17 92.18 - 

  2 PNB Car Loan 17.62 2028-29 7.85% 3.91 11.73 1.98 

  3 Vimal Bhansali 2.19 2027-28 7.00% 2.19 - - 

    TOTAL 173.16   67.27 103.91 1.98 
 

*The amounts outstanding for various loans as on 31st March, 2024 are as per the terms of the agreement. 

The amount represents actual amount payable to banks on reporting date excluding accounting effects of 

Effective interest Rate (EIR) as per Ind AS. 

NOTE 14 

   OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Current 
   Payables on Purchase of Fixed Assets 
 

- 1.52 
Other Payables* 

 
187.02 180.95 

Total Current Financial Liabilities 
 

187.02 182.47 

* Other payables include Creditors for Expenses. 
 

 

NOTE 15 

   PROVISIONS 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Non-Current 
   Provision for gratuity* 
 

41.75 33.88 

Total Non-Current Provisions  41.75 33.88 

    Current 
   Provision for gratuity 
 

6.31 6.87 
Provision for leave encashment 

 
2.22 2.40 

Total Current Provisions 8.53 9.27 

*The Company has re-measured its long-term employee benefits and the corresponding liabilities 
on the basis of report of an actuary and accordingly gratuity provision classified into current and 
non-current provisions. Refer Note-27 for detailed disclosure.   
 

 

 

NOTE 16 
   OTHER NON FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

    Current 
   Statutory Liability 
 

347.30 296.23 
Advance from customers 

 
42.07 56.82 

Unclaimed Dividend  
 

0.34 1.51 
Other non financial liabilities 

 
27.80 27.63 

Total Current Non-Financial Liabilities 417.52 382.19 

 
 

 

NOTE 17 
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TRADE PAYABLES 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 309.40 50.05 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 1303.80 1139.17 

Total Trade Payables 1613.21 1189.17 
 

a. Trade Payable Ageing schedule: 
As at 31st March, 2024 

   
 ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

 

 
   

  

Particulars Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for following period from due date of 

payment 

 Total  

Less than 
1 year 

1-2 years  2-3 years  
 More than 3 

years  

(i) MSME -    309.40 - - - - 309.40 

(ii) Others   -    1201.14 102.66 - - - 1303.80 

Total  -    1510.54 102.66 - - - 1613.21 

          

As at 31st March, 2023 

  

 ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars Unbilled Not Due 

Outstanding for following period from due date of 
payment 

 Total  

Less than 

1 year 
1-2 years  2-3 years  

 More than 3 

years  

(i) MSME              -    50.05 - - - - 50.05 

(ii) Others              -    1058.05 81.07 - - - 1139.12 

Total               -    1108.10 81.07 - - - 1189.17 

b. Disclosure as required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

  ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars As at As at 

31st March, 2024 31st March, 2023 
1.  The principal amount outstanding as at the end of accounting year. 
  a) Trade payable     309.40  50.05  
   b) Capital creditors        -                           -    

2. Principal amount due and remaining unpaid as at the end of 
accounting year. 

- - 

3. Interest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 
of 2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during accounting year. 

- - 

4. Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

- - 

5. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting 
year (Refer Note below). 

- - 

6. Further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above 
are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

- - 

 

No interest has been paid by the Company to the enterprises covered under Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 according to the terms agreed with the enterprises. 
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The above information regarding micro, small and medium enterprises have been determined to the extent 

such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. 
 
 

NOTE 18 
    REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS     ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
For the Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Sale of Products   10,210.69 9,369.57  
Export Incentives  0.26 3.72  

Total Revenue from Operations  10,210.95 9,373.29  
  

  
a. Sale of Products comprises of:  

  (a) Manufactured Goods  10,193.35  9,366.19 
(b) Traded Goods                          -    - 
(c) Sale of Scrap           4.59  2.68 
(d) Service Charges        12.76  0.70 

     10,210.69  9,369.57 

NOTE 19  

  OTHER INCOME  

 
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
For the Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Interest Income   
 Interest on fixed deposits with banks        28.25  16.69 

Other interest (including interest on income tax refunds) 1.14   1.09  
Gain on exchange fluctuations         1.85  - 
Other non-operating income#          0.16  1.75 

Total Other Income           31.40  19.53 

# Other Non-Operating Income comprise income from MEIS license sold in open market. 
 

NOTE 20 

   PRODUCTION EXPENDITURE  

 
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
For the Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Power & Fuel                   294.77  251.55 

Consumable Stores                    68.55  54.96 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses                    35.57  22.21 

Testing Charges                    17.84  10.44 

Factory Expenses                      2.87  2.73 

Freight Expenses                   304.37  276.14 

Packing Expenses                      1.45  0.99 

Water expense                      3.04  2.90 

Wages                    48.15  52.97 

                    776.61  674.89 

NOTE 21  

   COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED  

 
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
For the Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Opening Inventory  1,694.94 2,268.40 

Add: Purchases During The Year  7,199.80 5,994.22 



    

 

 

126 

Annual Report 2023-24 

OM BHANSALI GROUP 

Less: Closing Inventory  1,731.14 1,694.94 

Total Cost of Material Consumed  7,163.60 6,567.68 

 

   NOTE 22  
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK-IN-
PROGRESS & STOCK-IN-TRADE              ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
For the Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Inventories (at closing)  

  Finished Goods  296.69 528.35 
Work-in-progress        587.61  952.81 

(A)     884.30  1,481.16 

Inventories (at beginning)    
 Finished Goods         528.35  921.90 

Work-in-progress         952.81  1,196.72 

(B)     1,481.16  2,118.62 

Total Change in Inventories of Finished Goods, 
Stock in Process and Stock in Trade-(A)+(B) 596.86 637.46 

 
   NOTE 23.  

   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES  

 
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
For the Year Ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Salaries & wages  320.08 289.32 
Contribution to provident fund & others  18.22 15.97 

Staff welfare expenses  3.93 1.80 

Total Employee Benefit Expenses  
 

342.23 307.09 
 

NOTE 24 
   FINANCE COSTS 
  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
  For the Year Ended 

  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Interest Expense  121.64 198.50 

Bank Charges  57.74 72.88 

Total Finance Costs 

 

179.38 271.38 
 

NOTE 25  
  OTHER EXPENSES  
 

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
  For the Year Ended 

  March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses          20.08  27.27 
Legal Expenses            7.77  6.02 
Bad Debts Provision#          54.51  42.72 
Bad Debts  Written off#          66.21  102.24 
Printing & Stationary Expenses            1.11  1.27 
Professional Fees             23.61  20.50 
Selling & Distribution Expenses            89.68  23.26 
Administrative Expenses              30.21  25.65 
Auditors Remuneration             6.50  6.50 
Insurance           33.95  17.37 
Duty Drawback Demand       -    0.59 
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GST Demand                       -    - 
Interest on Statutory Dues            0.23 0.90 

Loss on Exchange Fluctuations                         -    21.19 
Office Rent          1.10  1.10 
Travelling Expenses           12.96  4.35 
Other Expenses           109.03  104.68 

Total Other Expenses   456.95 405.61 
 

# Bad Debts Written Off & Provisions 
The Company has debts (Debtors Outstanding against supplies) which are irrevocable and therefore; written 
off in the books of accounts during the financial year amounting to Rs. 66.21 lacs in accordance with the 
resolution passed in the meeting of Board of Directors. Amount so debited to Profit and Loss Account was due 
for more than 3 years and examined as debts not recoverable. Apart from above, provision for doubtful debts 
of Rs. 54.51 lacs has also been made by debiting the Profit and Loss Account. 
 

  

 

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
 For the Year Ended 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

a.  Payment to Auditors as:  
  Internal Audit Fees  1.40 1.40 

Statutory Audit Fees  2.75 2.75 
Tax Audit Fees   1.25 1.25 
Other Services  1.10 1.10 

Total payment to Auditors  6.50 6.50 
 

NOTE 26  

  EARNING PER SHARE (EPS)  

   
PARTICULARS 

 For the Year Ended 

 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders for (Rs.  in Lacs): 
Basic earnings 

 
455.26 346.81 

Adjusted for the effect of dilution 
 

455.26 346.81 
    Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares for: 
Basic EPS 

 
11,779,656 11,779,656 

Adjusted for the effect of dilution 
 

11,779,656 11,779,656 
    Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS) (Face Value of Rs.10/-) 
Basic (Rs.) (not annualised) 

 
3.86 2.94 

Diluted (Rs.) (not annualised)   3.86 2.94 
 

 

 

7.   As per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits", the disclosures as defined are given below: 
 

Assumptions used for valuation: In arriving at the valuation for gratuity, following assumptions were 
used: 

Particulars 
  2023-24 2022-23 

  Gratuity (Unfunded) Gratuity (Unfunded) 

Mortality 

 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
2012-14 (Urban) 

Indian Assured Lives Mortality 
2012-14 (Urban) 

Rate of Employee Turnover 
 

5.00% 5.00% 

Rate of Discounting 
 

7.19%  7.44%  
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Rate of Return on Plan Assets  NA NA 

Rate of Salary escalation   5.00%  5.00% 

 
The following table sets out status of gratuity plan and leave salary as required under Indian 
Accounting Standard 19 on “Employee Benefit”. 
 

  ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

Particulars 
2023-24 2022-23 

Gratuity (Unfunded) Gratuity (Unfunded) 

I. Table showing change in employee 
benefit obligation     

Opening defined benefit obligation 40.75 20.49 

Interest Cost 3.03 1.47 

Current Service Cost 4.00 3.80 

Past Service Cost 
 

- - 

Benefit Paid - - 

Actuarial Loss / (gain) on Obligations 

         Due to Demographic Assumptions - - 

       Due to Financial Assumptions 0.83 (0.83) 

       Due to Experience (0.54) 15.82  

Liability at the end of the period 48.07 40.75 

      
II. Table showing change in Fair Value of 
Plan Assets     

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning  - - 

Adjustment to Opening fund - - 

Expected Return on Plan Assets - - 

Contributions - - 

Benefit Paid - - 

Actuarial gain /(loss) on Plan Assets - - 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the 
period 

- - 

      
III. Expense recognized in Statement of 
Profit & Loss     

Current Service cost 4.00 3.80  

Past Service Cost 
 

 -   -  

Interest cost 3.03 1.46  

Total Expense recognized in SOPL during 
the year 

7.03  5.26  

      
IV. Actual Gain / loss recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income     

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligations 0.28  14.98 

Actuarial (gain) / loss on Plan Assets - - 

Income Tax relating to Actuarial Gain / Loss (0.07)       (3.77) 
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Net Actuarial (gain) / loss recognized 
during the year 

0.21  11.21  

 

V. Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 
    

Liability at the end of the period 48.07 40.75  

Fair Value of Plan Asset at the end of the period 
  

Net Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 48.07 40.75  

Current liability 
 

6.31  6.87 

Non-current liability 
 

41.76 33.88 

Total Liability 
 

48.07  40.75 

      VI. Sensitivity Analysis 
     Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, 

holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the 
amounts shown below: 

 

Sensitivity analysis - Gratuity 
2023-24 2022-23 

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Discount rate (1% movement) (3.15)    3.57 (2.65) 3.02 

Salary growth rate (1% movement)        3.62     (3.24) 3.07 (2.73) 

Employee turnover rate (1% movement)   0.50     (0.56) 0.52 (0.58) 
 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the 
defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation 
of one another as some of the assumption may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above 
sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligations has been calculated using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that 
applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet. 
 

28.    FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FAIR VALUE AND RISK MEASUREMENTS 

A.   Financial instruments by category and their fair value 

       
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

As at March 31, 2024 

Carrying amount Fair value 

FVTPL FVTOCI 
Amortised 

Cost 
Total 

Level 1 - 
Quoted 
price in 
active 

markets 

Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Level 3 - 
Significant 
unobserva
ble inputs 

Total 

Financial assets                 
Investments- Non-Current - - 0.23  0.23  -    0.23           -    0.23  
Trade Receivables - - 

  
-    

 
         -    0.00  

- Non-current - - 129.79  129.79    129.79  
 

129.79  
- Current - - 4088.60  4088.60    4088.60  

 
4088.60  

Loans- Current - - 18.35  18.35  -    18.35           -    18.35  
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - 388.69  388.69  -    388.69           -    388.69  
Other Bank Balances - - 455.45  455.45  -    455.45           -    455.45  
Other financial assets   

 
    

  
  

- Non-current - - 93.63  93.63               -    93.63           -    93.63  
- Current - - 93.85  93.85                -    93.85           -    93.85  

Total financial assets - - 5268.59  5268.59  -    5268.59           -    5268.59  

  
        Financial liabilities 
        Long-term borrowings   

(including current 
maturities of long-term 
borrowings) -    -    

173.16  173.16  
         

-    
173.16           -    173.16  

Short-term borrowings -    -    1347.24  1347.24    -    1347.24           -    1347.24  
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Trade Payables -    -    1613.21  1613.21      -    1613.21           -    1613.21  
Other financial liabilities   

 
  

   
  

 - Non-Current -    -    0.00  0.00  -    0.00           -    0.00  
- Current -    -    187.02  187.02                -    187.02           -    187.02  

Total financial liabilities - - 3320.63  3320.63     -    3320.63           -    3320.63  

         
 

  

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

As at March 31, 2023 

Carrying amount Fair value 

FVTPL FVTOCI 
Amortised 

Cost 
Total 

Level 1 - 
Quoted 
price in 
active 

markets 

Level 2 - 
Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Level 3 - 
Significant 
unobserva
ble inputs 

Total 

Financial assets                 
Investments- Non-Current -    -    0.23  0.23  -    0.23           -    0.23  
Trade Receivables -    -    3206.48  3206.48  -    3206.48           -    3206.48  
Loans- Current -    -    6.66  6.66  -    6.66           -    6.66  
Cash and Cash Equivalents -    -    247.65  247.65  -    247.65           -    247.65  
Other Bank Balances -    -    330.02  330.02  -    330.02           -    330.02  
Other financial assets   

   
  

  
  

- Non-current -    -    28.52  28.52  -    28.52           -    28.52  
- Current -    -    108.19  108.19  -    108.19           -    108.19  

Total financial assets -    -    3927.75  3927.75  -    3927.75           -    3927.75  

                  
Financial liabilities   

  
  

   
  

Long-term borrowings   
(including current 
maturities of long-term 
borrowings) 

         
-    

         
-    

510.33  510.33  
         

-    
510.33           -    510.33  

Short-term borrowings -    -    1249.99  1249.99  -    1249.99           -    1249.99  
Trade Payables -    -    1189.18  1189.18  -    1189.18           -    1189.18  
Other financial liabilities   

  
  

   
  

 - Non-Current -    -    0.00  0.00  -    0.00           -    0.00  
- Current -    -    182.47  182.47  -    182.47           -    182.47  

Total financial liabilities -             -   3131.97 3131.97        -    3131.97           -    3131.97  
 
Fair value hierarchy 
Level I - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities such as quoted price for an equity 
security on Security Exchanges. 
Level II - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
Level III - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 
 

B.   Financial risk management 
The Company's activities expose it to variety of financial risks such as credit risk, liquidity risk, and market 
risk. The Company's focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize 
potential adverse effects on its financial performance. 
(i) Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to 
the contractual terms or obligations. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk of default and the risk of 
deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. 

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company makes investment in deposits with banks 
only. 

Exposure to credit risk 

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to 
credit risk was Rs. 4236.74 Lacs as at March 31, 2024 and Rs. 3213.14 Lacs as at March 31, 2023, being the 
total of the carrying amount of trade receivables and loans & advances to employees. 

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired  

None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. 
Regarding trade receivables and other receivables, and other loans or receivables that are neither impaired 
nor past due, there were no indications as at March 31, 2024, that defaults in payment obligations will 
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occur. 

In addition, exposure to credit risk is also in relation to financial guarantee contracts for which the company 
has created a liability for potential exposures. 

The ageing of trade receivables as of Balance Sheet date is given below. The age analysis has been 
considered from the due date. 
 

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023 

Not past due but impaired                     -                        -    
Neither past due not impaired            2,996.03  2,351.24 

Past due not impaired   
      1-180 days               613.63  333.03 

     181-365 days               231.90  62.84 

     more than 365 days                 52.63  15.88 

Past due impaired    
      1-180 days                     -    - 

     181-365 days                     -    - 

     more than 365 days               425.82  497.91 

Less : Impairment on account of expected credit loss assessment               101.63  54.42 

Total          4,218.38  3206.48 
 

Trade Receivables 
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. 
The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country in which the 
customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit 
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which 
the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. 

(ii) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk arises from the Company’s inability to meet its cash flow commitments on time. Liquidity risk is 
the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are 
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Company’s reputation. 
The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances. The 
Company has signed Rupee Loan Facility Agreement for variable rate borrowing facility amounting to 
Rs.1975.00 Lacs to meet the cash flow commitments. 
 
 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The 
amounts are gross and undiscounted. 
 

 

 

     
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

As at March 31, 2024 

Contractual cash flows 

Carrying 
amount 

Total 
Less than 
12 months 

More than 
12 Months 

Non-derivative financial liabilities        
Non-Current Borrowings 105.90  105.90  -    105.90  
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities                    -    -    -                    -    
Current Borrowings 

 
1414.50  1,414.50  1414.50  - 

Current Trade Payables  1,613.21  1,613.21  1,613.21  - 
Other Current Financial Liabilities 187.02  187.02  187.02                  -    

Total 3320.63 3320.63 3214.72 105.90  
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   ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

As at March 31, 2023 

Contractual cash flows 

Carrying 

amount 
Total 

Less than 

12 months 

More than 

12 Months 

Non-derivative financial liabilities         
Non current Borrowings 333.60 333.60 - 333.60 
Other Non-Current Financial Liabilities  - - - - 
Current Borrowings 

 

1426.72 1426.72 1426.72  

Current Trade Payables  1189.18 1189.18 1189.18  
Other Current Financial Liabilities 182.47 182.47 182.47 - 

Total 3131.97 3131.97 2798.37 333.60 

 
(iii) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and 
equity prices – will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The 
objective of market risk management is to avoid excessive exposure in our foreign currency revenues and 
costs. 

Interest rate risk includes risk that the future cash flows of floating interest bearing borrowings fluctuate 
because of fluctuation in the interest rates. The cash flows of the Company is sensitive to higher/lower 
interest expense from borrowing as a result of change in interest rates. A reasonable possible change of 50 
basis points (bp) in interest rates at the reporting date would have impact by the amount shown in sensitivity 

analysis as below: 

Particulars 50 bp Increase 50 bp decrease 

March 31, 2024     

Non current - Borrowings (23.93) 23.93 

Current - Long term borrowings 
  

Total (23.93) 23.93 

March 31, 2023 
  

Non current - Borrowings (47.96) 47.96 

Current - Long term borrowings - - 

Total (47.96) 47.96 

 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees. The Company do not use derivative financial 
instruments for trading, speculative or other purposes. 

 

(a) Foreign currency exchange rate risk 

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the Statement of Profit and 

Loss and equity, where any transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are 

denominated in a currency other than the functional currency. 

Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Company operates, its operations are 

subject to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. The risks primarily relate to 

fluctuations in U.S. dollar, against the respective functional currencies of Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited. 

The Company, as per its risk management policy, generally uses natural hedge towards set off of financial 

liabilities by available financial assets. For it, the company operates an account in foreign currency (US$) and 

pool the respective realization amount and the same has been utilized towards financial liabilities as on date 

in order to reduce the exchange loss. Furthermore, any movement in the functional currencies of the various 
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operations of the Company against major foreign currencies may impact the Company’s revenues from its 
international operations. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company’s cost of imports 

and cost of borrowings and consequently may increase the cost of financing the Company’s capital 
expenditures. 

The Company evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to 

exchange rate risks. 

The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign 

exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign 

exchange rates of each currency by 10%. 

The following analysis is based on the gross exposure as of the relevant balance sheet dates, which could 

affect the Statement of Profit and Loss. There is no exposure to the Statement of Profit and Loss on account 

of translation of financial statements of consolidated foreign entities. 

The following analysis is based on the gross exposure as of the relevant balance sheet dates, which could 

affect the Statement of Profit and Loss. There is no exposure to the Statement of Profit and Loss on account 

of translation of financial statements of consolidated foreign entities. 

The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2024: 

 

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS U.S. DOLLAR 

Financial assets 91.04 

Financial liabilities - 

 

10% appreciation/depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the 
Company would result in decrease/ increase in the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax by approximately Rs. 
9.10 Lacs for financial assets for the year ended March 31, 2024. 
 
The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure as at March 31, 2023: 

 

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS U.S. DOLLAR 

Financial assets 89.77 

Financial liabilities 123.38 

10% appreciation/depreciation of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currency of the 

Company would result in decrease/ increase in the Company’s profit/(loss) before tax by approximately Rs. 

8.97 Lacs and Rs.12.34 Lacs for financial assets and financial liabilities respectively for the year ended March 

31, 2023  

(b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is measured by using the cash flow sensitivity for changes in variable interest rates. Any 

movement in the reference rates could have an impact on the Company’s cash flows as well as costs. 

The Company is subject to variable interest rates on some of its interest bearing liabilities. The Company’s 
interest rate exposure is mainly related to debt obligations. The Company also uses a mix of interest rate 

sensitive financial instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations like 

short term loans. 

As at March 31, 2024 and 2023, financial liability of Rs. 1,520.40, Rs.1760.32 Lacs respectively, was subject 

to variable interest rates. 
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Increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates at the balance sheet date would result in an impact 

(decrease/increase in case of profit/(loss) before tax of Rs. 15.20 Lacs and Rs. 17.60 Lacs on income for the 
year ended March 31, 2024 and 2023 respectively. 
 
 
 
 

29.   RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below: 

(i) 

     S 

No. Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship 

1 O.P.Bhansali 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

2 Vimal Bhansali 

3 Gaurav Bhansali 

4 Manish Bohra 

5 Amit Baxi 

      6 Om Kumari Bhansali 

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel (RKMP) 

7 Priya Bhansali 

8 Ruchi Bhansali 

9 Madhu Mehta 

10 Anita Bohra 

   11 Dhananjay Bhansali 

   12 Oliver Micon Inc 

Related Parties where KMP/RKMP exercise 

significant influence 

13 Oliver Rubber Ind. LLP. 

14 Earth Movers Enterprises 

15 Om Prakash Bhansali HUF 

16 Vimal Bhansali HUF 

17 Gaurav Bhansali HUF 

 (ii) Transactions during the year with related parties : 

The following table summarizes related party transactions and balances for the year ended/as at March 31, 2024 

( ₹ in Lacs ) 

S.No. 

Nature of Transactions 

Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

Relative of Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

Entities in which 

KMP/RKMP have 

significant influence 

1 Sale of Goods               -                  -    153.52 

2 Purchase               -                  -    4.83 

3 Remuneration 113.11 9.15                         -    

4 Loan Received has repaid               -                  -                            -    

5 Loan Paid 124.36               -                            -    

6 Loan Given 18.30               -                            -    

7 Interest Paid 2.14               -                            -    

8 Rent  1.10               -                            -    

 

 Balance as at March 31, 2024 
 Trade Receivable               -    -                     99.42  
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 Rent 2.20 -                         -    

 Managerial Remuneration 5.45               -                            -    

 Loans Taken 2.19               -                            -    

 Loans Given 12.50               -                            -    
 

 

The following table summarizes related party transactions and balances for the year ended/as at March 31, 2023 

 ( ₹ in Lacs ) 

S.No. 

Nature of Transactions 

Key 
Managerial 

Personnel 

Relative of Key 
Managerial 

Personnel 

Entities in which 
KMP/RKMP have 

significant influence 

1 Sale of Goods               -                  -    137.34 

2 Purchase               -                  -    6.57 

3 Remuneration 104.71 5.29                         -    

4 Loan received 62.75               -                            -    

5 Loan Paid 64.25               -                            -    

6 Loan Given has repaid 18.18               -                            -    

7 Interest Paid 7.48               -                            -    

8 Rent  1.10               -                            -    

 Balance as at March 31, 2023 

 Trade Receivable               -                  -                        50.07  

 Managerial Remuneration 6.92               -                            -    

 Loans Taken 127.53               -                            -    

 Loans Given 1.00               -                            -    

*Note: The Company has received money by way of loan amounting to Rs. 62.75 from its directors during the 

financial year 2022-23. 
 

30. The Company has identified Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Development Act, 2006.  
 

S.NO. PARTICULARS AS ON 

    31.03.2024 31.03.2023 

1 
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act 
and remaining unpaid as at year end 309.40 50.05 

2 
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and 
remaining unpaid as at year end NIL NIL 

3 
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 
beyond the appointed day during the year NIL NIL 

4 

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers 
registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during 
the year NIL NIL 

5 
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered 
under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year NIL NIL 

6 
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED 
Act, for payments already made NIL NIL 

7 Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years NIL NIL 

 
30.1  
Except following two parties there are no MSME creditors payable for 45 days and above, hence no provision for interest 
is required as per the provision of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, 2006 

    

( ₹ in Lacs ) 
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Name of Party Amount Due 

J K Rubtech Impex 77.28 

Behl Enterprises 6.36 

 
Company has filed MSME Form l for the half year ended 31st March, 2024 along with the reasons for delay in 
payments due. 
 

31. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The Company is mainly engaged in manufacturing activities in India. All the activities of the Company 

resolved around this main business. The Board of Directors of the Company allocate the resources and assess 

the performance of the Company, thus are the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors 

the results of the business as a once, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed. 

 

32.   CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to: 

 safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for 

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and 

 maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

The board of directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with 

higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position. 

The following summmarizes the capital of the Company: 
 

( ₹ in Lacs ) 
Particulars 

  

As at March 31, 

2024 

As at March 31, 

2023 

Equity* 7,105.01 6,649.95 

Short term borrowings and current maturities of long-term 

borrowings 1,414.50 1,426.72 

Long term borrowings 105.90 333.60 

Total borrowings 1,520.40 1,760.32 

Total capital (Debt+Equity) 8,625.41 8,410.27 
 

 

 

33.   COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The company 

assesses such claims and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the 

assistance of external legal counsel, wherever necessary. The company records a liability for any claims 

where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial 

statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the company 

provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a liability in its accounts unless the loss 

becomes probable. 
 

LITIGATIONS 

The company is involved in legal proceedings, both as plantiff and as defendant. There are claims which the 

company does not believe to be of material nature, other than those described below. 

A. Income Tax 

(i) Company has deposited an amount of Rs. 19,50,000.00 as 20% of demand raised u/s 143(3) towards 
assessment of AY 2015-16 as per CBDT Circular and file an appeal to CIT (A) which is pending with same 
jurisdiction. 

 

B. Custom Duty 
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(i) Company has applied for refund towards pre deposit of an amount of Rs. 2,78,879.00, which was being 

7.5% of demand raised u/s 28(4) of Custom Act towards differencial Custom Duty upon deciding of the 
respective cases by the appellant authority and remand back to adjudicated authority, Refund order has been 
issued along with 6% interest and realization is awaited. 
 

C. GST 

Intimation of Liability under RGST / CGST Act 2017 for the period 2018-19 pertaining to RCM payable on 
Personal Guarantee to Bank given by the directors of company for loan to company has not been in existence 
in view to board clarification vide its recent circulation to non levy of RCM on Personal Guarantee of Directors 
hence no liability exist for the same.  
 

D. Others 

(i) M/s Nawa Engineers & Consultants Pvt Ltd is client of Somi Conveyor Beltings Ltd. who had issued cheque 
in favour of Somi Conveyor Beltings Limited on 16.10.2014 of Rs 200000.00 which was dishonoured and 
Company has sued under section 138 of Negotiable Instruments Act in the Court of the Hon'ble XVII ADDL 
Chief Metropolitan Magistrate at Hyderabad. 
 
(ii) Case No. C.P. (IB) - 15/2020 filed by an Ex- Employee before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)- 
Jaipur on 6th January, 2020, has been decided in the favour of company and the same has been dismissed 
and disposed off as per NCLT order dated 22.02.2024. Hence no liability exits as on balance sheet date. 

 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

  
( ₹ in Lacs ) 

PARTICULARS 
As at 

March 31, 2024 
As at 

March 31, 2023 

   Income Tax* 97.42 97.42 
Custom Duty - 34.09 

GST - 4.14 

   TOTAL 97.42 135.65 

* Including Rs.1950000.00 deposited with the Income Tax Department as 20% of the demand amount. The 

same has been reported under 'Balance with Government Authorities' under Note number 7. 

34. As at the balance sheet date, the Company has reviewed the carrying amount of its assets and found that 
there is no indication that those assets have suffered any impairment loss. Hence, no such impairment loss 
has been provided. 

35. Other Notes: 

(i)  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending 

against the Company for holding any Benami property. 

(ii) The Company does not have granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan to promotors, KMP, 

Directors and related parties where it is repayable on demand or without specifying any terms of repayment.  

(iii)  The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond 

the statutory period. 

(iv)  No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 

any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),  including 

foreign entities ("Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities ("Intermediaries”) with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries). 

(v)  The company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding party) with the understanding that 

the company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on 
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behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(vi)  The company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that  has been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 13 1 

(such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 

(vii)The Code on Social Security, 2020 (’Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment  and post-

employment benefits  received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the 

Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come in to effect has not been notified.  The 

Company  will assess the impact of the Code  when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in 

the period when the Code become's effective.  

(viii)  The Company does not undertake any transactions with respect to crypto currency / assets. 

(ix)  Provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to CSR are not applicable to the 

Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

36. Sundry Debtors, Creditors, Loans and Advances balances as shown in the balance sheet are subject to 
confirmation from the parties concerned and consequential adjustments, if any. 

37. Previous year figures have been re-grouped, re-arranged and re-casted wherever it is considered 
necessary to make them comparable with those of current year. 

 

Note 38 
Financial Ratios 
 

Ratio Numerator Denominator 2023-24 2022-23 % 
Variance 

Reason for variance 

Current ratio (in 
times) 

Current Assets Current Liabilities 2.12 2.19 -3%   

Debt-equity ratio 
(in times) 

Current & Non-
Current Borrowing 

Shareholder's 
Equity 

0.21 0.26 -18%  

Debt service 
coverage ratio (in 
times) 

Net Profit after taxes 
+ Depreciation 
&Amortisation 

Expenses + Finace 
Costs - Other 

Income + Taxes 

Interest + 
Principal 

Repayments 

2.34 1.93 21%  

Return on equity 
ratio (in %) 

Net profits after 
taxes 

Average 
Shareholder's 

Equity 

6.62% 5.31% 25%  

Inventory 
turnover ratio (in 
times) 

Cost of Traded 
Goods + Changes in 

Inventories + 
Production 
Expenditure 

Average 
Inventory 

2.95 2.08 42% Due to higher revenue 
turnover cycle increased 

Trade receivables 
turover ratio (in 
times) 

Revenue from 
operations 

Avg. Accounts 
Receivables 

2.75 3.22 -15%  

Trade payables 
turover ratio (in 
times) 

Cost of Traded 
Goods + Production 

Expenditure 

Avg. Trade 
Payables 

5.67 6.44 -12%  

Net capital 
turnover ratio (in 
times) 

Revenue from 
Operations 

Working Capital 2.41 2.41 0%  

Net profit ratio 
(in %) 

Profit After Tax Total Revenue 
from Operations 

4.46% 3.70% 21%  

Return on capital 
employed (in %) 

Net Profit after taxes 
+ Depreciation 
&Amortisation 

Expenses + Finace 
Costs - Other 

Income + Taxes 

Tangible Net 
Worth + Total 

Debt + Deferred 
Tax Liability 

10.15% 9.30% 9%  
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